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Fellow is, I would have been my own Execu-
tioner, and not have expeted my Sentence at this
Bar.

L. €. 7. Do you know him well ¢

Bedlszy. Very well, both him and his Father ;
his Father is an Oxfordfbire Gentleman.

Anderfon.  Now 1 think I fhall prove the
Rogue perjurd @ Is my Lord Chief Baron in the
Court ?

Conit. Yes, he is.

Anderien. Why then my Father has the Ho-
nour to be well known to his Lordthip, who
knows this to be falfe.

L. C. Baron *. No, no, Mr. Bedlsw, he is a
Gentleman’s Son of Quality in Liucolufbire.

L. C. #. You are mittaken, you are miftaken,
his Father is a Lincolnfbire Gentleman.

dnderfon.  And yet this Rogue is upon his
Oa:h; but indeed all his Life is full of fuch
Miftakes.

Bedliw. T don’t know, my Lord Privy-Seal’s
Nephew told me fo. ‘ _

L. C. ¥. But what fay you to him, as to his
beine a Pricft?

Bedlsze. 1 have heard him fay Mals.

L.C. F. Did you ever recetve the Sacrament
from him?

Bedlzwo. Never. But I have feen him admi-
nifter the Sacrament, and he was in a PriefUs
H.bit.

L.C 7. Where?

Bediswo. 1 think it was at the Penetian Reli-
dent’s; 1 am fure it was at fome of the Ambal-
fadors Houlcs.

Anderfiir. 'TUhis Matter is fo unlikely, I'know
not what 10 fay to Ir.

Mr Fuft, Pewderion. Will you ask him any
Queltions? |

Anderfon, Upon my Salvation I never faw him
before.

M. Fuft. Defben. Itis a flrange thing, that
vou fhould take ujon you to fay upon your Sul-
vation you never faw him : How many might
come into 2 Room, and you not fee them while
you are at Mals ?

L. C. #. He might fee you, tho® you did not
fee him : He might come in, and you not fee
him.

Mr. Faft. Atkins. Is that any Argument, or any
thing to the Purpofe, or does that contradict the
Evidence? Does the Mintter, or ought he to
know all his Congregation whilft he is in preach-
ing?

Auderfon. I never faw him, [ fay. My Lord,
I’ll give you but one Argument, which is call’d
Arpumicitim congruenlie.

Mr. Fufl, Fores, Will you ask him any Que-
ftions

Anderfon. To what Purpofe will 1t be for me
to ask him ?

Bedlow. When he was firft taken T was not
ftirring; but while I was making ready they
told me there was one fufpefted to be a Prieft.
I heard him fpeak in the next Room, and I
knew his Voice, and faid, That 1s Mr. Auder-
fon. 1 prefently knew his Tongue before I faw
him.

L. C. 7. You knew him very well then?

Bedlvw. 1 never had any great Converfe with
the Man: When he was taken they asked me,
If I knew any thing of chis Van about the Plot?
I told them, No; but he was in Orders from the
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Church of Rome, for I heard him fay Mafs at

fuch a Place. He told me, faid he, I have been
in Orders, but I revok’d them, and turned Pro-
teltant,

Mr, Belwood, Set up Mr. Praunce. Pray, Sir,
tell what you know.

Praunce. My Lord, 1 have heard him fay Mafs
feveral times at /#ld- Houfe 5 and he hath given

the Sacrament there, and I have fecen him take
Confeffions —

L. C. 7. How often?
Praunce. Several rimes,

L. C. 7. Then you know him very well ?

Pranuce. Yes, very well.

Anderfon. 1 never faw him in my Life.

L. C. 7. But he hath feen you.

Andeifon. My Lord Chief Juftice, I will bring
Witnefles to prove, That I did never fay Mafs ac
Wild- Houfe, nor went to the Chapel : For fome
(forfooth) would needs have me to have been
Excommunicated for writing for the King’s
Temporal Jurifdiction over all his Subje@s (in-
dependent of the Pope) as appears by a Letter
of the Bithop of Laudon on my behalf to Sir Cle-
ment 2 mafgﬁ'.

L. C. }. How long have you known him ?

Praunce. Seven Y ears,

L. C. f. How often have you feen him fay
Mals 2

'Praunce. A dozen times.

Anderfoir. It may feem ftrange that I fhould
have the Impudence to deny what this worthy
Gentleman fays.  Nir, Prausnce, dare you fay you
know me?

L. C. 7. Why, wcre you never there ?

Mr. Fuft, Foues. Well, well, will you ask him
any Quecltions?

Aiiderjon, Who did I give the Sacrament to ?

Prazince. ~ whole Rail-full hath been at the
Sacrament at a time; {everal People I have feen
receive it from him,

L. C. 7. Did he deliver the Sacrament to
you ?

Praunce. No, he did not, I commonly received
at Somerfet-Houfe.

M. Sery, Strode. We have done, my Lord.

Mr. Fuft. Fenes. The King's Courfel have
done with their Evidence, and now you may fay
what you will.

Auderfon. My Lord Chief Juftice, may I {peak
now ?

L. C. . Yes, you may.

Anderfon. My Lord, all the World knows me,
and I am known to mott of the dignified Clergy
in England : My Lord Bithop of Lsidon, and
Dr. Lloyd, and the Bithop of Durbam fent to me
to tell me, that if they knew of my Trial they
would be liere. My Lord, I have lain under an
ill Cenfure for Scribbling and Writing againft
the Temporal Power of the Church of Rome.
I never faid Mafs in any Popith Church, I am
confident, thele ten Years; that | have faid Mafs,
I won'tdeny. I would not tell a Lye to fave
my own Life; nay, nor would I tell a Lye to
take away the Life of the greateft Villain upon
Earth; no, not that Rogue [ Pointing to Danger-
field.] But, my Lord, [ proteft there 1s not one
Word true that hath been fivorn againft me, but
what Dr. Oates hath faid concerning my faying
Mafs. Oh! my Lord, I would not deny it if I
were to be hang’d prefently 5 and is not that a
great Evidence of my Innocence and Sincerity ?

But

* William Mountague, Efg;
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But this does not prove that I am guilty of what
I am accufed for 5 for I am indifted upou a Pe-
nal Statute, and three things muft be proved
ftrictly to bring me within that Law: Lirft, that
1 am an Engliftanan—-

L.C. 7.’ s proved you are an Oxfordfbire
Man, .
Anderfon. No, my Father is Lincolnfbire, and
my Lord Chief Baron knows him.,

L. C. Baron. 1 do know a Gentleman of that
Name there.

Bedlow. 1 was told he was Oxfordfhire.

Mr. Jutt. Dolben. He {pzaks himfelf to be an
Englifbman. All the World knows it by your
Speech.

Anderfon. 1 know my Father 1s fo. *

L. C.¥. Why do you deny it your felf?

Auderfon. *Tis one thing to deny it, and ano-
ther thing to have it proved {o: 1 am not to
prove it, they are.

L. C. 7¥. He fays you are {o.

Auderfoir. He talks like 2 Parrot: Thefe things
are to be proved ftriétly ; no Man’s Life 1s to be
taken away by Prefumption ; which is but a Con-
ceit in Law, and ought not to overthrow that
Maxim of Law, that Penal Laws oughr to be
taken moft firictly in favour of the Prifoner:
And 1 ought to be proved, ad literam, within
the Law; and that according to the Statute made
fince his Majefty’s happy Reftoration, by two
lawful Witnefles; and not only by two lawful,
but by two credible Witneffes too. I fuppofe
the Gentlemen of the Jury being apprized of
thelfe my LExceptions to thefe Witnefles, notwith-
ftanding give Credit to them, whom perhaps
they would not truft for 64. in their Shops, and
make themfelves their Compurgators; and, as in
waging Law, do take it upon their Confcience,
that what thefe Rogues fay 1s true.

L. C. . Sothey do.

Mr. Jult. Dolben. 1f thefe things are not well
proved nothing will be proved.

Mr. Juft. 4tkins. Have you any Witneffes that
you would call ?

M. Juft. Pemberton, 1f you will call any, you
may.

J};ﬁ'{fﬁﬁﬁ. How fhall T call them, when I did
not know of my Tral?

. oG M. Recorder®, 1f you will fend
]eﬁ‘ﬂ:i:ts &% for any Witnefles the Court will ftay,
' it they be to any thing material.

Anderfon, My Lord, 1 have againft this Gen-
tleman, Mr. Dangerfield, almoft all the Prifoners
of the King’s Bench for Witnefles.

L, C. %, Call them, and name them,

Anderfon. Mr. ddderly, Mr. Puller, who can
fay that I never drunk a Pot of Ale with this
Man while he was there,

L. C.¥. Who would you fend for ?

Anderfon. Tholfe Perfons, to prove that I had
2 Grudge and Prejudice againft this Man, and
that I defired to be removed to Newpate for that
very Reafon.

Mr. Jutt. Dolben. But the Queftion is, Whe-
ther you be a Prieft, or no? And you can’t {end
for any one that knows you, but will fay, That
he hath taken you for a Prieft all along,

Anderfon, But fhill it 1s but a_Prefumption, not
a Proof.

Mr. Jult, Dolben. The Jury is to be. Judge of
that, how far that goes.

L. G F. What do you expe& far Proof?
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Do you imagine there thould be no Proofto con-
vict you upon that Statute, unlefs we produce
fome Witnefles that actually faw you take Or-
ders?

Audeifon. Yes, I fuppofe fo, my Lord, be-
caufe Penal Statutes are to be taken ftrictly.

L. C. 7. Look you then, How vain would
you make a Statute of Euglaud, the Laws of your
Country? How idle a Thing were it to expeék
any Poffibility of Proof, fuch as to conviét a
Prielt, it this beche Interpretation of the Law,
That no Man fhould be convifted by a Jury
upon this Statute, but one againft whom two
Witneffes thould fwear they faw him take Orders ?
Where can we find fuch 2 Witnefs?

Anderfon. Admit that this Law were thus eva-
ded, yer there would be no Inconvenience, and
I ' would prove it to your Lordfhip by Authority :
It was the Opinion of all the Judges, delivered
about ninc Years ago to the King and Council,
upon a Queftion about Laws againft the Rorifd
Recufants ; they all agreed, That this Law was
only made i terrorem.

Mr. Juft, Pemnbeitoin, Look you, Sir, you muft
not talk fo, it is not to be permirted.

Mr. Jult, Dolben, Will you go to Arraign the
Judges here?

L.C. }. No, no; the King’s Counfel did ve-
ry honeflly and prudently upon that Marter:
For faid Sir Fobn Keiling, *Tis very true, our
Kings have not, fince this Law was made, put
the Statute in Execution unto Rigour, *till you
your felves occafioned 1t: But flill the Law was
a good Law, and abfolutely ncceflary at its
making, as neceflary as the Prefervation of the
Queen’s Lite, and the Quiet of her Dominions
and now it Is become as neceffary for the Prefer-
vation of the Proteftant Religion, which all your
Arts are employed to underminc; and more ne-
ceflary again, for the Prefervation of our King's
Life, againft which your Contrivances are fo
bent,

Mr. Jult. Peuberton. Do you think that you
fhall be heard here to difpute againft the Law,
and fay it was no matter for the Law, 1t is a
void Law ; and fcandalize the Judges, that they
gave it for their Opinlon, that it was only i
terroiem

Auderfon. No, 1 difpute for the Law,

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. You muft employ your
Time otherwife, if you intend to be heard.

Anderfon. Then this 15 that T require; I defire
thefe things may be proved: Firlt, That I am
an Luglifbman, and then I took Orders from Rone,
and then that 1 abode here contrary to the Statute,
which Things in this Penal Statute muft be pro-
ved.

L.C. F. You have, upon the Matter, proved
the Firlt your felf in your Appeal 0 my Lord
Chief Baron, that he knew your IFFather, who i3
a Lincolnfhive Man.

Anderfon, T might be bred and born beyond

Sea, tho’ my Father was fo.
L. C. ¥. If you will give no Proof to the

contrary, alittle Proof will ferve the Jury’s Thrn,
hearing you [peak, and knowing your Father was
a Lincolnfhire Man.

Aunderfon. No Negative can be {worn; thicy
muft prove the Affirmative.

L. C.¥. That will turn the Proof upon-yeu
{0 the contrary.

Mr. Juft.,
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Mr. Fuft, Atkins, A reafonable Proof againft
you, with fuch Probability, will put itupon you
to difprove it.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Look you, Mr. Luderfon,
if you have any Witneffes to call for, or fend
for, the Court will give you Leave to ftand by
a litte and fend for them; but if you continue
to argue in this manner, the Court will give their
Diretions to the Jury. _

L. C. . But, Mr. Audeifonn, the Court will
do you all the Juitice that can be expefted. If
you have any material Witnefles to be fent for,
the Court will have Patience till they come; but
then you muft be fure they are material Witnel-
{es, for we will not go to Jofe time upon a bare
Surmife. If it be only to prove this Negative,
that Mr. Dangerfield was never 1n your Company
in the King’s Bench, it will fignify nothing, for
there are three Witnefles without him.

A, Fup. Pemberton. Tave you any Witnefies
to prove that you were born beyond Sea, or any
thing that is material, we will ftay for them.

M. Fuft. Ellis, There is nothing now in quelti-
on, but whether you be an Exziifiman and a Prielt 5
and if you can prove that you are not fo, jou
fay well.  But I think you deny not now but that
you are a Prieft, only you would have us prove
that you are an Exnglifbman. Y our Speech betrays
you, and there is fo much Evidence againft you,
that I have not heard in any Cafe as 1 know of.
And all your Witnefles will be to lhule Pur-
pofe.

Anderfon. Only this I defive to oblerve, That
I have been a Muan always countenanced by the
beft of Kings, and his Privy-Council; and if
the Parliament had not been diffolved, I had been
proteCted by the Parliament: Now, I fay, if
your Lordfhips think me worthy of any Confi-
deration (as I have been a Man that have given
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A&s which none but a Prieft amongft them does ;,
he fays Mafs, he confecrates the Sacrament, he
takes Confeffion, he gives Abfolution, and all this
proved by four Witnefles.

Anderfon. That the Clerk dees at Mafs, he
oives Abfolution.

L. C. ¥. Does or can any but a Prielt Ab-
folve?

Qates. My Lord, the Clerk, he that ferves ar
Mafs at that Time, gives pro forma Abfolution
to the Prieft, without which, the Prieft cannos
approach to-the Alar 3 after he hath made a gene-
ral Confeflion for the whole Congregation, the
Clerk abfolves the Prieflt, that he may abfolve
the Congregation.

L. C. 7. Well, the Fact is plain upon you;
we muft never expect to convicta Prieft upen this
Statute, if fuch Proof i1s not fufficient.

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. He does acknowledge that
Dr. Oates hath heard him fay Mafs,

L. C. 7. Go on to the next.

Mr. Belwood. The next we will try, fhall be
Fames Corker, [Fith whom the Fury was charged,
as <with the other. |

Ay, Belweod. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury s Fames Corter,
the Prifoner at the Bar, flands Indicted for High-
Treafon, for that being born within the King’s
Dominions, and made a Prieft by Authoruy
from the See of Rome, did traiteroufly come and
abide in Lugland, contrary to the Law. To this
he hath pleaded Not Guilty,

L. C. 7. Welly call your Witnefles.

Ay, Sery. Strede. Dr. QOates, Mr. Bedloww, and
Mr. Praunce. [Who were all fwoin.] Dr. Qates,
pray tell my Lord, and thefe Gentlemen, what
you know of this Mr. Corker’s being a Pricft.

Oates. My Lord, he hath faid Mafs at Somer-

feveral Teftimonies of my Loyalty, and Obedi- fe/-Hoafe s and before the Proclamation and De-

ence to the Government) I defire your Lorc{hips
would pleafe to ftay till you know the King’s
Pleafure,

L. C. . You know where you muft apply
your felf for that; we are barely upon our Qaths,
and fo is the Jury too, to try the Fact, whether
you be a Prieft; and this I will tell you, and I
muft fay to you, [ dareappeal to your own Con-
fciences, whether this Iffue, your being a Romith
Prieft, is not as plinly and evidently prov’d to
the Satisfation of all Mankind, as any thing can
be?

Anderfon. But it is all by Prefumption full.

L.C. ¥ Well, Gentlemen of the Jury, the
Matter that he infilts vupon, are two things;
Firft, fays he, You have not prov’d me to be an
Englifbman, and yet at the fame time he appeals
to fuch as knew his Father to be an Eugli/s
Gentleman ; and his Language, his Tongue be-
trays him. Tis true, fome kind of Evidence 1s
to be given, that he is an Englifiman, he himfelf
tells you, that heis born of Euglih Parents; but
’tis a foreign Matter, that he fhould be born be-
yond Sca.  And if it were fo really, then itcomes
on this fide s if he can produce any Witnefs, he
fays fomething; otherwife we leave it to you,
whether you are not fatisfied tn your Conlciences,
by bearing him fpeak, and underftanding who
his Father was, that he is an Euglifhmen. "The
next thing is for his beinga Prieft: I do not know,
nor can there be expeted a plamner Proof than
this that hath been given, becaufe he doth thofe

claration in 1674, made againft the Catholicks,
he was one of the Queen’s Priefts, he 1s a Be-

neditine Menk, and he hath faid Mafs at Somer-

fet-Houfe; and I have heard him fay Malfs at the

Savoy.
L. C.}. In aPrieflt’s Habut?

Qates. Yes, I have{een him in a Monk’s Ha-
bit.

Corker. When,

L.C.7. Have you ever feen him give the Sa-
crament ?

Oates, Yes, 1 received the Sacrament from him
my felf.

L.C.7. Where?

Oates. In the Savoy.

L. C. J. Did he confecrate the Sacrament ?

Ontes. Not that that I received ; I cannot {ay
whether he did or no,

L.C. %. Do zny Admunifter the Sacrament but
Prieits? .

Qates. They are in Orders firft, And ’tis
againft the Laws of the Church forany but Priefts
to do it.

L.C. f. None ufe to do it but Priefts, do
they ?

Oaies. I cannot tell; but he that T took it
from, I always took to be a Prieft: Befides, I
faw his Patent to be Bifhop of London ; and they
don’t ufe to make them Bifhops before they be
Priefts. .

L. C. ¥. Did he {hew it you?

Qates, 1 faw 1t

Mr, Tuft..
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M, Jult, Akins. From whom was that Patent ?

Q.tes. It was from the See of Rome.

Mr. Jult, Akins, Under what Seal was it ?

Oates. I can’t tell that; but I remember that
I faw the Patent,

L C. 7. Well, will you ask him any thing?

Corker. When was 1t that you heard me fay
Mafs?

Quates. The firlt time that T heard him fay
Mafs is near upon three Years ago; and then [
heard him fay vlals aboutthe laft Winter was two
Years.

L €.F. How often have you heard him fay
Mafs? -

Gates. Several times; a dozen times I be-
Hieve.

Corker. Was there any body with you when
you heard me fay Mals.

Oaics. I beheve there was an whole Church {ull
at Semerfet-Houfe.

Corler. Can you nominate any in particular?

Mr. Jult. Atkins. How can he do that? He
fays there was an whole Church full.

‘Mr. Jutt, Pemberton, Will you ask him any
more Queftions?

Corccr. INO,

Mr. Serj. Strode. Then fet up Mr. Bedlow.
Pray, Sir, will vou tell my Lord and the Jury,
what you hnow of Mr. Corier’s bemig a Priedt,

Redlzeo. 1 have feen him wear the Habir of a
Benedictive Monk, before the fupprefiing of the
Convent in the Sasoy; and 1 bave feen him con-
feffing feveral People i Scmerfet-boiife.

L.C.F. And gave them Abfolution ?

.E)'L’I:?.E’Uw. Yus,

L. .. % Do they uleto let them fee when
they confels ? |

Redlyw. Thev confefs in publick, but  they
fpeax fo fottly we carnot hears but the whole
Chapel fometimes may be full of people Contel-
fing. _

L.C. F. When was this ?

Podlowo. About four or five Years {ince, when
Father Lathea: was there.

L. C. 7. Did you ever hear him fay Mafsat

Father Lathun’s ¢ _
Bedlcew. No, [ nmever faw him fay Mafs, but

only confcls. | |
L.C. ¥. Did you never fee him deliver the

Sacrament?
Bedlow. No, my Lord. _
Corker. When you faw me in my Habit, was
it when you came to Father Lathun’s? |
Bedlow. 1 judge fo, it was feveral times, with
feveral of them.
Corker. Can you nominate any one that faw me

at the fame time ?

Bedlow. There were a whole Chapel full of
Catholicks.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. That is no great matter
whether he can or no. | ‘

Mr. Juft. Atkins, *Tis an immaterial Queftion,
Why do you ask it? _

Bedlow, My Lord, what 1 did was done fo
privately, that if I went but from Strand-bridze
to the Monrks, I cither took a Boat and went by
Water, or a Coach and went round about, to
avoid fufpicion.

Mr. Belwood, Then fet up Mr, Prannce, Pray
Sir tell what you know of this.

Praunce. 1 have heard him fay Mafs at Mr. Pa/f-
ton's in Luke-flrect.

Vou. ll.

e
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L. C. 7. How often?

Praunce. Never but once,

Corker., When, Sir?

Praunce. It may be two Years ago.

Mr. Jult, 4tkins, That is another Place too,
Mr. Corker.

L. C. 7. Have you any thing to ask him?
~ Corker. No, my Lord,

L. C. f. Whathave you then to fay for yourfelf?

Corker. My Lord, this I have to fay for my
felt, and 1 do proteft it to be truc: I never in my
Lote did fay Mafs or hear Confuffions at Somerfets
boufe.

L. C. ¥. What fay you to Mr, Paftor's?

(-rker. No, nor at Mr, Paflon’s; nor ever
was 1n the Company of that Man, nor ever faw
him there in my Life, tomy knowledge.

L. C. }. That may be.

Corker. 1 likewife proteft, that I never faid
Mais in any publick Place fince I was born,

L. C. 7. 1t may be you count not Mr. Paffei’s
a publick Place.

Corker. 1F 1t be a private Place, then I fhould
kncw who were in the Company, and who were
admitted chere,

L. C.7. No, you were not two or three Years
ago fo nice and cautious whom you admitted to
fee you m the Excrcife of what you call vour Re-
ligion; becanfe the Exccution of the Law was
not fo ftrict as now-a-days it is. And therefore
it 1s very probable, and may very well be, that
you were at Mr Paflen’s Houle, and yer not
know all the Company.

Corker, But [ fay, 1 never did fay Mafs there,

Mr. Juft. Pemberten. Here are three Witnefles
againlt you, and do you think your bare Word
will be taken againft cheir three Ouaths?

Mr. Recorder. What fay you to the Sauoy,
Mr Coiker ¢ ] ask you, becaufe I would know
whether you can fpeak Truth in any thing.

Corker. T would not tell a Lye, tho’ I fhould
thereby fave my Life: And I do again proteft
betore God and the Court, I never in my Life
faid Mafs or heard Confeflions at Somerfet-houfz
Chapel, nor at Mr. Pafion’s in Duke-flrect,  And
as to the Savoy, feeing 1 will be fincere, I fhall
only fay, thatas my Denial will not clear me, fo
I beg | may not be my own Accufer.

L.C. J. Here is one hath fwore ir.

Corter. *Tis only Oates, my Lord.

L.C. 7. Well Gentlemen of the Jury, you
hear what 1s proved againft him by three Wit-

nefles, that they heard him fay Mafs and receive
Confeflions, and deliver the Sacrament. They

tell you what Order he was of, and that they faw
him do the Acts of a Prieft,

Corker. 1 appeal to all the World that ever
came to Sorerfet-honfe, whether ever any one heard
me fay Mafs there.

L. C. 7. Here is one hath,

Mr. Sery. Strode. We will try William Marflal
next. [Whowas charged upon the Fury as the other.]
Mr. Belwood, May i pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, William Marfbat,
the Prifoner at the Bar, ftands indicted for High-
Treaion, The Offence is not for being a Prieft
barely ; but that he being born an Ewglifbman,
within the King’s Dominions, and having recei-
ved Orders from Rome, did, againft the Laws of

the Kingdom, come and abide here.
Mr. Scr). Strede. Swear Dr, Qates and My, Bed-
6.M lowe.
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bow, [Which was dome.] Dr., Oates, pray ftand

up.
PL. C. . What can you fay to Mr. Mar/bal’s
being a Prieft ? I

Oates. 1 have heard him fay Mafs 1n the §a-
2oy, and I have feen him in that Polture that the
Priefts are in when they give Abfolution. .

L. C. 5. Have you feen him in a Prieft’s Habit
fay Mafs?

Oates. Yes, in his Habit as a Benediftine Monk.

Mr. Juft. Yones. Did you ever fee him give
the Sacrament?

Cztes. Yes, and confecrate the Hoft.

Mr. Juft. Fones. Well, have you any thing to
ask him? .

Mayfhal. When was thise

Oates. 1 have known him thefe three Years to
be a Prieft.

Maifhal. That is a Year Jonger than you knew
me at the Tral,

Oates. 1t is a great while fince that Trial.

L.C.7. Ay, thatis a good while ago.

Marfhal. But where, Mr. Oates, and when?

QOates, At the Savoy,

Marfhal, When'?

Qates. Within the compals of three Years,
feveral times.

Marfhal. How does that afford me any. occa-
fion of Defence? 1 can make no Plea, unlefs he
afcertains Time,

Mr. Jult. Pemberton, *Tis good Evidence, with-
out confining himfelf to precife time.

L.C. 7. He fays a dozen times within that
compalfs.

Marfhal. But why does he not name fome par-
ticular time; for unlefs he name the time, how
is it poflible for us to difprove him?

L.C. 7. He tells you many times in three
Years.

Marfbal, But when ?
L. C. ¥F. Why, within three Years.

Mr. Juft, Dolben, What if he could tell you
when ?

Marfbal. Let him name the Day, then we could
difprove him; and lec him name the Day, and
if I do not difprove him, P’ll be hang’d.

L. C. . °Tis an 1mproper Queftion that you
ask,

Mr. Juft, Pemberton. He i1s not bound to name
the Day.

Oates. Well, I will pitch upon a Day now.

Maifbal. When was 1t?

Oates. Several times faft Summer was Twelve-
month.

Marfbal. What, before the Plot?

Qates. Several times in that Summer before the
Plot was difcovered 5 and feveral times the Winter
before, when I came over from Spain ?

Marfbal. Did you hear me fay Mafs before
you went over to 8pain ¢

Qases, Yes 1 did.

Mr., Juft. Dolben. Call another Witnefs.

Mr. Belwood. Mr. Bedlyw. .

M. Serj. Strode. Pray will you tell what you
know of Mr. Marfhal,

Bedlow. I know a great deal of him.

L.C.¥. What of his being a Prieft ?

- Bedlowv. T have feen him in his Habit of a
Benedictine Monk 1n the Savoy.
L. C.%. Have you heard him fay Mafs?¢
Bedlow. No, my Lord, T have not; Buthe hath

been prepasing to go to take Confeffions.
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L.C.%. Did he own himfelf to be a Prieft?

Bedlow. IHe was in the Habit of Prieft, bur
I never faw him execute any part of the Office
of a Prieft.

M. Jult. Pemberton. Did youhear him declare,
that he hath been going at any time to take Con-
feffion ?

Bedlow. The Monks have faid when he hath
been gone, that he went to take Confeflions.

L.G. 7. Upon your Oath, Have you ever
heard himown him himfelf to be a Prieft, or ever
fay, that he was going to take Confeflion?

Bedlow. No, my Lord; but | have feen him
in 2 Monk’s Habit,. and within half an hour
he was in a fecular Habit: For when they went
abroad they took Confeflions in their fecular
Habit.

L.C ¥. How often have you feen him in a
Monk’s Habic ?

Bedlow. 1 do not know whether it were more
than once; and I asked then, Where is our Fa-
ther going?

Ngr. Jutt. Pemberion. And what faid they to
you:

Bedlowo. He was going to take Confeflions.

Mr. Juft. Delben, Have not you your feIf been
confefled by Marfhal ?

Bedlszo, No, my Lord,

L.C. 7. What fay you to him, will you ask
him any Queftions?

Marfhal. 1 do nor, I think, need to ask this
Witnefs any Queftions.

L. C. 7. That {hall be obferved tor you, if it
be to your advantage. If you have any thing to
fay for your {elf, pray fpeak it.

Mayfbal, 1f there be but one Witnefs, what
need 1 make any Defence?

L. C. ¥, What fay you to Mr. Oates’s Tefti-
mony ?

Marfhal. As for Mr. Oates, if your Lordfhip
w:ll but promife, that it fhall not preju.ice me,
as to the point of having but one Witnels, | have
much to fay for my felf: But I think [ need not
trouble your Lordfhip with it.

Sir Fobn Ketling, Were not
Marfhal was tried for the Plot?

Bedlow. Yes,

Mr. Jult. Pemberton, You muft not ask him
any Queftions about thar,

Marftal. My Lord, I fay, if your Lordthip
will but grant, that the Witnefles may have free
Accefs, and go away fafe

Bedlow. 1 believe the Court, upon his Trial,
was fatishied that he was in Orders, received from
the Church of Rome.

Sir Fobn Keiling. Swear Mr. Praunce. [Which
was doe.] What did you hear him fay at his
laft Trial?

L. C. ¥. This is hard Evidence truly.

Mr, Juft, Fones. If he would do it voluntarily
of himfelf, he might, we did not ask him the
Queftion.

Praunce, My Lord, I ftood juft by him when
he ftood at the Bar, and I heard him fay this to
the other Man, Mr. Corker, Though we are Priefis,
tois does not reach us.

L.C. 7. But is this good Evidence?

Praunce, 1 did hear him fay he was a Prieft.

,Mr. Jult, Pemberion. We did all hear him fay
fo, I believe.

Mr. Juft. Aikins. I dare fay none of the Court

asked him the Queftion.

you here when

Marfhal,
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Masfbal. My Lord, 1 was not asked, nor had
pick an  Abufes.

any occafion, and certainly 1 fhould not
occafion to condemn my felf : If I did 1, I did
it without occafion. Befides, my Lord, I humb-
ly conceive, that there muft be Proof againft a
Man, or his Confeflion won’t make him Guilty.
My, Fuft. Pembeiton. Iwould not have you too
fure of that.

Marfbal. Certainly if a Man do confefs at a-
nother time, without Proof againft him that will
not do.

Mr Fuft. Pemberton. 1 believe the Jury will
take your own Confeflion.

L. C. ¥. Don’t be over-confident of that, for
we have Memories too as well as you.

Myr. Fuft. Pemberton. You are not bely’d by
Mr. Praunce, 1 believe, Mr. Marfbal.

Mr. Fuft. Ellis, It he have confefled 1t, that is
{ure Proof enough.

Sir Fobn Keiling, Swear Mr. Dygdale. [ 1V bich
1was done.] You were at the lalt Trial, Sir; [on-
ly ask of you, Can you remember any thing of
this ¢

Dugdale, To the belt of my remembrance, I
heard him own that he wasa | rieft.

" Sir Febu Keiling. Then fay what you can for
your {clf.

Marfhal. My Lord, | have only one material
Winefs againft me.  They fay that I {aid fo; if
1 did fay {o, I muft fay it to the Courts and if it
was to the Court, it muft be upon fome Queftion
asked me.

L. C.F. You muit not fay fo; 1 am afraid
if you appeal to the Court, 1t will do you no
good,

Mr. Fufi. Doiben. Tt s plain that you are fo free
of your Diftourfe, that you might fay things that
were not pertrient.

L. C. f. "Tis not proper for the Court to give
Evidence ; if wedid, we fhould do you little Ser-
vice In this matter.

Marfhal, 1 do believe T thall recetve all Juftice
from the Court. And T have expertenced it {o
already. Now as to the prefent Teftimony a-
vainft me, I concetve that only Mr. Qastes 1s a
material Winefs; no one elfe {wears that they
ever faw me officiate or perform the Duty of a
Prieft. As for Mr. Qates, he fays he heard me
{fay Mafs {everal times the laft Summer before the
Plot. And Mr, Oates did fay he was prefent in
Fune, Fuly, and Auguft, Sir William Walier,
tho’ he was pleafed to forget other things, yet
did remember that, and did teftify that he faw
me in Fuue, Fuly, and Augufl. Now then I
humbly conceive, if he heard me fay Mafs at
any time in that Summer, it muflt be in one of
thofe three Months? Was 1t 1 any one of
them 2

Qates, My Lord, 1 came over 1n dpril from
St. Omers, and I did, as I remember, hear him
fay Mafs one time before I went again, and heard
him fay it feveral times after, which was about the
middle of Fwie, I think.

Marfhal. Now 1 fay, 1f this Honourable Court
will but pleafe to promife, that the Witneffes that
come hither fhall come and go fate, I belicve
there are Wimnefles that may contradict Dir.
Oates. '

L. C. F. What can your Witnefles prove ?
you muft not make Bargains with the Courr.

Mr. fuft. Pemberton. Why thould you fufpeét

that your Witnefles thould not go free?
Vor. 11,

Maifbal. Becaufe fome have received great

M. Fuft, Atkins, It was fo faid, but not made
out.

Myr. Fuft. Pemberton, There was only one Per-
fon that came here, and affirmed {o, but he did not
prove it.

Mr, Recorder. And the Courtdid fay chat they
fhould be punifhed that did i,

L. C. 7. The Witnefles none of them, that I
know of, were abufed.

Bedlow. It was only the King’s Witneffes that
have been abufed.

L. C. ¥. What can your Witneflcs prove ¢

Marfhal. Fle came over the 24thof 4pii!, and
I can prove that from the beginning of April, to
the end of Fuly, I was not within threefcore Miles
of Loudon, |

Oates. As to his officiating as a Prieft, I cannot
fpeak pofitively as to the Time, but [ think in laft
Summer was twelvemonth.

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. He fays, he thinks he did
once in that time, but he 1s fure that hedid fee you
{everal times that Summer.

NMarfbal. But what part of the Summer ?

Oates. From the time of my coming overagain,
to the time of the Dilcovery of the Plot.

L. C. '}. When was it that you heard him firft 2

Qates. When [ heard him firft was in the Year
1677, before I went into Spasiz ¢ I went away in
the Month of #pri/; and I am fure he faid
Mafs before I went into Spain ;3 and when [
came back again in the Winter, [ came in Ne-
vember, and {taid in Town about ten Days, and
then went to the Sawsy, and heard him fay
Malfs.

Marfhal. What November ?

Outes, Before the Summer I came out of Flai-
ders,

L. C. 7. He fays he went into Spain in 4pril,

)

?Zwmﬂml. And he heard me fay Mafs before he
went over ?

Oales, Yes.

Maifbal. Pray look,my Lord, Mr. Oates will
confefs himfelf, he was but newly reconciled to
the Church of "Rome a little while before he
Went.

Oates. I was reconciled to the Church on 4/
wednefday, and 1 went in Zpril following.

Marfhal. Where did you hear me fay Mafs
then ?

Qates. In the Savoy, at that time, before I
went into Spaii,

Marfbal. Do you pretend to have known the
Savoy ever before your coming back again ?

QOates. Yes, Ido.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton, Fe does fwear it.

Marfhal. So he does, but he can’t prove it
Mr. Oates came over in the Company, as he fays,
of Mr. Thimbleby and Mr. Hitcheock, and by his
means he did get to be commended to be received
into the Order of the Benediftines, and he was then
fent to Mr. Pickering in order to it ; Now, my
Lord, ts 1t credible that Mr. Oates having no ac-
quaintance with the Savoy before he had acquain-
tance with Mr., Hircheock, which was when he
came from Spain, fhould hear me fay Mafs be-
fore he went thicher 2

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton, All this is but a Story to
the Court,

6 M2 L C Y.



1004

L. C. ¥. What a wild Inference do you make
from this unintelligible Bufinefs

Marfhal, Mr. Oates fays fo himfelf,

Mr. Fuft. Dolben, Weall know you faid Mafs
{o openly in the Savoy, that any People whatfo-
ever might come, and you did not know who they
were. |

L. C. ¥. Though he was not oneof your Or-
der, yet he might know you.

Marfbal. To my knowledge there were never
three Mafles faid in the World at the Savoy.

My, Fuft. Dolben, The World knows the con-

trary.

ﬂ};'a:rﬂmi. Let Mr. Qates be pofitive in any thing,
and we wil] difprove him.

My, Fuft. Pembertor:. He hath gone as near it
as is neceflary ; hetells you, after his Reconcili-
ation, before he went over into Spain.

Marfhal, But I fay, he could not be at the Sa-
voy before he was acquainted there, and I can
bring Witnefles to prove, that U was not then at
the Sazoy; bur I pray, my Lord, will thefe Wit-
nefies do me any good?

L. C. 7. What will they prove?

Adurfhal. That all che Summer, from the be-
ginning of April to the end of the Summer, I
was tn the Country, threefcore Miles from Lon-
aon,

Ouales. 1 am not fo pofitive in that, my Lord,
but as near as I remember, before I went 1nto
Spatn again.  Your Lordfhips all know that I
was not {o pofitive as to any one time ; but the
Summer betore the Plot broke out, I heard him
fay Mafs feveral times in the Summer.

L.C. 7. Now he 1s pofuive that he faw you
fay Mals in the Summer before the Plot was difco-
vered.  The Subflance of his Depofirion was your
faying Mafs, the Time 1s not material : He tells
of a many times within that Compafs.

Marfhal. How fhall I difprove that ?

Mpr, Recorder. He hath given you one particu-
lar time from Afb-wedncfday, when he was recon-
ciled to Rome, allhe went to Spain in dpril.

Marfbal, 1f he names Times, then I am ableto
difprove him : And he did name one, but when
he faw me offer to prove by Witneffes, that I was
not then in Town, he goes off from it.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. *Tis impofiible for Wit-
nefles to be pofitive to 2 Day, a Week, or fuch a
thing.

M. Fuft. Elfis. How 1s it poflible to be fo, un-
Jefs it be a thing that he had taken fuch particular
notice of, as to mtend to fwear to it, and give E-
vidence about it afterwards : Now, I believe Dr.
Ouates ar that tune had no thoughts of giving Evi-
dence as to any {uch matter ; but this he is pofi-
tive in, That he did hear you fay Mafs at the Sa-
VoY,
Marhal, Ny Lord, if Mr, Oates had faid he
had feen me officiate at Somerfer-boufe or Wild-
boufe, 1t might have been fomething like ; but at
the Savoy 1t is known, that none are let in but
Friends, ncr could Mr. Oazescome in, but upon a
particular Acguaingance,

L. C. ¥. How does that appear fo?

Marfhal, By thofe that live in the Houfe.

Mr, Faff. Pemberton, You muft not fpend the
Court’s time in this manner of Difcourfe: If you
have any Witneffes that you think in yourfelf are
material, the Court will fuffer you to call them,
and pray call them prefently.

Marfpal. Here is the Houfe-keeper her felf
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that will witnefs that fhe never faw Mr. Oates
there,

L. C. ¥. If the Great 7ur%k had come there
with a Pair of Beads and 2 Crucifix, you would
have let him come m: But in the mean time, Mr.,
Oates, you have given him a pretty compafs of
time, whereby he hath an Opportunity of difprov-
ing what you fay: And you give him one parti-
cular thort time 3 but can you giveany time after-
wards in the Summer you {peak of, within any
month, or two, or three; becavle you fay at feve-
ral times ¢

Oates. I cannot be pofitive, but I will tell vou,
one time was the Szaday before they held cheir
Confpiracy, which was, [ verily believe, the Sui-
day before the 21t of Auguft.

L. C. ¥. Do you believe it was in Auypaff?

Oates. Yes, 1 do, and confine my felf to tlic
Month of Augufl.

Marfbal. Then call Elfen Righy.

Oates, I was acquuinted with Mr. Pickerinp
foonafter my being reconciled 5 and being scquain-
ted with him, 1 wentalong with b everal rimcs
to the Savoy.

Mr. Juft, Pemberton. What do you talkof one
Hiicheock, and 1 know not whom s he was ac-
quainted with Pickeriag before.

Marfbal. When, my Lord?

L. C. . Prefently atter he was reconciled,

Maifbal, Well, but you pretend now, that
fince you came over here you were in the Savoy ,
Had you a Key to getin ¢

L. €. 7. He was reconciled on /Z/;*-E*E[]?fﬁf(ffz}ij
he went in April to Spaiz.

Marfpal. Here 15 Eller Righy.

l l;; C. 7. Well, what would you have with
1er !

Marfhal. T ask, Did fhe ever fee Mr. Oazes in
the Summer before laft ?

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Don’t you lead your
Witnefs with fuch Queftions.

L. C. . Do you know Mr. Qates ¢

Righy. I have {feen him when 1 faw him com-
to ask Charity of Mr. Pfc,{';rf;{g-_

L. C. 7 Howoften?

Righy. Twice or thrice;

L. C. ¥. What time 1n the Summer ?
Righy. I cannot fay ; but I faw him in Summer

was Twelvemonth,

Quates. Why then did not this Woman, when
the knew this Evidence that would lay a Blemifh
upon me, come and give it for Pickering, 10 have
faved him?

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. Wil you give me Jeave to
ask this Woman this Queftion ; Whether fhe ever
heard you fay Mals ?

Marfbal, Ay, my Lord, with all my heart ;
and if fhe fays the hath, I will be hanged without
any more adce,

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. Then you are fure your Pro-
felyres will fay any thing you would have them ?

Marfhal, 1 my felf am a perfect Stranger to the
Savoy, In a manner.

M. fuft, Pemberton. Is he not acquainted wich
the Savoy ¢

Righy, Yes, he was there onc Month swhen
Pickering was taken.

Marfbal. Pray ask her whether ever, before
Mr -Qares went over, fhe faw him in the Savoy ?

L.C. 7. You fhall have your Queftion ask’d :
but do you think you can build upon that; if
fhe did not fee him, he did not fee you? Did

you
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vou ever fee Dr. Oates there betwixt March and
April, before he went over into Spain ?

Rigby. No, there was no body in the Houfe
but Mr. Pickering.

L. C. . Was there never Mafs faid in the
Houfe ?

Rigoy. Yes, while her Majefty’s Servants were
in the Houfe.

L. C. 7. But was there Mafs never faid fince
in the Houfe? ﬁ

Righy. Never fince I came out of it, which
was & Twelvemonth ago.

Mpr. Tuft. Pemberton: Was there not Mafs fid
in three or four Years time there ?

Righy. Not in our Houfe, I lived but in one
Houle.

Marfbal. T call her to know, whether Dr.
Oates was there? And, my Lord, here is that
which I mfift upon 3 That none is let in there to
hear Mals, but thofe that have fome particular
Acquamtance and Intimacy in the Houfe,

L. C. ¥. She only fpeaks to one particular part
of the Houfe; fhe can’t but fay Mals was faid
in the other parts.

Rigby. There was no Mafs faid there, that I
Lrow of.

L.C.¥. Why, was there no Mafs faid but in
that particular Houfe you liv'd in?2

Righy. T can’t fay that.

L. C. ¥. But the Queftion is, Whether ever
vou, Mr. Oates, faw him fay Mafls in this Wo-
man’s Floule ?

Oates. I do not know that I ever faw this
Woman 1 all my Life, before the Trial.

Maifieal. He came thete under a difguifed
Name. .

L.C. 7. He tells you he went along with
Pickering.

Qates. Pickering ferv’d the Mafs.

L C.7. Well, call your Witnefles, if yon have
any other,

Mar/hal, Y can prove that I was out of Town
the whole Summer, from the beginning of April
to the end of the Summer: But if Mr. Oates
will not ftand to any time, I cannot be able to
difprove him : But then I'll only offer one or twe
things more.

L.C. 7. When did you come to London ? in
Anauft 2

- farfbal. T will tell you as nearas Tcanto a
Day. [ came in the middle of Bartholomew-Fair,
which begins the 24th of Aupufl.

L. C. ¥. So it was the latter end.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Well, if you have any
Witnefles, call them, and do not fpend the Courd’s
time In vain.

Marfel. My Lord, I have fomething very
material, I think, to ofter: The only material
Witnefs that is now againft me, was a Witnefs
againit me in my laft Trial : Now I do conceive,
that I being found Not Guilty at the laft Trial,
that Witnefs ought to be look’d upon as perjur’d ;
And I appeal to the Court, whether it were fo
or no. '

M. Fuft, Aikins, That's a falfe Colle&ion, Mr,
Marfbal.

L. C. 7. "Tis a ftrange)Inference you make:
Do you think that every Witnefs 1s perjur'd, be-
caufe the Jury don’t find according to what he
fays? He 1s not perjurd, for he muy fwear true,
and the Jury not believe him.

Marfhal, 1 ground ir, my Lord, upon what

my Lord Fones faid to the Jury that fat upon
Coleman 5 who at their going out told them, ei-
ther they were to find him Guilty, or bring in
two Men perjur’d. Thus it was his Opinion,
that the ﬁndinﬁ of the Jury contrary to the Evi-
dence, did make them perjur'd ; and there was
none of the Court did oppofe him.

Mr. Fuft. Fones. What then ?

Marfhal. And if this were the Senfe of the
whole Court, That a Man muft either be found
Guilty, or the Wineffes perju’d; that is my
Cafe, and he is not to be believ’d.

L. C. }. See how unconfequentially you talk:
The Court might fay, that you muft believe thefe
Men perjurd, if they fivear a pofitive thing and
you find it not: Burt if you make ufe of it thus,
that therefore they are perjur’d, ’cis falfe, for they
are not fo till they be Convifted upon Record:
And tho' the Jury don’t believe them, yet they
may {wear true.

Maifhal, *Tis true,

L. C. 7. Then you make no Inference from
IL,
Marfaal. My Lord, I am bsfore the fame
Court that I was try’d by before, and before
the felf-fame Judges, who know that upon my
Trial he was not believed, and therefore is per-
jured.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. You muft confider, thar
fometimes the Jury will go againft the Direétion
of the Court ; but if the Witnefs be not believed
by them, that does not argue that he does not
{wear Truth, or is perjuc'd : I tell you my Broe
ther Fones might fay, You muft find this Man
Guilty, or think thefe Men perjurd :  Many
times a Judge will fay fo, but the Jury often find
againit the Direction of the Courc; fhall thefe -
Men be perjur’d then prefently ?

AMr. Fuft. fones. There were two pofitive Wii-
nefles, as pofitive as could be in the World, and
nothing at all to contradiét them.

Mr. Recsrder. Will you give the Jury leave to
believe you, Mr. AMarfbal ? For you yourfelf
fard you were a Prielt.

Marfhal. Yes, if I faid fo, I humbly defire the
Jury to take notice of ir, that they are the felf-
fame Witnefles that brought fuch 2 pofitive Te-
ftimony the lalt time ; which if the Jury had be-
lieved, they muft of neceflity have brought me
in Guilty ; I would not fpend the time of the
Court, but I would obferve this; it was all fivorn
pofitively, That I did confenr to the King’s
Death, and other things,

L. C. ¥. You had the better luck.

Marfhal, Then they are not to be believed
now.

L.C. ¥. This s to no purpofe, neither is it to
be {uffer’d : For you break in contrary to all the
Laws of Practice, if we fuffer this as an Argu-
ment, That becaufe an Evidence was not balieved
in one Cafe, therefore he is perjur’d : And the
Jury gave mn a Verdit contrary to the Wic-
nefles, that therefore he is perjur’d in another
Cafe.

Masjhal. This does invalidate the Teflimony
fure of fuch a Witnefs.

L. C. 7. You have faid it often enough, come
pray conciude.

Mr. fufp, Pemberton. No, Mr. Mar/fhal, you
muft not be fuffer’d in thefe Harangues to im-
peach the Witnefles 5 if you have any thing ma-
terial againft Dr, Oafes, or if you can fhew any

Resord
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Record of his Convilion of Perjury, it may be
{fomething.

Marfhal, My Lord, it is for my Life, and ’uis
the {econd time that I plead for my Life, much
beyond my expectation ; and therefore I hope I
may have the freedom to fpeak: And though I
confefs this Jury is not obliged to proceed accor-
ding to the Verdict of the former Jurys yet this
Jury, as well as that, 1s obliged to procced ac-
cording to the appearance of Truth: And his
being found falle in his Teftimony the laft time,
fhould make him of no Credit here.

My, Fuft, Dolben. It is not fo, they are not to
take notice of it, unlefs you bring them a Record
of Conviction.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. He gave a good Evi-
dence then no doubt of 1, though they would not
believe it.

M. Fufp. Atiyns, Upon what Grounds that
Jury went, 1s unknown to us.

Marfpal, Then, my Lord, another thing is
this : The Law docs except againft all Witneflts
wlo are flrongly or rationally {uppofed to have
a Spite or Malice againft the Prifoner, much
more where there is a manifeft Sign that he hath
a Malice. Now I will endeavour to fhew how
it comes to my Cale: Mr. Oares accufed me lalt
ume of Treafon, and that in the higheft nature 4
if this had becen true, he had fhewn himfelf a
gcod Subject, and me Difloyal :  And the Jury
rot believing him, 1 was found the good Sub-
ject : Now he purfuics his malice.

L. 7. C. You {hail not 2o on in this manner,
and make fuch notorious falfe Inferences; that
beeatfe 1t was not found according to his Tefti-
mony, therefore he is perjur’d: The Jury did not
belicve 1t, might not he {peak true tor all that?
Hath not many a Witnefs fworn true, yet the
Verdict gone againit their Evidence? And there-
forc you don’t mund: Ye are all giddy-headed,
if you once get a thing mto your Heads, you
can’t get It out aguin

K. Juft, dikyns. tfthe Jury did not believe
It, a great many otners did.

L. C. f. All you build upon is but a faife Con-
clufion 3 becaufe the Jury found you Not Guilty,
therclore they found him perjur’d.

Marfoal. Ny Lord

Mr. Juft. Pemberion. Pray Siry if you will
fpeak any thing that is material and modeft, the
Court will admit of it; but if you only go to
rarow Dirt upon the King’s Witnefles, Men of
good IReputation, and Men that bave fhew’d
themfelves honelt, and that have fpoke Truth all
along 3 nc’er a one of thewr Teltimonies but what
1s conhrm’d by another’s; fo that not one of
them ftands fingle, and for you to fay they are
1l Men.

Mzifwal. My Lord, I do not fay they are ill
Men, I fpeak of Matter of Faét,

L.C. . You conclude falfly; and if you did
but mind it, you would never repeat it over and
over again : That becaufe the Jury did not believe
his Evidence, therefore he is perjur'd : Do you
fuppole then that any other Jury fhould never be-
lieve him?

Marfbal. My Lord, I reckon his Evidence is
not fo good; and if I am found Not Guilty,
there muft be Malice in him to accufe me.

L. C.F. look you, Gentlemen, The {ingle
Queftion is, Whether he be a Romifh Prieft or
no? It is proved by Mr, Qartes, that he hath fe-

—

9o. The Trial of William Ruflel, 31 Car.II.

veral times heard him fay Mafs, that he hath
feen him deliver the Sacrament, and feen him
Confecrate the Hoft. He infilted upon it how
often ; Mr. Qales fays, ten or a dozen times, in
what time he cannot charge himfelf particularly
with a Month or two; but at laft he did tell
him pofitively, becaufe Marfhal faid, How is it
poffible I can make my Defence to Generals, un-
lefs you fix fome time? Therefore, fays he, I was
reconciled to the Church of Rome on Afh-2Fed-
nefday, and afterwards between that and April,
when I went into Spain, I heard him fay Maf;,
that was once; but I heard him fay in the Sum-
mer feveral times: being asked, What part? he
fays, 1 cannot fay exaltly, but I think in the
Month of Augnft s if he had faid any thing as to
the particular time between A/4-Hediefday and
his going into Spain, it had been {ome-
thing, but againft that he makes no Pretence,
as to his faying Mals 1n the Sazoy, that can con-
tradict it.  If he can ftill be fhall call his Wit-
nefles that can prove he did not fay Mafs between
the A/h-Weduefday and the April he went into
Spain : He does indeed fay, that he was a greac
part of the Summer in the Country, in Fuire and
Fuly to Bartholomewv-Farr, threefcore Miles off ;
but to that Mr. Oates fays it was fome time in
Auguft, and fo he might be in the Country till
then, and yet fay Mals after; he mighe come to
Town the 206th, or 27th, or 28th, and he might
be here in Augufl : So you hear no Evidence that
contradicts, fuppoling it proved true, what he
imagincs his Witnefles can fay; the lait time
that he charges him to have faid it in the Sum-
mer, may be true according to his own Word
and Confeflion when he came to Town, Then
there 1s Mr, Bedloww, he only tells you he faw
him m a Prielt’s Habit, but he did not fee him
execute the Office of a Prieft, but he looked up-
on him as a Prieft, called him Fathier: and that is
all that he charges him with ; that is concurring
Evidence, and backs Mr. Oates, but alone per-
haps it would be very weak. But they fer up
here Praunce, and he fays diretly, that ac the
Trial he did confefs himfelf to be a Prieft ; and
he feems to deny 1t, and would appeal to the
Court; but his appealing to the Court would
not help him 1 that Cafe, So I leave this to
you upon this Evidence ; if you believe Mr. Oales,
that fwears he faw lim before he went into Spain,
and after, fay Mafs, with the concurring Evidence
of Mr. Bedlery, that faw him in his Habit, and
with the {ubfequent Evidence of thofe two more
that do fwear that he did fay fo, you muit find
him Guilty ; and 2 Man’s own Confeffion is Evi-
dence againft himfelf ; and if Mr. Masfbal will
recollect himfelf, he would not be too pofitive
in that Point,  If all thefe Particulars fatisfy your
Confcience, I fay, that he is a Romifh Prieft,
you muft find him Guiley ; if you are unfatisfied,
you muft acquit him,

Cl. of Cr, Set William Ruffel to the Bar. IVil-
liain Ruffél, alias Napper, hold up thy Hand:
You that are fworn, look upon the Prifoner, and
hearken to his Caufe, {5,

Mr. Belwood, May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, #illiam Ruffel,
altas Napper, ftands Indicted for High-Treafon:
The Offence charged in the Indi¢tment is, That
being born within the Kingdom of England, and

having recetved Orders from the See of Rome,
| he
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he did come and abide hete. To this he hath were his, and he confefied and owned em to be

pleaded, Not Guilty. -~
Mr. Serj. Strode. Swear Dr. Oates,. and -Mr.

Praunce. Dr. Qates, Will you tell my Lord and
the Jury, what you know of Mr. Ruffel’s being
a Prieft ¢ - -

Oates. My Lord, this Ruffel went by the Name
of Nupper, and is a Francifcan Frier, and 1 heard
him fay Mafs feveral times at 2/2/d-boufe.

L. C. §. What, in his Habit ?

Ouates. 1n Prieft’s Habit.

L. C. F. When was this?

Quates: The lalt Summer before the Plot; Thave
heard him twenty times {ing Mafs.

Mr. Jult, Fones: Did you ever fee bim give the
Sacrament ?

Ruffel. Where pray was this?

Oates. At Wild-houfe.

Ruffel. \Vhat 1s his Name?

L.C. F. Oates.
Ruffel. 1 do not know him, I fay, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Did he do it publickly ¢

Qates. Yes, In the Chapel.

Mr. Juft, Fones. Did he give the Sacrament ?

Qates. I did receive the Sacrament from him,

Ruffel. Why, firlt of all, I fay I do not know
him.

L. C. ¥. Itmay be fo, more know Fack Pud-
ding, than Fack Pudding knows.

Ruffel. Well then if one Witnefs muft ftand,
1 have no more to fay.

L. C. 7. Will you ask him any Queftions?

Ruffel. He fays he heard me a Month ago.

L. C. . No it waslaft Summer was Twelve-
fmonth.

Ruffel. Then hemult prove it.

Capt. Richardfon. Fle does prove it, he fivears
it
Ruffel. Well, I can make 1t appear, laft Sum-
mer was Twelvemonth I was in the Country.,

Oates. And 1 heard him fay Mals, November,
1677, he was then one of the Chaplains of #71/a-
boufe.

Ruffel, Give me leave to recollet my Memory.

Mr. Belwood. Setup Mr. Prauuce. You hear
the Queftion: Sir, Is the Prifoner at the Bar a
Prieft

Praunce. Yes, Ihavehecard him fay Mafs twen-
ty times in his Habi.

L. C. 7. Did he give the Sacrament?

Praunce. Yes, 1 faw bim give the Sacrament to
feveral, and he did hear Contelfions; he bhad a
areat many People about him.

Ruffel. When was this?

Praunce. Two or three Ycars ago.,

Ruflel. Where?

Prauice. At the Spanifh Ambaffador’s, at J7:ld-
bosife.

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, here 1s Sir 2Pilliam
Waller, that took him, with his Veftments and
all his Trinkets, [#7hs was fworn.]

L. C. ¥. Come, what fay you, Sir William?

Sir W, Waller. That Morning 1 took him, as
foon as I came into the Room, 1 asked him his
Name: He told me his Name was Raffel : 1 ask-
ed him, if he ever went by any other Name?
He denied it for fome time, but looking amongft
fome of his Papers, 1 found fome Letters di-
rected to him by the Name of Napper; and
then he did confefs his Name was William Ruffe!
Napper. Searching among his Clothes, I fourd
fome Religious Habits; I asked him, if they

his. .
.Rzgﬂ&l. It was in my Cuftody ; it was none of
Imine,

L. C. . Why did you fay fo then?
Ruffel. 1 kept it for another.

L. C. f. But you told him it was your own,
What fay you to that, .

Ruffel, 1 do not remember that,

Mr. Juft, Dolben. Well, he fivears it.

L. C. J. Here are two pofitive Witnefles
againft you, what fay you to it? What fay you
to his faying, He hath heard you fay Mafs twen-
ty times 2

L. C. Baron. What {ay you to the faying Mafs
at the time Dr, Oates [peaks of ?

Ruffel. 1 believe he is miftaken, zs tothe Time
and Year: I was entred into the Houfe in 78,

Mr. Jutt. Pemberton. Then you think it wasat

" another rime ?

Ruffel, e could not hear me at that time, for
I was then in the Country. -

L.C. . Have you any thing to fay ? It fhall
be allowed you, it was at another time, but it
feems it iserue.  Look you Gentlemen, you have
a very plain Bufinefs of its here are two Wit-
nefles that fwear they faw him give Abfolution,
deliver the Sacrament, and heard him fay Mals,
and one fays twenty times: And Sic WV, Waller,
who fays, that he confeft the Prieft’s Habit to Ge
his own,

Ruffel. Confider my Circumitances, and give
me a little time 5 I have nor had any tme to get
my Friends near me, or to prepare my felf.

L.C. 7. Ido not fee any Good time would
do you: I think the beft ufe you can make of
your tine is to repent.

Oates, My Lord, the Court here is peftered

with Papifts; here are a great many about here.
L. C. #. 1f they be Witnefles, we cannot keep
them out.
Mr. Bedlow. Some of them may be Witnefes,

but all are not; and if chey be, they come to

catch Advantages. ‘
Mr. Juft, Dolben. I don’t underftand why they

fhould be turned out.
. Mr. Jult., Pemberton, Let them alone: Be at
quiet.

L. C. . No, no, they will revile us, that they
had not an open and a fair Hearing ; we won’t
have it faid, that we do any thing in Hugger-
mugeer; what we do is done openly and ho-

neltly.

Cl. of Cr. Set Charles Pairis, alas Pairy, to
the Bar. Hold up thy Hand: You that are

{worn, &,
Mr. Belwoed, May it pleafe your Lordthip,

and you Gentlemen of the Jury ; the Offence for
which the Prifoner at the Bar ftands Indicted, is

High-Treafon, the fame Offence for which the

reft have been !ndicted .
L. C. # Then call your Witnefles. -
Mr. Scrj. Strode. Dr. QOatesy and Mr. Prauie,

[(Who were fworn.}
L. C. ¥ What can you fay againit the Prifo-

ner, asto his being a Prieft?
Oates. My Lord, he isa reputed Prieft, and

hath faid Mafs feveral times: 1 have heard him
fay Mafs at /Vild-boufe, not in the publick Cha-
pel, but in another Room.

L. C. ¥. Where do you fay ?

Oales.
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Oates. Once at ild-houfe.

L.C. ¥ Where elfe?

Quates. At ¥ir. Paftoi’s.

L.C. 7 When was this, Winter or Sum-
mer?

Qates. \Within the Compafs of a Year, rec-
koning —-77 and—783 It was on a Salurday
one time, and twice at Mr. Paffon’s, and once or
twice, I cannot tell which, atthe other Place,

L.C.¥. Andin the Prieft’s Habit

Ouates. Yes, in the Priclt’s Habit.

L. C.7. And did you fee him confecrate the
Hoft?

Qales. Yes.
L. C. ¥. And give the Sacrament ?

Cales. Ys.

Pariy. My Lord, as to that he {peaks of——77,
or —~8, what Month of —78 I defire to know.

Oates. 1 cannot confine my felf to a Month;
I knew him to be a Prieft, but I was little ac-

uainted with him, but he was a reputed Prieft.

Mr. Juft. Fones. But you are {fure this is the
Man?

Ouates. Yes, this is the Man.

Parry. Am 1 the Man? What 1s my Name?

Oates. You went by the Name of Fobufon.

L. C F. Did you never go by that Name of
“ebiifon £

Pariy No, my Lord, but by this Name of
Panys Parryis my Name, and by that Name [
wene, and never by any other Name than Parry,
whatever he favs,

L.C. 7. Why by that fame Name you arc In-
difted, and you are the Man that he faw.

Mr. Jult. Pemberton. Wil you ask him ever a
Queftion?

Pariy. 1haveasked him already what 1 would
asx him.

Sir Febir Keilizz, Then fec up Mr, Prauice?

L.C. 7. What do you 1ay as to Mr. Parry?

Presnce. T know he isa Prieft, and have heard
him {ay Mafs ac the Zenctian Ambaffador’s, and
at Mr. Pafiei’s, and ..c went by the Name of
Febiifoin,

Alr. Recorder, Did you go by that Name ?

Parry. No, Inever went in my Life but by
my own Name, Pariy; thatis my Name, what-
cver he fays, and I am not afhamed of ir.

L. C. . How often?

Praunce. Once at Paffor’s, and two or three
times at the Veanetian Ambaffador’s.

L.C.¥. And you faw him give the Sacra-

ment ?

Piraunce. Yes.

L. C. ¥ In his Habit ¢

Praunce. Yes.

Parry. Atwhat time?

Pramnce. 1 believe 10 might be half a Year be-
fore the Plot: And 1 know you by another Cir-
cumftance: You broughta Chalice to my Houle,
and it was whole, and you broke it, and rold me,
I muft not touch it until it was broke, and fo you
defaced 1t

L. C. ¥. That was an holy Vefiel, was it not?

Prauice. Yesy and herold me I muit not touch
it till it was broken mn picces,

L. C. 7. If you had not beena Prieft,; he had
been as holy as you, and he might have touch’d
it as well as you. ‘

L. C. Baren, His breaking was to defecrate it.

Pranice He bought fome Oil-Boxes of me

about that Time,

9o. The Trial of Charles Parry,

a1 Car 1L

Parry. Ido not know this Man.

Prauvice. You were feveral times with me.

L. C. #. Why, have you forgot the Chalice
you brought to his Houfe?

Parry. 1 have no reafon to forget my felf, for
I never did any fuch thing, for I never bought,
or fold to him any Chalice, or any fuch thing;
and befide, fuppofe 1 had, that doth not argue
that I am a Prieft.

L. C.J. No, but if he were fo holy as to
touch the Chalice, he would be a Prieft. Rur
there 15 no great Strefs laid upon that, but to
fhew you that he knows you, he did not mif-
take the Man. The Strefs of the Evidence lies,

that he heard you fay Mafs at the Veuetian Ambaf-
fador’s, and at Paflor’s, and then Dr. Outes {peaks
of Iild-boufe.

Paryy. 1 was never in my Lifeat the Penetian
Ambaflador’s, nor at Mr. Paflon’s, nor ar Jild-
houfe,

L.C. 7. Can you fwear that he is the Man 2

Bedlowo, No.

L. C. F. Then fet him alide,

Bedlsw. 1 had Order to fend for two Witnefies
out of Alonmonthfbire

L. C. 7. Here s Proof encugh,

Mr. Joft. Pemberton. What have you to fay
for your felf?

Parry. 1 have thisto fay, and can fhew it evi-
dently, that is, I have Witnefles to prove, that
I never was at /7ild-beafe to Officiate in the Years
77 and 48 belore the Plot: And for thefe fix or
feven Months that Mr. Praunce does alledge I
was in London, 1 was in the Country,

L. C.F. When? .

Parry. Six or feven Months before the Plot?

L. G. 7. He did not confine himfelf precifely
to any {1x or {even Months.

Parry. My Lord, I defired himto fix upon a
Month.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Fe cannot do it.

L. C. 7. If hecan, let him; we will ask him
the Queftion ; when was it that you faw himdo
thus?

Prannce. My Lord, Iam not certain what time
1t was, but about two, or two Years and an half
ago, I am not certatn, 1t 1s impoflible for me to
remember it.

Mr. Jult. Pemberten. You muft take him in
what he fays; this he is fure of, he did heay you
fay Mafs and give the Sacrament, but as to the
Time, he believes it to be about this time, but
he 1s not pofittve, nor can bein it.

Pariy. He only believes it now, becaufe he
knows [ have Witneflts for that time: He hath
fworn it pofitively, it was fix or feven Months
before the Plot, and I have Witneffes to produgce,
can prove how long before the Plot I was in the
Country.

L.C. F. Call your Witnefes,

FParry. Call Leuferoon and Faceb.

L. C. 7. How long was it before the Plot, as
near as you can tell the Time, Mr. Oayes?

Qates. 1 have heard fo many Priefts, that I
cannot poflibly give an Account of the Day,

Parry. 1 defire to know of Mr. Oates, who
was Ambaflador at #ild-houfe at that Time when
he fays he heard me.

Mr. Recorder. Were you never at Paffon’s?

Pairy. No.

Mr. Recorder, Nor at the Penetinn Refident’s ?
Parry. No,

My, Recorder.
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Myr. Recorder. Mr. Parry was not, but Mr.
Fobnfon was.

Parry, 1 know not Mr. Jobufon, my Name 13
Parry; 1 hope it is not juft I fhould be hang’d
{or another Perfon,

My, Recorder. 1 mean Mr. Fobnfon, alias
Parry.

L. C. ¥. Mr. Praunce, you are fure that 1s the
Man ¢

Praunce. Yes, and I heard him confefs himfelf
to be a Prieft,

Parry. °Tis falfe.

L. C, Baron. And this 1s the Man that brought
the Chalice to you.

L.C.¥. Why, did you never go with a Cha-
lice to this Man, and break 1t ?

Parry. My Lord, 1 never bought any thing of
him, nor fold any thing to him, nor had .any
Converfe with him.

Sir Fobn Keiling, 1 do never wonder at their
denying any thing. 1 would fain know whe-
thr:; he would not deny the Sun fhines now or
no !

Parry. And then for the private Room, what
Room of the Houfe was it ¢

Praunce. 1 took himup in the middle of Cheap-
fide, and therefore I muft fure know him.

Parry. He did not know me, but only took
me on Sufpicion at Random, becaufe I was in

the Company of a Roman Catholick.
Then the Witnefs Lanicroon ffood up.

L. C. ¥ What would you have this Man
asked ? |

Parry. About the Year 77 and 78, wheren
Mr. Qates alledges he heard me, let them anfwer
to that, how long I wis at WWindfor ¢ And whe-
ther I did not dwell conftantly there?

L. C. . Well, you hear the Queftion. How
long was he at Wudfor ¢

Lanfireon. From what Time do you ask ?

M. Fuft; Pesiberton. Nay, you muft not be
led into an Anfiver. How long was he at #ind-

ar 2 N
J Lanferoon. From Chriftmas 77, to Ailballantide

3. |
/ Myr. Fupt. Ellis, And was he never at Londoi

all that Time?
Lanfcroon. No.

Mr. Fut. Pemberton. How can you tell that?

M. Fuft. Atkins. Was he always In your Sight
all the Time?

Lanferoon, Yes, he was there always.

My, Fufp. Atkins. Were you therc always your-
felf?

Lanferoon. Yes. t

L. C. ¥. What are you ?

Lanferoon. A Painter.

I.C.¥. And was you and he always together
at that Time?

Lanferoon. Yes.

L.C.¥. What, ina Room?¢

Lanfcroon. Yes. |
L.C. ¥. Can you affirm, that for a Twelve-

month together, you faw him cvery Day ¢
Lanfcroon. Yes.
Mg. Recorder, How many Years ago do you

fpeak of ?

Lanferoon, From 77 to 8.

Mr. Recorder. 1 don’t ask you that, but how
many Years ago 'ts ¢

Vor. 1L

L. C. 7. When came. he down to #indfer ?

Lanferoon. Chrifimas (177.) -

L. C. . The Teftimony of Mr. Oates goes
to November, and he {peaks of Chriffmas follow-
Ing.

:M'. Recorder. How many Years ago wasit, I
ask ? .

Lanftroon. A Year ago lalt Chriftmas.

My, Recorder. That1s 78 and 79. _

My, Fuft, Pemberton, Your Witnels is under--
ftood, Mr. Parry.

Then frood up the other Witnefs Jacob.

L. C. . What fay you about Mr, Parry’s be-
ing at Windfer ¢

Facob, He was a Gentleman that came along
with me in the Coach to WWindfor.

L.C.7. When?

Yacob. Before Chrifimas (77.)

L. C. ¥. How long before?

Yacob. Ten Days. He came there to take Air
for his Health, he was not well,

L. C. ¥. How long ftaid he there ?

Yacob. He ftaid at Windjor vll A:iballantide af-
ter, he ftaid therea Year,

L. C. 7. Did you fee him thefe every Day of
that Year?

Facob, Yes,

L.C.¥ Why, what Reafon had you to fee
him every Day ;

Facob. He dined every Day at our Houfe,

L. C. #. Your Houfe ? What Houfe ?

Facoh. The Painter’s.

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. However, that is but from
Chriftmnas, and he Ipeaks of November before,

L. C. ¥. 1id he dine there all that Time?

Facob, Yes.

L.7... % Did he dine there every Fyridey con-
ftantly ¢

Facob. Yes. -

L C. 7. Did he never keep a Faft in all tha
time ¢

Facod. No.,

L.C. ¥ Did he dine a Weduefdays and Fri-
days?
:}‘ﬂfﬂb. Yes:

L.C.F. There was one Good-Friday in that
Time.

Oates. Pray ask this Witnefs if he never heard
him fay Mafs ¢

Mr. Fuft, Dolben. Then he muft be fworn, and
may be he will deny 1t.

L. C. #. Did hedine of Afbwednefday and Good-
Friday ¢

Yacob. Yes; my Lord.

L.C. ¥ So, he fays you eat of Good-Friday
and Afrwednefday 5 the Pope fhall know it

My, Recorder. What fay you ¢ Did he eat Flefh-
upon thofe Days? -

Facob. Yes, hedid.

L.C F. You can tell what he did eat, can
you ¢

M. Recorder. Did he eat Beef, or Mutton?

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. Go; you talk like an idle”
Boy. .

J ‘}1’2 C.¥. He tells you, that you eat Meat too,

that is more.

Parry. My Lordy wé eat Fifh, and fuch things
all Catholicks do,

My, Retorder. Ay, the Priefts do, but their

Pupils do noty they will not allow it to them,
6 N L. C 7
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L..C. 7. Well, have you done, have you any
more Witnefles ?

~Parry.-I would ask Mr. Oates, and defire him
to anfwer me to it, what did he depofe againit
me before my Lord Shaftsbury, wviz. That he
heard me fay Mafs in 27ild.Chapel, and there heard
Mr. Coflins’s Confeflion, and now he fays, it was
in a Private Room ; now I have it to thew that
I did not officiate there, nor frequent the
Houle. |
L, C ¥ Who isit that will prove that you
did not come to the Houlfe ?

Porry. The Ambaflador’s Servants,

L. C. 7. Ido not underftand what you mean.

Parry. I am to ask of Mr, Ouates, and defire he
fhould anfwer to it, What he did depofe before
my Lord Shaftshury and the Committee of Lords,
touching Mr. Colliits 2

L.C. ¥. He cannot remember, 1t may be.

Mr. Fuff, Pemberton. You muft not ask fuch
Queftions as thefe are, it does not refer to this
Matter. ’

Perry. He did give 1n, that T heard Mr. Co/
lins’s Confeflion, I ask, why he does not give
1t 1 now

L.C. 7. That 1s a foreign Matter, what have
we to do with it now ?

Ay, Juft. Pemberton. It you will prove any
thing agamnft him, you may, but you may not
ask fuch Queftions as that,

Parry. 1 have proved that I was in 1677, and
1678, in the Country.

My, Fuft. Pemberton. They tell us of ten Days
before Ghrifimas, and Mr, Oates fpeaks of No-

weniber.

L.C. . Look you, Gentlemen of the Jury,
here are two Witneffes againft him, Nr. Oates
and Mr. Pratnce. eeme——

Parry. My Lord, I have one thing 1 defire to
be taken notice of, that is, this Letter of the
Ambaflador’s, who upon the Examination of all
his Family does tefhity and declare, that I did
never officiate 1n any refpect in his Family,

L. C. ¥ It cannot be read.

Mr. Juft. Pemberton, It is not any Evidence.

Parry. Bow fhall I clear myfelf, if the Tefti-
mony of the Ambaffador and his whole Family
be not admutted ?

Mr. Jut. Aizins. *Tis a hard thing for you to
clear yourfelf.

L. C. ¥. Why don’t you bring them hither as
your Witnefles ?

Mr. Recorder, Where 1s my Lord Ambaffador,
why does not he come hither?

Parry., He hath left the Kingdom.

Mr. Recorder, "Then you may boldly fay avy
thing of him, and we cannot difprove you.

L.C. 7. Is all his Family gone with him ?

Parry, There 1s but one remaining, I think
he 1s here,

L. C. ¥ Call him,

Parry. Monfieur Riveer. [WWho appeared, end |
Sroed up.]

L. C. }. What do-you ask him ?

Parry. Do you know this Hand, Sir?

L. C. ¥ 1t muft not be read if he do.

Parry. He is onc of the Servants to my Lord
Fgmond, and he lived 1n the Houfe, and he
knows that by his Mafter’s Order all his. Dome-
fticks were examined, and all protefted they nei-
ther knew nor faw me ever in Fli-Houfe ; all
which: 1 have under his Hand and. Seal to thew.

go. The Trial of Henry Starkey,

31 Car, 11,

L.C. 7. It {ignifies nothing.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Ask him any Queftion,
but don’t tell him what he knows, ,

L.C.¥. Why don’t you ask him fome Que-
ftions? Why, you have not Catechifms in your
Church, you don’t know how to ask Queftions.

Parry. Ask him whether he ever heard me fay
Mafs at my Lord Ambaffador’s Houfe ?

L.C. §. Itis to no purpofc if he did not, here
are fome have.

Parry, Then, my Lord, he knows that there
was a firict Examtnation at #id-Honfe by my
Lord’s Orders, whether 1did frequent the Houfe,
and 1t was reported by them all I did not 3 and
they muft know if ever I did officiate there, for
there is none admitted to fay Mals there, but by
Order,

Mr. Juff. Pemberton, Look you, Sir, do you
know that Mr. Parry ever fard Mals at J7ul4-
Houfe ?

Rivier. No, my Lord, T do not know it

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. 1t was in a private Room,
Dr. Cates fays.

Rivier. I never faw him there.

M. Fuft. Pemberton. If you ask an hundred
here, they would fay the fame thing.

L. C. 7. Come, when Matters are plain *tis in
vain to coniend 3 here is the Bofinels, Gentle.
men, here are Mr. Oates and Mr. Prastnce, two
Witnefles againft Mr, Perrzy 5 Mr. Oates fays,
he hath heard him fay Mafs, one time at one
Place, and twice or thrice atanother. Mr. Prauice
hath heard him often, and Mr., Praunce does tell
you plainly, that he cannot err, that he is not
millaken n the Man, for he came to his Houle
with a Chalice, and broke it there, and he knew
him fo well, that meetrng him by chance, he
took him upin the Streets ; fo if you believe

them, they {wear 1t pofitively, and you muft
find 1t fo.

Thei the Lord Chief Fuftice went awvay.

Cl. of Cr. Set Henry Starkey to the Bar., Hold
up thy Hand, &,

M. Belwood, May 1t pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, Heury Stariey fands
indited for the like Oitence with the other Pri-
foners 3 that he having received Orders from the
See of Rume, came 1nto England, and this is Fligh-
Treafon; to this he hath pleaded Not Guilty 5
we will prove 1t upon him. Swear Dr, Qazes and
Mr. Praunce, [Fhich was domne. ]

Mr. Serf. Strode. Pray, Sir, will you tell my
Lord and the Gentlemen of the Jury, what you
do know of this Starkey’s being a Prieft ¢

Oates. My Lord, Mr. Starkey 1s a Prieft, and
I once heard him fay Mals at Mr. Paffoss.

L. C. Barep. When was that? How long was
1t 280 ?

Qates. It 15 about three Years ago.

L. C. Baron. Did he give the Sacrament then,
or at any other Time ?

Qates. None received but himfelf,

Mr, Bekvood, Was he n Prielt’s IHabit?

Oates, Yes.

L. C. Baron. Ihd hereceive the Sacrament, and
confecrate the Hoft?

(Jates. Yes, 1n both Kinds,

L. C. Baron. Will youask himany Queftions ?

Starvkey. He tells me of frieft’s Habits; what
are they, Sir?

L. C. Baron.. What Habit had he on ¢

Qattes.
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Qates. A thing about his Neck, and a Sur-
plice, and a thing about his Arm; he had a
Surplice girt about him,

Starkey. I know you not ; and I perceive you
neither know what a Priefi’s Habit is, nor the
Diftference between lus Habit and his Ornaments.
A Priefts Habit 1s a Caflock down to the Ground,
and a fide Cloke ;3 the Ornaments of a Prieft
are not a Surplice, (as Oafes fays) but an Albe
that falls to the Ground, and other things befides
that.

M. Juft. Pemberton. You are well skill'd in it,
1 fee.

Starkey. . And how did you know that I faid
Mafs? Did you know that { took Orders? For
if 1 took no Orders, it was no Mafs; foritis the
Prieft makes the Mals, and not the Mafs the
Prieft; and then if I were no Prieft, it could be
no Mafs.

Mr. Juff. Pemberton. That is a pretty Argu-
ment indéed ! Do any but Priefts fay Mafs ?

Starkey, 1 can bring an Inftance of a Gentleman
i this Town, a privaic Layman, who faid
Mafs about this Town, and he was a Proteftant,
and at laft he ftole the Chalice, (His Name was
Gardeier.)

M. Fuft. Pemberton. He did well, did he not ?
Ts that your Ufe ?

Starkey. Yes, with {uch Priefts as he,

L. C. Baron. *Tis a great Bvidence this arou-
ing of yours, if he did not {wear 1t, that you
are a Prelt,

Starkey. 1 wonder that this Gentleman {hould
fo well remember me, Idon’t know him,

Mr. Juft. Pemberton. Do you think you know
every one that hath feen you at Mafs ?

Sir Jobn Keling. Set up Mr. Praunce. What fay
you, Sir, to this?

Praupce, My Lord, I heard him fay Mafsat my
Lady Somerfes’s in Lincolw’s-Inn Fields, and at M.
Duiscomb’s, that taughe School in Prince’s-Street.

Starkey. As 1 hope for Mercy from Almighty
God, I was never there in all my Life (except
Pantly) her Houle in Glsucefterfhire,

Praunce. Did you know one Mr. Duncomb that

15 dead ¢

Starkey, Yes.
Praunce. Well, T heard you fay Mafs at his

Houfe.

Starkey, My Lord, 1 was never at My, Dun-
comb’s in my Life, bur at 3 or 4 o’clock in the
Afternoon, and if I faid Mafs there, it was over
a Pot of Ale.

Pratince. 1 have heard him fay he faid Mafs in
the King’s Army. |

Starkey. 1 know reither of thefe two Fel-
lows.

My, Recorder. Come, I would fain fec whether
you Priefts and Jefuits can fpeak one Word of
Truth or no: Come, Mr. Starkey, did you ever
fay Mafs in the Army ¢ | |

Starkey. 1 never did : But pray give me leave
to fpeak ; 1 appeared for the King, when he
had not above 500 Men in Appearance for him ;
I am but a younger Brother, (fecond Brother to
Jobn Starkey of Darley in the County of Che-
frer, Efg;) and yer with an Annuity of Seven-
fcore Pounds a Years, which I bought, and o-
ther Monies which I had, I fpent above 4000 /.
in the King’s Service, (which I bled for before
Thad it) for I got it in anorher Monarch’s Ser-
vice; 1 loft my Leg for him by a Cannon-fhot,

Vou, I,

and fo fpent my Eftate to that degree, that that
Day when I received my Sentence of Banith-
ment, ] had but three half Crowns in the World,
which were given me that fame Morning by
two Friends,

L.C. Baron. Mr, Starkey, you may urge this
to the King, for his Mercy and Clemency, ’tis
nothing to the Point here before the Jury to be
try’d.  Whatfocver you have merited by your
Services, you muft apply yourfelf to the King
for his Mercy, it is nothing here,

Starkey. Pray, my Lord, give me leave to add
{omething more : I was banithed for x4 Years
1nto France, becaufe T refufed to take an Engage-
ment never to bear Arms again for the King : I
did difcover to this King a Plot defign’d againft
his Life, State, and Government : I fuffer to
this Day for it; and I delivered (inta his own .
Hand) eleven Articles of High-Treafon againft
the Plotters and their Abettors,

L. C. Baron. You may be a Prieft for all that.

Starkey. Bat, my Lord, by the Civil Taw it is
a Conclufion, that aithough a Man be a Traitor,
and 1n the fame Plot, he is to be indemnified for
difcovering the Confpiracy againit his Prince;
much more for difcovering another, that I was
not a Party 1n.

My, fuft. Pomberton. We have nothing to do
with that here, but whether you are a Prieft or
not,

Starkey. That T muft leave to the Proof.

L. C. Baren. Well then, Il tell you, Gentle-
men, this Perfon is indiéted for being a Prieft,
and coming into England, For the Point of his
being a Prieft, you have heard two Witnefles de-
pofe; and they both tell you, that they have
heard him fay Mafs, as greatan Evidence of it
as can be, for none fay Mais but Priefts. Dr. Qates
tells you at Mr. Paffon’s. Mr. Prauuce fays at
Mr. Paflen’s, at my Lady Somerfer’s, and one
Mr. Duneomd’s. 1f you believe this, you muft find
him Guilty.

Mr. Fuft. Atkins. And they fpeak too, to his
recetving the Sacraments in borh Kinds.

Starkey. It 1 was there, fure there was fome
body elfe belides myfelf, I did not fay Mafs a-
Jone 3 produce but one Witnels for you, then I’ll
{ubmit.

CL of Cr. Set Alexander Lumfden to the Bar,
Hold up thy Hand, ¢, Your Charge 1s to en-
quire of him as of your firlt Prifoner, and hear
your Evidence,

M. Belweod. May 1t pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, Alexander Lumfdes
the Prifoner at the Bar ttands indicted for High-
Treafon, for that he being a Prieft, and receiving
Orders from Rome, did come here into Eugland,
and abide contrary to the Statute.

Sir Jobn Kelimg. Swear Dr. Oates, My, Dug-
dale, and Mr. Praunce. [Which was done.]

L. C. Baron. Come, Dr. Oates, what fay you

to this Man ?
Oates. | heard him fay Mafs, heisa Dominican

Frier, as 1 remember. I heard him fay Mafs

twenty times at #5ld-Houfe.
L. C. Baron. And Confecrate the Hoft?
Oates. Yes, and I received the Sacrament from
him.
L. C. Baron. And faw him take Confeffion ?
Qales. X¢s.

6 N 2 Mr. Juft, Pemberton.
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Mz, Fuft. Pemberton. Will you ask him any
Queftions ?

Lumfden. What time was thus, if it pleafe you,
Sir?

Oates. ‘That Summer that was before the
Plot broke out. Mr. Lumfden knows me well
enough.

L

- L. C. Baren. Do you know him ?
Lumfden. Truly 1 do not know that ever I faw
him, or converfed with him in my Life.

L. C. Baron. What fay you, Mr. Dugdale?

Digdale. My Lord, I was at Whiteball that
Day Mr. Lenfden was taken; and by the Impor-
tunity of fome Friends 1did go to him, but I did
not know him, but by Dilcourfe he did confels
himfelf a Prieft; I asked if he was a Francijcen,
he faid he was a Dominican.

Outes. He 1s Procurator-General of the King-
dom of Sestland,

M. Recorder. They have fuch a parcel of Peo-
ple, and fuch Names for them.

M, Serj.Strode. Mr. Prazice, what do you know
of Luifden’s being a Prieft ?

Prannce. 1 know he is a Prieft, and have heard
him fay Mafs feveral cimes at 7/7/d-houfe.

L. C. Baron. Was he there 1n the Fabit ?

Praunce. Yes, and confecrated the Hoft,

L. C. Baron. Flow long [ince?

Praunce, T'wo Years fince. 1 heard him twenty
LIMIES,

L. C. Baron, Do you know what Countryman
heis?

Prawnce. An Jrifbinain, 1 think.

QOates. No, he is a Scotchinan, he will not deny
it.

L. C. Baren. What Countryman are you

Lumfden. A Scotchinan,

L. C. Baron. Of what part of Scotland 2

Lumfden. Aberdeen.

L. G. Baron. Were you born there?

Lumfden. Yes,

L. C. Baren. You have no more to fay, have
YOI
J Lumfden. My Lord, I am not here, I think, to
be my own Accufer, I humbly conceive fo, and
whatloever 1s againlt me mult be proved, not
fimply afferted: They ought to give Proofs and
Reafons ; butfoitis, it is but a limple Afiertion
what they fay ; I deflire they may prove it.

L. C. Baren, No, they need not 5 1t is fufficient
if they prove it by fuch Circumftances that the
Jury are fatisfied and convinced that 1t is true;
but 1t is not to be looked for, that no Proof thould
be given aganit the Prieft, but by them that faw
him receive Orders.

Mr. Jufp. dtkins, >Tis 1mpoflible almoft to
prove that.

L. C. Baroir. But if they prove the Circum-
“ftances, that you have executed the Office of a
Pricft by faying Mals, which none does but a
Prieft, ’tis enough to guide them in their Ver-
dict.

Mr. Fuff. Ellis. And they have proved that
which is next to a pofitive Affertion.

L. C. Baron, Thar need not be.

M. Fuf. Ellis. Bat let us not leflen our Proof
neither.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. Tou muft confider that
the Proof is certain 5 for they have fworn an
Affertive pofitive Thing, which thing is enough

toa Jury to prove you a Friclt, becaufe none
others but Pricfts may de fuch things in your

Church, as you have done: Therefore it is o
good Argument and Evidence to conclude you
a Prieft, from this Evidence that hath been
given.
~ Oates. T have heard him own himfelf a Prieft
twenty times, .
Lumfden. The exercife of the Priefly Funtti-
on is but a Penalty of 200 Marks.

L. C. Baron. Ay, thatis, if the Xing will go
no higher : Bat you are profecuted upon another
Law.

My, Jupt. Ellis, *Tis Ewvidence, and a great
Evidence, that which hath been given; for we
muft go according to the nature of the thing:
*Tis iﬂlpﬂmbiﬂ the At of Parliament fhould be
put in execution, il they muit prove they recei-
ved Orders from the See of Rome: But when
they have proved thofe things done by any man,
which none ought to do bur a Prieft; it hath

been 10 all umes ajllow’d to be a Special Evi-
dence., '

M. Fuff. Pesaberton. >Tis a plain and fufficicne
Evidence,

My, Fuft. Elfis. Butif there were any need of
it, and you would have any more, lic hath con-
feffed, upon the Queftion asked him, Whether
he was a Frauncifcairy; No, he was a Daaninican.

L. C. Baron. Have you done? Then Gentle-
men of the Jury, you muft not at this time of
the day be infnared by that Argument, That
there muit be a pofitive Proof of this Reception
of Orders from the Church of Reme, becaufe it
hath been all along accounted, and is an un-
doubted Proof for your Satisfaction, if it appear
he hath excrciled the Oflices of the Funétion;
thofe Offices that are not done but by Prielts :
Now this hath been proved by two Witneffes,
and by the Confeffion of the Prieft himfelf to
Dr. Oztes and Mr. Dugdale : So | muft leave it
upon the pomt of Fact to you, whether it be
not fufficient Proof. But this Cafe will differ
from all the reft, and the Court 1s very tender in
the cafe of Life, that 1t fhould be without all
Queflion what is determined; therefore as to
your Enquiry for him, it muft go only whether
he be a Prieflt or noj for the others you muft
confider them as Engliftiner, and enquire of them
as fuch : He is a Scozchimair, as he fays, and they
fay fo too: Now then there are fome Words
in this Statute, whereupon the Court hath con-
ceived a2 Doubt, whether his Cale comes within
them ; which are the Words about the King’s
Dominions, which now are far more enlarged
than were thofe of the Queen when the Statute
was made; if then you find him a Prieft, you
muft find the other matter {pecially.

M. Jup. Elfis. Look youn, Gentlemen, we
are to be of Counfel {for the Prifoner; and it
being matter of Law, we fhall wtake time o ad-
vife upon 1t before we gtve our Opinions in it:
but for the matter of Fact, I doubt not but you
will find that he 1s a Prieft; and then the other
matters, that he was born at erdecn n Scot-
land, and the other matters you may find fpe-
cially, there needs no more.

Y My, Recorder. Swear an Officer to keep the
ury.

Who.after the Recefs of a quarter of an Honr, fe-
puiwd anto the Conrt, and baving anfwered to
their Names, and appointed thet Foreman 1o
give w their Verdidty he delivered it thus :

(.
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Cl. of Cr. Lionel Audeifon, alias Munfon, hold
up thy hand; look upon the Prifoner, how fay
you, 1s he Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof
he {tands Indicted, or Not Guilty ?

Foreman, Guilty.

CL of Cr. Fames Corker, hold up thy Hand :
How fay you, is he guilty, &e.

Foreinan, Guilty,

Cl. of Cr. s William Mayfbal guilty, e,

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl of Cr. Is William Ruflel, alias Nagper, guil-
ty, {g¢.

Foreman, Guilty. _

Cl. of Cr, Is Charles Parry gulty, .

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl of Cr. 1s Heury Starkey guilty, .

Foreman. Guilty.

C/. of Cr. Alexander Lufden,hold up thy FHand s
look upon the Prfoner; How fay you, is he
Guilty of the High-Treafon whercof he ftands
mdicted, or Not Guiity ?

Foreman, We find he is guilty of being a Prieft,
and born at Aberdeen in Scotland.

M, Fuft. Elfis. Read the Notes to them,
Cl. of Cr. You find that Alexander Luinfden 1s

a Scotchman, of £8 Years of Age, born at Aber-
deen in the Kingdom of Scotlaind, bemng then un-
der the Bomintons of King Charles the Firft, and
now under the Dominions of our prefent Sove-
reien; and in the Retgn of the faid King Charles
the Firft, and that at the Time in the Indiltment
mentioned, he was a Prielt in Holy Orders, by
Authority derived from the See of Rese, prout
in the [ndiétment: And that he came and was re-
maining in Euglend, prous m the Indictment, But
whether upon the whole matter he be Guilty of
High-Treafon within this Law or not, you do
not know, and crave the Opinion of tne Court.

Foreinair, Yes.

Cl. of Cr. Then hearken to your Verdilt, as
the Court hath Recorded it: You fay, {5,

M. Recorder, Call for the Executioner,

Then the Fudges <went off from the Bench, and
the Court proceeded to Judgrent,

Cl, of Ci. Set Liowel Anderfon, alias Munfon, to
the Bar : Liviel Auderfon, alins Munfon, thou ftand-
eft Convifted of H.gh-Treafon? Whar canft
thou fay for thyfelf, why Judgment fhould not
pafs upon thee to Die according to the Law 2

Auderfon. T can fay this, Twould have gone out
of Enugland, but the King kept me here, telling
me, 1 fhould not go; and I had a Protection
from the Council-board : The Bithop of Laindoa,
when I was taken firtt, fent a Letter to Sir Cle-
mient Ariiger, that neither 1 nor my Books fhould
be meddled with, that I had written for the King
and the Government, for which he conceived I
might be excommunicated at Rgme, and that I
was then under a fpecial Protection of his Ma-
jefty and Council; and when I was again taken
and put in Cuftody of the Horfe-Guard, the
Duke of Monmouth fent Sir Thoinas Adrinfrong to
have me freed again: Ibegg’d of the King that
I might go, faid I, I won’t expofe the King to
the worft of Rabbles; but he told me, I fhould
ftay in Eugland, and Mr. Peter IWelfh and | had
Orders from the Council, he one and I another,

tD ﬁﬂy. *
My, Recorder. For that matter you may be al-

fured, I promife it you faithfully and publickly,

that I will acquaint the King with what you
fay. +
Anderfon. 1 thank you, Sir.

My, Recorder. For this Court hath nothing to
do with that; the King is the proper Judge of
that matter, to determine his-own Pleafure as he
thinks fit: Tie him up.

Apnderfon. Sir, I had no notice of my Trial
but this morning : I fent to my Lord Bridgwater,
to know when 1 fhould be Tried, he told me, I
fhould have Ten Days notice of ity now I have
Witnefics to difprove Mr. Praunce’s Teftimony 3
for Mr, Oates, I own he hath heard me fay Mafs;
but for Mr. Bedlow's Teftimony, as I hope to
fec the Face of Almighty Ged, T know him not:
When I was taken, faid he to me, Mr, Auderfon,
Jet me fee your Protection, and I fhewed it him;
You have two Names, faid he, Ido not know
whether it be you or no. And then befides, thefe
are not legal Witneffes.

M. Recorder. Nay, that muft not be allow’d
you to fay: You have been fairly heard and
try’d ; they were upon their Oaths, and the Ju-
ry, twelve men upon their Oaths, without any
Exception made to them, they have Conviéted
you ; therefore this 1s to calummate the Proceed-
ings of the Court.

Anderfen. I tell you this more; they are not
the King’s Evidence properly; for they {wear
for themielves upon the account of Benefirs if
any Prieft be Convicted, they are to have lo much
Money.

Mr. Recorder, The Court heard the Evidence
that was given, and if you will have it of the
Court, the Court does really believe them, and
{o did the Jary too.

Anderfon. 1 am fatishied.

Mo, Recorder. The him up then,

Clof Cr. Fames Corker, hold up thy Hand :
YGU ﬂ'ﬂ.ﬂd CO:]ViéLtd Uf High—Tl‘Cﬂfoni VVhﬂt
can fay you for yourfelf, &e.

Corker. Nothing, but that I refer mylelf to
God, mv juft Judge and Saviour.

Alr. Recorder. Tie him up.

Cl. of Cr. William Marfhal, hold up thy Hand:
Thou art in the fame Condition, what fay’ft thou
for thyfelf ?

Maifhal. T have very little more to fay than
what 1 have faid already: I thought the Law
had not allow’d any Man to have been condemn-
ed upon the Teftimony of one Witnefs, but
required two : Now there was but onc pofitive
Witnefs againft me, the reft only fad, I had
confefled myfelf to be a Prielt; two of them
did fivear, they heard me confefs it at my other
Trial 3 if it had been at this Trial 1t had been
another thing, and there had been fome Validity
in the Proof; but to fay, they heard me con-
fefs it at another time, I humbly concetve, ac-
cording to the Law, bears no force. I have this
further to add, his Muefty, fome Years ago,
put forth a Declaration under the Broad-Seal,
for a Toleration of Religion, and Liberty of
Confcience, whereby the Roman Catholicks had
the ufe of their Religion in their private Hou-
{es. Now I have been informed, that accord-
ing to Law, whatfoever is put forth under the
Broad-Seal, muft be recalled by fomething un-
der the Broad-Seal, or it remains in force : which
was never done as to this Declaration, and then

I lie under the Proteftion of that Declaration.

Mr.
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My, Recorder. As for the firft part, *tis plain,
to the Satisfaction of every body, that there hath
been two fufficient Witnefles, upon whofe Te-
ftimony you are convicted : For whether you
were asked the Queftion or not, yet if you will
fay you are a Prieft, that Confeflion of yours 1s
Evidence againft you, tho’ you might poffibly
fay fo without being asked the Queftion.

Meifhel, Is 1t credible 1 fhould do fo?

M. Recorder. Yes, the Jury believed 1t fo.

Dr. Qates. One of the Jury ftood by and heard
the Words.

My, Recorder. And now, becaufe I will put it
out of all doubt, ’ds not the Bufinels nor the
Duty of the Court to give any Evidence of any
Faét that they know of their own knowledge,
unlefs they will be fworn for that purpofe: For
tho’ they do know it in their own private Con-
fiences to be true; yet they are obliged to
conceal their own Knowledge, unlefs they will
be fworn as Wimefles. Bur now you are Con-
victed, I muft take the liberty to tell you, that
at your laft Tral you did own your felt o be a
Prieft ; and T muft put you in mind further of
lomerhing which you may very well remember :
When I detained you after your Acquittal, and
re-comnitted you when Sir George [Vakeinan was
difcnarged, I did then tell you, you have own'd
your {clves to be Priefts, I was bound to take
notice of that Confeflion of yours, and there-
fore obliged to detain you: Such a Token as
that is may perhaps bring 1t to your memory ;
but as it was hinted to you before, you are a
voluminous Talker, and abundance of things
may drop out of your meuth, that you don’t
confider before they are paft.

Marfhal, >Tis for my Life, and therefore I

may be permitted to fpeak fure.
" Mr. Recorder. That is as to the firft Point :
And then as to the King’s Declaration, which
was the other matter you infifled upon, I pre-
fume it deoes not ftivk with any bedy that knows
the matter; but left it fhould, I would fay this
toit: *Tis very well krown in the firlt place
(I do not go now to determine the Law upon i,
becaufe you know what Opintons and Judg-
ment it receved afterwards) yet this I will ad-
ventere to fay, That it was never the Intention
of that Declaration that ever Priefts fhould come
and refide here 3 but 1t was only intended for
tender Coniciences, as the very Letrer of the
Declaration 1t feif does fhew, not to counte-
nance Priefts and Jefuits, that have caft off all
their Allegiance to the King, and endeavour
both to dettroy him and his Government,

NMarfbal, Pray Sir, will you give me leave io
fpeak as to that : 1f {o be the ufe of their Religi-
on were permitted to Remen Catholicks, that
Religion not being to be practifed without
Prietts, itis to be fuppofed, that the Priefts are
permitted.

M. Recorder. But if a Man were to argue with
you now in your own way ; Pray are there not

Priefts in England, befides thofe Priefis that were
born here? You know, of your own Acquain-
tance there are feveral Reman Catholick Priefts,
not Englifbmen born, that are conftantly here, who
can perform the Offices.

Marfbal. Nay, [ don’t know that; but this I
know, if they be not born in Euplend, or have
lived in England, o as to know the Tongue, Ro-
man Catholicks will be hittle the better for *em,

My, Recorder. Nay, T don’t fay much the bet-
ter, but much the worfe for their coming at
them : and in cafe they would only ufe the Eng-
lifb Truth, I prefume they would not have fo ma-
ny Profelytes, but you gull them with Swf they
underftand not,

Marfbal. Pray, Sir, give me leave a little,
have one word more: For all matters of Trea-
fon, and treacherous Confpiracy, I was freed be-
fore in this Court; now 1 would obferve what
the beft Lawyers that ever were in Euglond, have
obferved for me; That there is no Crime in

Prielthood it felf : Jor my Lord Coke in his sth

Report, 39th Leaf, commenting largely upon
the Statute of 27 Eliz. and enlarging upon the
Senfe and Meaning of that Statute, and calling
to mind who the Men were that were former-
ly executed by force of that Statute, and why,
concludes thus : Hence it appears, that no Man
yet hath or can be executed for his \Funéion of
Priefthood, but becaufe there was annexed to
the Priefthood treacherous Defigns and treache-
rous Attempts. And the fame Lawyer in the 5d
Inihitutes, 22d Leaf, fays, That in this Statute
of 27 Liiz, *twas very wifely and juftly done by
the Statute-makers, to provide, that the Judges
fhould proceed in their Judgments upon tiat
maiter, only according to what is exprefied and
fpecified 10 that Statute. And thofe Words were
a Sanctuary to the Judges, and put in to pre-
vent the fhedding of guiltlels Blood, Now if fo
be that {o great a ‘Lawyer, in a Difcourfe about
Priefthood and Treachery, does thence conclude,
That Priefthood as Priefthood is no Crime, nor
no Function belonging to it hath any Crime
m 1t, well may I conclude fo teo: And indeed,
if 1t had, then a great part of the World would
be Trartors; nay, it would bring in Chrift him-
felf, who was a Prieft, to be a Traitor too -
‘Therefore Priefthood, as DPriefthood, hath no
Treafon effentially hink’d toit.  And when lie
fays, that they muft procecd according to what
is fpecified, he does in the forementioned place
(hew, that 1t was not fpecified at all, that any
that were Executed, were for Priefthood Fxe-
cuted : And I am accufed of nothing elfe in the
World but bare Priefthood as Priefthood, with-
out any Defign or Treachery jomned to it ; And
if, according to Law, Pricflhood be not liable
to Concemnation, then I am not to be Con-
demned.

M. Recorder. Now you have been heard.

Marfbal. Yes, Sir, and Ithank you for it

Mr. Recorder, This long Speech of yours will
fignify but little, when you confider the A of
Parllament upon which you are indicted. °*Tis
true, fet that Act of Parliament out of the Cufe,
and then to be a Pricft is not High-Treafon ;
nay, In cafe a Man be born out of the King’s
Domintons, and be a Prieft, and remain here,
that is not High-Treafon within this Statute,
becaufe Priefthood it felf does not make the
Crime (God forbid any one fhould affirm ir) but
when all that 1s granted, when an A& of Par-
llament hath taken particular notice of the
oreat Milchiefs and Inconveniences that have
attended the Government, and the continual
Danger that the Supreme Head hath been in,
by having Perfons which were born within the
King’s Dominions (as you were) to wave their
Allegiance, and to acknowledge a Supremacy
in any Foreign Prince or Prelate, as you all do,

when
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when you take Orders from the See of Rome:
the Wifdom of the Nation hath thought rea-
fonable that fuch fhould be adjudged Trai-
tors: And this A¢t of Parliament, upon which

you ftand Convicted, does plainly fay, If any.

one born within the King’s Dominions will
take Orders from the See of Rome, and fhall af-
ter refide here, he is guilty of High-Treafon:
And this is not only thought fo by us that are
here, but by all my Lords the Judges that were
prefent at your Trial; for God forbid we fhould
condemn you for any thing as High-T'reafon, if
you had not been within the compafs of the A&
of Parliament: And what 15 Trealon, the A&
of Parliament particularly defcribes, which all
hath been proved upon you; and becaufe you
are pleafed to {peak 1t to the Court, and lay it
on the Confciences of the Court, 1difcharge my
Confcience; the Jury having Convicted you for
High-Treafon, 1 am very ready to pafs Judg-
ment upon you according to the Law, and I
will clear my Conicience of that prefently, Tie
hum up.

Cl. of Cr. Willias Ruflel, Hold up thy Hand,
Tou art in the fame Cafe, what canft thou fay
tor thy felf? &ov.

Ruffel. T can fay this, my Lord, that in my
Coifcience, I do not acknowldge my felf
Guilty of what they accufe me for, but 1 mutt
fubmit o the Laws as they are madey but 1 do
proteft before Almighty God, and this whole
Court, that 1 am innocent of all that 1s laid up-
on me.

My, Recorder, Why, what wer€ you never at
Iila-houje, and faid Mafs there? 1 would fain
hear, waether you, in the State and Condition
you aure in (though you Jeluits have a thoufand
Tricks and Evalious) have Confidence enough
to fay you never were, nor faid Mafs there 2

Ruflel. 1 ought net to accufe my felf.

M, Receider. You are convicted.  But every
thing that you fuy is but an Evafion, and a Trick
to caich and infhare the Ignorant, but People of
any tort of Senfe will not be gull’d fo.

Ruflel. For my Witnelles, you are my Witnefs,
I have but one Witnels upon that Bufinefs.

My, Recorder. The Jury have believed them.

Ruffel *Tis pofiible 1t may be fo.

Mr. Recorder. Nay, *tis beyond poflible, *tis true,

Ruflel. The Witnefles that have depofed againt

me, for my part, I know them not.
M. Recorder. You have heard of Dr, Oates,

Mz, Praunce, and of Sir Williaiz Waller too, Tié
him up.

Cl. of Cr. Charles Parris, alias Parry, hold up
thy Hand. You arc in the fame Condition, what
have you to fay ?

Parry, What have I to fay for my feif ? T have
this to fay, That thofe that did depofe againft me,
did not fay one Word of Truth as to their Alle-
aations, 1 take God to witnels fo_r ity I am a
dying Man, and thank moft hearnly the Court
for what they are to pronounce againft the, and
[ am as ready to fuffer, as any Man may be to
have me to fuffer, for it is God’s Gloty and his
Caufe. Then I infifted upon two Parts, and
complained, Firft, of Sir Williant Turiter, that
being brought before him by Mr. Prauice, and
fhewing him my Prote®ion under an Ambaffador,
and [ profefling my felf a Freuchman, he flighted
ir, which I held to be a manifeft Breach againit
the Laws of Nations, Secondly, I was wrong’d

by Sir Williain. Waller, when (in his ERatiina=
tion of me with Juftice Warcip) in the Prefyard,
Newgate, he threaten’d me with Trong; ¢, if 1
did not take my Qath [ was not botn in Fraiice,
and I refufing, (which none could be compelPd
to) for *twas my Opponent’s Patt to prove the
contrary 3 and who can prove me to be othef thin
a Frenchinan?

My Recorder. No body canj we believe yais
to be an Euglifbhan,

Payry. If 1 be a Frenchinan, 1 am not fubjedk
to the penal Laws,

Mpr. Recorder. Why, no body does: We be-
lieve you to be an Englifman. |
 Parry, Andif it pleale you, they dre to prove
it.

My, Recorder, Well, that is over row. Tie
him up, |

Pariy. T am not a Subjedt, and as not a Sub-
je&t, am not undet the penal Laws.

Cl. of Cr. Sct Henry Starkey to the Bav, Heary
Starkey, hold up thy Hand. Thou art in the fare
Condition with htm that went laft before thee,
what canft thou fay for thy felf ? {5,

Starkey, In the firft place, Mr. Recorders here
is the Man (pointing at Mr, Praunce) hath fworn
two Lies at one Breath,

M. Recorder. T mufl not hear that, Mr. Starkey.

Starkey. Will you pleafe to hear me, Sir ¢

My, Recorder. T will give you all the Freedom
you can lawfully defire in the World, but it
muft be that which will confift with my Duty;
ard the Reverence you owe the Court. You fhall
not revile the King’s Evidence as long asI am
here, by the help of God.

Starkey. 1f that it were true, that I had faid
Mafs at my Lady Seomerfer’s and Mr. Dencomb’s,
yet it is not fufficient to prove a Man to be &
Prieft, for any Man may take the Prielt’s Gar-
ments, and do the Ceremony and the Office, be-
caufe there are hundreds, perhaps thoufands, that
have fuffer’d Death for it. And fo to do thele
Ads, is not Evidence of being a Preeft.

My, Recorder. Indeed [ don’t underftand what
makes a Romifh Prieft, nor do I defire it.

Sterkey. But you will give me the Letter of
the Law,

Ar: Recorder. And the Jury hath found you a
Tranfgreffor of the Law.

Starkey. The Letter of the Law 1s this, That
if aiy one of the Queew’s Suljecls foall tranfport
bimfelf beyoud the Sea, aud fbell in a Seminary tuke
Ordeirs, by Authority deriv’'d from the See of Rome,
and fbal] resurit into England, and fball wot préfent
bimfelf here to the Ordinary, or elfe lo fuch a certain
Number of Fuftices of the Peace within fuch a Teri,
but fball feduce the King’s Liege Pesple —

Myr. Recorder. No, that 1s another AL,

Staikey. Then be fball b¢ adjudged a Traiter:
Now, Mr. Recorder, I come to this, as I told you
before, I had difcovered a Plot to the King that
was deﬁgn’d againft his Perfon, State; and Go:
vernment, and did deliver into his Hands cleven
Articles of Treafon, which I had writ with my
own Hands ; (and this he hath own’d, and wnil
own.) So, Mr. Re¢drder, upon this I was threat-
ned my Life and Liberty by the Plottérs, That
the King fhould not be gone twenty four hours,
but I fhould be impriloned. When the King
went, what muft I do? Muft I ftay there and
hazard my Life, ot truft to the King’s Mercy ?

I wis forced to comic along with the King fof
Protection.
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Proteftion, I came to Whitehall, and the King
rofe up and gave me his Hand to kifs, and fo
did the Duke. of Zork, and told me I was wel-
come. I-wenttomy Lord Chancellor Hjde, who,
when he faw me, embraced me in his Arms, and
faid, thou art welcome, Iam glad 1o fee thee n
England. 1 had occafion to fpeak with the Bi-
thop of London, Dr. Shelden, about another Perfon,
and when I came to him he asked me, What 1s
your Name ? My Lord, faid I, my Name 1s
Starkey, with that he catches me faft by the
Hand, and when he had done that, he took me
in his Arms, and told me, You are welcome.
And Mr. Recorder, 1 do fuffer to this Day for
the Service I have done the King.

My, Recorder. Mr. Starkey, I can only fay this
to you, Ido promife you faithfully, asl pro-
mifed the other Gentleman that went before,
Pl tell the King what you alledge. He 1s the
beft able to give an Account of 1t, and is the
fitteft Judge of his own Mercy. But I could re-
commend to you, Mr. Starkey, a thing that
would be very acceptable, and then as far forth
as ’tis modeft for me to {peak, I am pretty well
affured, I might fay, I could prevail for Mercy
to you, That is, as you did difcover one Plot
before, fo you would difcover this hellifh Plot
that is now on foot.

Starkey. Mr. Recorder, 1 have withed a hundred
times, and wilh now, that if there were any
Commiffions, as is pretended, the firlt that had
delivered one to me, fhould never have deliver*d
a fecond.; for I would either have brought him
to Juftice, where he fhould receive his Reward,
or elfe I would have kill’d him in the place ; tell
the King, Mr. Recorder, that I fay fo.

Mr. Recorder. Well, the King is a Fountain
of Mercy, and he is the beft Judge of the fit
Objeéts of it, I will, asI faid, tell him what
you fay. |

Starkey. If the King does not own what I told
you, then count me the greatelt Knave that ever
you fpoke withal.

Mpr. Recorder. You remain now under the Con-
viétion of the Law ; what Mercy the King, who
is the Fountain of Mercy as well as of Juftice,
will extend to you, isin his own Power.

Starkey. Mir. Recorder, 1 have here his Ma-
jefty’s Gracious Pardon of the 25th Year of his
Reign.

M. Recorder, 1 allow that, but you have ftaid

here fince.
Starkey. Why then, Mr. Recorder, pray will

you advife me what to have done ? Nature teach-

eth 2ll Men to fhun Danger; for I was threat-
ened with Life; €g¢. if 1 ftaid in France : Whe-

ther thould I {tay there, or return to my native
Country with my King ? Now, Mr. Recorder, 1
defire to know what you would have had me

done ?

Mr. Recorder. 1 fhall acquaint the King, and
will do you all the Kindnefs I can with him,
Tie him up.

Starkey. But how fhall I do then, when Iam
Jame? I wanta Leg, and I muft ufe my Stick,

Mz, Recorder. Then let him alone,

Starkey. But 1 pray, good Mr. Recorder, will
you be pleafed before you give Sentence upon
me, to acquaint the King with what I have to
fay for myfelf.

Mpr. Recorder. No, I cannot do that, the King’s
. Pleafure is to be known afterwards,  Set Lusm/des
afide, and fecall the reft to the Bar.

Then Proclamation was made for Silence, whilf -
Fudgment was, giving.

Myr. Recorder. You the Prifoners at the Bars
you have been feverally Accufed, Arraigned ——

Starkey. Mr. Recorder, may 1 fpeak one Word ¢
I have prefented this Year, wherein at the 26:h
of this Month I have been a Prifoner, feveral
Petitions by my Friends to the King, and defir’d
to be Tranfported ; for my Age and Infirmities,
and wantof a Leg, did not ftand well with my
being in Eugland thefe troublefome Times. The
King, I am told, hath promifed I fhould, but I
fee no Fruits of thofe Petitions. And pray con-
fider this, that I fhould have been imprifoned if
I ftayed out of England, and now to be profe-
cuted in England in this manner, and to be drawn,
hang'd, and quartered, 15 very hard.

Mr. Recorder., Whether 1t be true or not, God
knows, I {hall acquaint the King with 1t. It only
remains with me to take notice of 1t for that
purpofe. And for my part Iam forry with all
my Heart to {ee fo many Perfons brought to re-
ceive the Sentence of Death by my Mouth. But
I muft fay this, you your felves have been the
occalion of it, and therefore muft blame your
felves for it. You have had the Benefic of the
beft Laws, the Law of Auglend, which gives
every Subjeét the liberty to make a Defence for
himfelf, when ever he 1s accufed of any Crime
he hath the liberty to hear the Witnefles what
they fay againft him ; to call any Witnefles for
him, and to make defence for himfelf, And not
only fo, but he hath likewife Twelve Men upon
their Qaths, that are his Peers, againft whom he
hath the liberty to make a Challenge without
fhewing any Reafon, to a certain Number ; and
if it Thall appear that arty of them have the Jeaft
Prejudice or Malice againft any Perfons that are
to be tried for their Lives, to a greater Number.
Such, and fo great is the Benefit of the Laws of
England, beyond all the Laws of any other Na-
tion in the World. But all thefe Forms having
been paffed, and a Jury of Men, againft whom
you made no Exception, having found you Guilty
of the Ofences for which you were Irdifted,
there remains now nothing more with the Court,
but to pals that Judgment of Death upon you,
which the Law requires, and which is the Bufi-
nefs that lies upon me now. But before I do
that, for I know you may think it a Prefumption,
or at leaft a needlefs and unneceffary thing for me
to take upon me, and give any Direétions to you,
the Bufinefs of whofe Profeffion it hath been to
give Precepts: However 1 think it neceffary
for the Satisfaction of fome Perfons that are here
prefent, that I fhould give them fome Account,
why I think this Law, and the putting it in exe-
cution at this time, is not unrealonable. For ir is
to be known, that every Subjet of this Realm
by his being born within the Dominions of the
King, does owe an immediate Allegiance to the
King, and 1s to take notice by the Law, that
there is not any Perfon hath any Superiority
over him; for under God he is the Supreme
Head and Governor.  And if any Perfon born
within the Dominions of the King fhall fo far
foget himfelf, and what he owes to the King by
his Birth, and that Supremacy which he fhould
maintain with his Life and Fortune, as to ac-
knowledge any other Foreign Perfon to be Sy.
preme, and to have a Power to Depofe the King,

and
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and dif'];;ofe of ‘his Dominions (as every one does,

" .that takeés Orders from the See of Rome) he can-

not but be thought deferving of the greateflt Pu-
mthment. Wherefore the Wildom of our Nu-
tion, the Parliament, at the Time when they
made the Law, found thac the Religion Eftabh-
fhed (that Religion which I hope in God will
remain notwithitanding all the Enemies it ever
had or fhall have) was invaded by fuch Priefts as
yous they found the Life of the Queen ar that
time in great danger, by the Atrempts of thofe
Perfons whom they had made their Profelytes,
into whom they had infafed Principles, that it
was no Crime for them to depole their Queen,
fince they had the Authority of their Pope to
juftify the Faé. And if once Men can preach
fuch Do&rine, and alfo but prevail with their
Hearers to be of fuch a Perfualion, if Care were
not taken, we fhall foon fee an end of ail fort of
Government, and of our Religion o0, But i
as much as thefe Principals were not fo vifibly
endeavoured to be put in practice ull of late
times, though you were not permitted, but con-
nived at 3 yet that is no Reafon but the occafion
of making the Law being revived, the Execu-
tion of the Law fhould revive with 1t. I fuppofe
it is not unknown to any of us, that there hath
been an hellifh Plot againtt the Life of the King,
and to deftroy our Religion, I would to God |
could fay the Plot was at an end. For I muft
fay, fome of you, I fear, had too great a Hand
init: And what a fort of Monlters were pre-
vailed upon to compafs the fame, by you that
are Prielts and Jefuits, who have wrought them
up to fuch a Belief, that Murder in this Woild
isa certain Way to Saintfhip in that which is to
come. And though you item to deny It, your
Practices are a Proof of 1t beyond all Contradic-
tion, which 1s the Reafon that this Law, which
was a good Law at the time of the making, and
thought fir to be put in Execution then, though
it hath flept fome time fince, fhould now be put
in Execution againft you, who have occafion’d
all thofe Mifchiefs to this Nation i thefe latter
Times, which occafioned the making of the
ILaw. And one thing more [ {hould fay to that
Man, who pretends to merit by the good Ser-

—_

vices he hath done for the Publick, that hé thould
injoin a Man to fcour his Kettle, as he calls it
to receive the Sacrament, and then give lum 2
Diipenfation to be drunk, and make another {o,
to promote a damnable Defign, is fuch a Power
of Pricfthood, fit only for the Pepe and his Imps
to put n practice.

But fay no more, in Charity I am bound to
compaflionate your Condition, which with all my
Soul I do, and heartily can fay to you, 1 am forry
to fce you in that Mifery.” It was in your own
power to have prevented it ; but {eeing you have
made your felves Obnoxious to the Law, the only
thing required of mc, is to pronounc the Senitence
that' the Law hath decreed:  And therefore in
the Name of the Court I do pronounce this to be
your Judgment——

Starkey. Mr. Recorder, give me leave to fpeak
one Word : if any one thould have held to me that
Pofition, That 1t 1s lawful to depofe and murder
Kings, I would have killed him w1 e place: Tell
tne King, Mr. Recoider, 1 fay fo.

Anderfonn. It is my comfort, that no one of com-
mon Senfe can believe 1t.

Marfbel. May 1 ask onc Queflion, Mr, Recorder,
before you pronounce Sentence?

My, Recorder, No, Mr. Marfbal, you can’t
fpeak now s but thisis your Judgment, and the
Court does award it: That you the feveral Pri-
foners now at the Bary be conveyed from hence
to the Place from whence you came; and that
you, and every of yon, be convey’d from thence
on Hurdles to the plice obf Exccation, where
every one of vou are to be feverally hang’d by the
Neck 3 Thet yeu be feverally cut down alive ;
That vour Prive-Members be cut of, your
Bowels taixn ouat and be burnt in your view ;
That your feads be fevered from your Bodics
That your Bodies be divided into four Q Jarters,
which are to be difpoled at the King’s pleafure :
and the God of infinite Mercy have Mercy upon
your Souls.

Parry. Te Dewm laudamusy e Dominum confite-
1Y,

Then the Prifoners were carvied away, and the
Court Adjonyi’d the Seffions.

XCIL.  Tue Trial of JouN TASBOROUGH and ANNE
Pr1CE; ar the King's-Beuch, for Subornation of Perjurys,
February3, 1679. Hil 32 Car. 1L

% e IRST, Proclamation was made for Thomas Harriot, 1 - Eckvard Wilferd,
oo 6y Information in ufual Form. Then  Teomas Fobnfon, l | Ricizard Bull,
E{g jh g@l the Defendants were called, and ap-  Charles Umpbervile, » ) Jefeph Reaciiffe
@}rﬁgﬁ%@’ pearing, were by the Clerk of the Thomas Earsby, pJur’s Rictard Cocper ,
oS/ q Crown adviled to Jook to their Chal-  Rickard Pagett, I ( James Supple ’
lenges. Then the jurors that were  Fobu Greene, J LGeorge Rfﬂd:

fummoned to try the Caufe being called, and ap-

pearing, the T'welve that were Sworn, were thefe
Perfons following,

Vor.lIl

Cl. of Cr. Gentlemen of the Jury, you that are
Sworn, hearken to the Record. The Defen-

6 O dants,
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dants, Fobn Tasborough and Anue Price, ftand In-
dicted by the Oaths of Twelve honeft and law-
ful Men of the County of AZiddifex ; which In-
diftment fews forth, That whercas one Thomas
Fhite, alias Whitebread, I7illiam Harcourt, Fobu
Feirwick, Tobn Gevan, alias Gawen, and Anthsny
Turner, being Popifh Recufants, and falfe Trai-
tors again{t our Sovereign Lord, Charles the Se-
cond, by the Grace of God, of Eugland, Scot-
land, France and frefand King, Defender of tne
Fasth, &, the Thirteenin Day of fawe, 1n the
Year of the Reign of our Sovereign Lord the
King that now is, the Thirty firlt, at the Seflions
of Oyer and Terminer, and Goal-delivery, then
held in the O-Baily, in the Parilh of St. Se-
prlchres, in the Ward of Faringdon witbeut, Lon-
dz, for the City of Londen and County of Aird-
ey, were lawhlly indi¢ted for certain Fligh-
Treafons, in the faid IndiCtmenc {pecified ; and
afterwards were feverally Tried by a Jury of
the faid County, and then and there were Attain-
ted, as appears Dy tie Record thereof to the Ju-
rors aforefaid in Evidence fhewn.  And whereas
alfo one Richard Leanghsrn, Eig; being a Popith
Recufanr, the 14th Day of Fuwe, in the Year of
the Reign of our iaid Sovereign Lord the King
that now 1s the 21ft aforefaid, at the Seflions of
Oyer and Terminer, then held by Adjournment at
the O/d- Baily, in the Parifh and Ward aforefaid,
was lawfully Indiéted for divers High-Trealons
in the faid Indictment fpecified ; and being af-
terwards Tried Dy a Jury of the County, was
then and there thereof Attainted, as appears by
the Record thercof, to the Jurors aforefaid in
Fvidence thewn, And whercas one Szepben Dug-
dale, upon the feveral Traals of the Inditments
aforefaid, was a Witnefs produced and fworn on
behalf of our faid Sovereign Lord the King that
now is, and then and there in lawful manner
did give material Evidence againtt the fud 274
Jigin Harcourt, and the faid feveral other Trat-
tors, to prove them guilty of the matters in the
faid Indictment fpecified :  The fatd Defendants,
Fobin Tasborough and - Zue Price, the Premifes a-
forefaid well knowing, and being Perfons de-
vililhly affeted towards our Sovereign Lord
Charles the Second, now King of Luglaud, e,
their Supreme and Natural Lord, and devifing,
and with all their Strength intending the Peace
and Tranquillity of this Kingdom to difturb, and
to hinder and flifle the farther difcovery of the
faid Treafons, and as much as in them lay, the
due courfe of Law to elude, and the Profecution
of Juftice in that behalf to retard and obltrult;
as alfo to canfe and procure that 1t fhould be be-
lieved, that the Perfons aforefaid Attainted,
were unjultly Attainted : The faid Ahne Price
before the Trial of the fud W dhan Haiconrt, to
wit, the 10th day of Fuwe, in the Year of the
Reton of our faid Sovereign Lord the King the
g it aforefaid, at the Parifh of St, Margaiet 117efr-
miufter, in the County of Afiddicfex, with Iorce
and Arms, falily, unlawfully, unpuitly, corrupt-
ly, and againit the Duty of her Allegiance, did
folicit, fuborn, and endecavour to perfuade the
faid Stepben Dugdale, that he the aforefaud Stephen
Dugdale thould not be a Witmels nor give Evi-
dence againtt the faid #7illiam Harconr?, upon the
Trial of che faid Willam Harcourt for the Trea-
{ons aforefard : And that che faid Fobn Tasborongh
and Ame Price, alterwards, to wit, the s2th Day
of Offeber, in the Year of the Reign of cur faid

Sovereign Lord the King that now is, the 31t
aforefaid, at the Parith of St. 8argare: WWetminfler
aforefaid, wirh Force and Arms, falily, unlaw-
fully, unjutly, advifedly, cerruptly, and againft
the Duty of their Allegiance, did folicit, fub-
orn, and endeavour to perfuade, and either of
them did then and there, falfly, unlawfully, ad-
viledly, corruptly, and againft the Duty of their
Allegiance, fohcit, fuborn, and endeavour to
perfuade the faid Stepben Dugdel>, that he the faid
Siephen Dugdale Thould rewra@t and deny all the
Evidence and Information which he the faid
Stepwen Dugdale, as aforefaid, had given againit
the Traitors and Popith Recufants aforefaid
the faid Fobn Tashorongh and Anue Price then and
there falily, unlawfully, unjufily and adviiedly,
corruptly promifing, and either of them promif
ing to the faid Srephen Dugdale great Sums of
Money and Rewards, it he the faid Stephen Duz-
dale would retract and deny all the Evidence and
Information by the faid §zepben D:gdele, a-aintt
the Traitors and Popith Recufants aforetud, as
aforefaid given, and would withdraw and abfent
himielf the fiid Stephen Dugdale, in places un-
known and beyond the Sea: And that th2 faid
Fobu Tasbsiengh and Aune Price, their wicked De-
vices, Praétices and Intentions aforefiid to fulfil
and accomplifh, atterwards, to wit, the faid 12th
Day of Offoler, in the Year of tic Reign of our
fid Sovercign Lord the King the 31{t aforvefaid,
at the Parith aforefud, in the County aforefaid,
by Force and Arms, falily, unlawfully, unjuftly,
advifedly and corruptly, and againf the Dary
of their Allegiance, did produce a~d fhew, and
cach of them did then and there produce and
fhew to the faid Steplen Dugdale, a certain Note
in Writing, the Tenour of which Note follows
in thefe Znglifh Words following :  Being teuched
with a true veviorfe of Confience, and beariy So row

for the great I I did in coming in 8 Winefs azeiqft

the Catholicks, and there [paking things wobish in my
oton Confcicnee I knew to be very far from the Truth:
I think iy felf bonnd in Duty bolh to God and M,
aiid for toe fafety of wmy own Souly to make a trug
Declaration bow Iiwas dratwn tnto thiswicked /1 ion.

But being very well fatisfed, that T fhall create my

[elf many powwerful Encuies upon this acconnty [ have

retived sy fElf to a place of fafety, where T will with
my own Haud diftover the great Wrong that bath
been done the Catholicks, and bope 1t may gain Belicf.
And Tikewife I protft before Amighty God, that 1
bave #o Motive to fnduce me to this Goufeffioity but
a true Repentanee for the Mifchiefs I have done, and
bope God Ahnighty will forgive me.  And that the
fard Fobu Tasboiough and Aune Price, th: Diy and
Year aforefaid, in the Parith aforefaid, in the
County aforefaid, with Force and Arms, fally,
unlawfully, unjuftly, adviledly, corruptly, and
againft tne Dity of thelr Allegiance, the faid
Stephen Dugdale the alorefaid Note m Writng,
fo as aforefaid, to the faid Stephen Dagdale pro-
duced and fhewn to {ign and fublcribe, did {olicit
and endeavour to perfuade, and each of them did
folicit and endeavour to perfiade, and then and
there fallly, unlawfully, unjuftly, advifedly and
corruptly did promife, and cach of them did
promife to the faid Stepben Duygdale, that if he
the faid Stepben Dugdale, the aforefaid Note in
Writing would fign and fublcribe, that then he
the faid Siephen Dupdale great and valt Sums of
Money fhould have and receive; to the evil and.

pernicious Example of all Perfons in the like
Cale
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Cafe offending, and againlt the Peace of our faid
Sovereign Lord the King, his Crown and Dig-
nity, and againft the Duty of their Allegiance.
To this Indictment they have pleaded Not Guil-
ty, and for their Tril have put themfelves up-
on the Country, and the King’s Actorney like-
wife, which Country you are: Your Charge
is to enquire, Whether the Defendants, or el-
ther of them, be guilty of the Trefpals and Of-
fence whereof they ftand Indicted, or Nor Guil-
ty : If you find them or either of them Guilty,
you are to fay fo; if you find them Not Guilty,
you are to fay fo, and no more, and hear your

Evidence.
Crizr, make an Q 2%s,

Crier. O Yes! If any one will give Evidence
on behalf of our Sovereizn Lord the King, a-
ganft the Detendants Jebn Tastoreuzh and dnne
Price, let them come forih and ithey {hall be
heard.

M. Belwood. May it pieafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, the Defendants,
Fobn Tashorongh ard Aime Price, ftand Indicted
for Subornation of Perjury: And the Indictment
{ers forth, That whereas Thomas Waitchyead, Wil-
Lam Harconrt, and others, were Indifted, and that
for Treaton, in Confpiring the Death of the King,
and other Treafons, and were legiliy Try’d, Con-
vited, and Atainied tor the wine; and thatr Ri-
chard Leagbors was likewife Indicted and Actaint
ed for the flame Oifeace: And thar upon thefe
Trials Vir. Daodele vwas produced .and examined
as a Witneis for the King, and did depoe materi-
ally againft the faid Traitors: And the Defendants
knowing this, and contriving and defigning to
{tifle the Difcovery of the Treaions aforefaid, did
hefore the Trial of the fad Harecnirt folicir, ub-
orn, and endeavour to perfuade the faid Mr, Dug-
dale not to be a Wirnefs, nor to give Evidence up-
on the Trial: Arnd after the Trial, did farcher {o-
licit him to retract and deny ail the Evidence he
had given on that behalf, and promiied him large
Rewards and great Sums of Money for 16 And
to accomplifh this, they did incite him to with-
draw and retire himielf] and produced a Note
which he was to fign, and which hach been read to
you, wherein hz was te acknowiedge that he was in
an Brror, and had fworn falfly, and therefore had
revired himieli'; and for this they promifed him
oreat Rewards: And this Offence 1s laxd to be done
{alfly, advifedly, corruptly, and againft the Daty
of .their Allegiance. To this the Defendants have
pleaded Not Guilty ; 1f we ihall prove the Fatt
upon them, we hope youwill find 1.

My, Serj, Mayisrd. My Lord, and you the
Gentlemen of the Jury, I am of Counfel i this
Caufe againft the Defendants.  For the Fact that
is lid in the Indiétment, 1t conlilts of thefe Par-
ticulars: Firlt, An Attempt to prevent the Ewvi-
dence before it was given.  And Secondly, When
it was given, and the Traitors were C_opvi&cd and
Condemned, then to Diigrace that kvidence, and
the Proceedings at Law that hath been againlt the
Traitorss and this in favour of the Catholicks,
Thirdly, The Means they ufed to perfuade him,
which was by corrupt Promifes and Engagements
to him. And, Fourthly, That they had prepa-

red a Note which hathh been read to tne Jury;
whereby he that had fwore the Truth, fhould pub-

licky own to the World that he had fiwore a Lye
. Vor. II

and that the Catholicks had received great Injury
by him, and that he had withdrawn himfelf to
make this Difcovery: And this Is the Subftance
of the Charge upon thefe Perfons. This Practice,
my Lord, is not new, it hath appeared here in fe-
veral other Inftances : We remember what Read-
ing did, and we have not forgotten what K.ox and
Lane did 3 and this is the third Caaie of that kind
that hath come before you. Our Evidence will
be this: We fhall produce Mr. Diugdale, the Per-
fon againft whom tiis Delign was tuid, wnd he can
teflzfy all this Matter. Now he was but a fingle
Perfon againft thefe two Tempiers; and your
Lordthip remembers what was wid in the like Cafe,
two might convinceone 3 and therelore ne thougnt
1t fafe to acquaint, and he did zeguaint Perions of
Publick Concern and Awhority witn this Aliempt
upon him; and he did nor only th's, bui thev met
feveral times about it at chic Tuvern, and thers we
(hull prove whui taey did,  Part of this hatn been
confcifed, for ths hath Lud unother Exam:ination
in another Place: Arsd e Gentlewoman hath
confefled, that th: [d ofier i S ms of Money;
for 1t we will cail v Witrneflis, We fhall nor now
ageravaie the Faolt, it wiil come atter the Evi-
dence given; but [ think it is seliith enough if it
be proved.

* Mr, A, Gen, My Lovd, This Cafe .,
is of the fame nature with thofe that .1 Efzr
Mr, Serjeait hath mentioned of Read- o
fngy and Knox and Leie; but it goes fomewhat for-
ther: For this muft be done 1n Writing, and fub-
ferib’d by the Party, to be produc’d upon occafion,
to defame all the Iividence that had been given be.
fore: And the Subftance of the Note is o recant
all that he had fuid, and aver it to be Hife s and
{o all that have died upon that Account, muét have
been .fuppoled to have died very unjufily. This
was the Defign of the Matter: And it wat not
only 1n this Cafe that thefe Perfons had beca en-
deavouring things of this natwre; for we can
prove, 1f 1t be néceflary, by another Witnefs,
that this Gentlewoman hath been tamyering to
perfuade him to retract hus Evidence azainl ano-
ther Perlon, one Mr. Parfons, a Prieft in Cuflody
and to bring all about, fhe did prefime upon
Mr. Dugaale’s old Acquaintance with her: They
had been Fellow-Servants in my Lord 4fon’s Fa-
mily, and by that means were of ancient Acguain-
tance; and fhe did prefume upon thefe grounds,
that fhe could withdraw him from all his Evi-
dence. And we thall prove, I think, by another
Witnefs which does fortify this Teftimony, thac
both thele Perfons have already acknowledged this
Fadt, and that they perfonated great Perfons in it
that 1s, they pretended to come in the Name of
very great Perfons, as you will hear, when they
had nothing to do in the thing. They pretended
to go to #Zndfer for Pardon and Affurances of Pro-
tection, and tney have acknowlede’d it; and
’tis in Proot that they were never ncar thar Per-
fon: That is, Mrs. Price did pretend fhe fhould
go down to #zndfor and fpeak with the Duke of
Fork, for he was the Perfon nam’d, though *tis
acknowledg’d, and was in proof by her Com-
panion, that fhe never came near him, that is,
by Mrs. Harris, of whom you will hear anon.
And Mr. Tasborengh did pretend the fame thing
to Mr. Dugdale, and did acknowledae it to the
Council, but deny’d that 1t was true. We fhall
call our Witnefles, and prove the Fat as ic hath
been opened.

6 O 2 Mr,
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Mr. Serj. Maynard, We will firft prove the In-
cgiGtments that are recited, and call for the Re-
cords of the Convictions.

* L.C. 7. Sure they will admit
that.

Mr. Serg. Maynard, We muft of-
fer our Proof; if they will admit it, fo.

L, C. % What fay the Counfel for the Defen-
dants? Do you admit the Indi€tments and Con-
victions ?

My, Pollexfen. My Lord, T cannot tell in this
Cafe; If we fhould not ftand upon it that all the
Proofs be given, our Chent perhaps will take it
ill, I pray therefore the Evidence may be given
according to Law.

L.C. 7. Well, if you {tand upon it, they muft

prove it.  Produce the Records.
Mr. A5, Gen. Give Mr. Clare his Qath.

* Sir Willlam
Scroggs.

[7Wbo was fwerin.]
M, Sery. Maynard. Put in the Copy, Sir.
[#Pbich was done.}

Cl. of the Cr. Come, Sir, is that a true Copy ?

M. Clare. Yes s I examin’d it

L.C. }. Where?

My. Clare. With Mr, Adderley, the Clerk of the
Peace of Middlefex; and this other with Mr, Zan-

#aer, Clerk of the Peace for Loudon.

Then the Copy of the Record of the Conviftion of
Wiitebread, &c. was begun to be read.

L. C. ¥. Let them fee 1t that are for the De-
fendants.

My, Fuft. Delben, Don’t read it all; if they have
any Exception to it, let them make it: Give it
over to them.

M. Pollexfen. Ay, my Lord, let us fee it, Pray,
Sir, you fay you examined this, 1s this a true
Copy?

Mr. Clare. Yes, 1t Is,

Then alfo the ConvitFion of Langhorn iz London,
wos read.

M. Fuft. Dolben. That is the Conviction at New-
oale.
M. Juft. Pemberton, Well, go on with the reft
Nnow,

L. C. . Go on with the Evidence, :

M. Fuft. Pemberton. Who do you begin with?
Who do you call firlt?

M. Belweod. Mr. Dugdale, my Lord.

[#Vho was fwern.]

Price. Stand nearer me, Mr. Dugdale.

Mr, Att. Gen. He ftands near enough.

Mr. Serj, Maynard. He will be near enough you
by and by, Mrs, Price,

L. C. 7. Come, Mr. Dugdale, What fay you
againit Mrs. Price and Mr, Tashorough ?

Dupdale. My Lord, Mrs, Price being an ancient
Acquaintance of mine (for fhe was my Fellow-
Servant at my Lord Afon’s, may it pleafe your
Lordihip) I coming to Town as a Watnefs for the
King, I did fend for Mrs. Price as one of my an-
cient Acquaintance; I think it was in Fawzary was
L welve-month,

L.C. 7. Is {he a Papift?

Dugdale, Yes, I think fhe is o now: We ufed
to go o Mafs together in the Country.

L.C. 7. Shewasone, butis fhe?

Dugdale. I foppole fhe is one; we had Familia-
rity together, but never *till Fuze laft did fhe en-
deavour to take off my Evidence.

L.C.¥. When wasit fhe firft fet upon you ?

Dugdale, She began to tamper firft the Nighe
before Harcourt’s Trial,

L. C. 7. But the had been before with you in
London 2

Dugdale. Several times: For I fent to her pre-
fently after I came to Town ; but that was the
firft time fhe offer’d to take off my Evidence.
And fhe was then perfuading me to be out of
the way, and not to give any Evidence againft
Mr. Harcourt, becaufe he was her Ghoftly Fa.
ther.

L.C. #. Who was by ?

Dugdale. There was no Body by, but one
}tlhat was an Acquaintance of mine that heard

er.

L.C.¥. What 1s his Name?

Dugdale. Wiight,

y L. C. 7. Then you twoand /7right were toge-
ther ?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord,

L.C.F. What faid you to her when fhe made
that Offer to you?

Dugdale. I rold her I could not do it; for that
I was to appear the next Day, and was w0 give
my LEvidence, or I muft be forfworn: In any
thing elfe I told her I would ferve hery bur that T
could not do, becaule I fhould forfwear m ic!f;
and I was fworn next Morning. It continued two
or three Days, or a prewry while, before I aw her
again.

L. C. . She was angry for a while with you,
was the?

Dugdale. She was afterwards well reconciled
to me, and after fhe defired me that [ would
fpeak to your Lrxdfhip, on behalf of one Mr.
Parfons, a Priloner m the Gasehoufe, that he
might be batPd oury I told her I would; | know
not whether I did or no certainly, 1 fuppofe I
did fpeak to fome of your Lordihip’s Servants;
I do confefls 1t was not done: But [ was to go
ito the Country, into Stafferdiive, and juft as
I was going to take Coach, fhe fent a Meffen-
cer to me to Ipeak with me before I went. [
fard I could not ftay to {peak with her thar Morn-
ing, but I would remember her Bufinefs when
I came to Town again: I {uppofed it to be this
about Mr. Parfons. 1 went iuto Staffordfbire, and
conunued there about fix or feven Weeks; I
was there at the Affizes with your Losdthip.
Now fhe had been feveral times at one Mr. Crofi’s
(where we uvfually mer) to enquire when I came
to Town, and did defire fhe might kow when
I came, for the had imporiant Bufinefs to com-
municate to me. I think this might be about
the 11th of September Iaft, my Lord, When I
came to Town, I came to Mr. Grgfi’s that very
Night, and they told me of this, That Mrs.
Price had been there feveral times to requeft
them, that whenever I came fhe might have
Notice, I deny’d it that Night; I am very
weary, faid I, and therefore would not have
her fent for. Within two or three Days af-
ter, I came there again, and fhe was fent for:
I cannot tell whether by my Diretion, or whe-
ther they fent for her of their own accord, they
can beft teftify that; when fhe came to Mr.
Crofs’s, the firlt thing after Salutation from my
Journey, fhe asked me if I had fpoken to your
Lordfhp about Mr, Parfeus? 1 told her, No,
not as yet; but Iwould go ftraight up to your

Lordlhip’s Houfe, and fpeak with you about it
No
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No (faid the) you need not now do that, for we
have a greater Work in Hand; which Work
was this:  She told me fhe was come from a great
Perfon, whom fhe did not then name, to tell
me, that if I would retra¢t my Evidence (this
was the fhort of it, there were more Particulars)
and go beyond Seas, I fhould either be in the
D. of ¥ork's Court, or I fhould be fupported by
him.

L. C. 7. Did fhe name the Duke of 2ork then?

Dugdale. Not the firft time ; fhe faid fhe was
come from a great Perfon, but named him not:
The fecond time fhe named him, when 1 defired
to know who the great Perfon was,

L. C. . But what faid fhe the firft time, 1f you
would retraét, what then?

Dugdale. 1 was to havea Thoufand Pounds patd
into a Merchant’s Hands, to be fecured for me till
I came back to give Evidence for them. I was
to take the Plot off from the Catholicks, and to lay
it wholly upon the Proteftants. I was to fwear a-
gainft fome Perfons, as Mr. Zasberough told me;
that after I was got on Ship-board, I was to do a
areat deal of more Service, and come to fwear a-
gainft a great Perfon, a Perfon of confiderable
Note, whom yet they did not name.

L. C. ¥. But before you depart from what Mrs.
Price faid to you, make an end of her Diicourle,
when fhe told you, you fhould have a Thoufand
Pounds depofited into what Merchant’s Hand

ou thought fit.

Dugdalz. 1 think not that, but 1nto a Merchant's
Hand.

L.C. ¥. Well, what fhould you do for it ?

Dugdale. 1 was to retract all my Evidence, and
to be no Witnefs againft them; but before I
would much encourage this, I went to my Lord
that was then Prefident of the Council, my Lord
Shaftsbur ;.

L. C §. Who was by when this Difcourfe was?
was the third Perfon by, you {peak of ?

Dugdale. There were others by afterward 3
but thiere was no Body but we two together, I
think at thac time:  But [ went to that Noble
Lord my ULord Shaftshary, and acquainted him
and Mr. HawzJen and Mr. Clarlion with it: For
She threained, that all tne King's Evidence would
in a fhort time be harg’d; and if I would come
over to them, it fhouid all be turned upon the
Proteftants.  The Dake had a wile Couniel, and
had contrived it fo, that if I would come over
to them, there would not be a Papift thac thould
fuffer more: but their Religion fhould be efta-
blithed in half a Year, and all the Witnefles
brought to cordign Punithment. When I ac-
quainted thefe Perlons I named with this, and
communicated it to them, they thought fir I
fhould go on a little with her to trepan her, to
fee whet kind of Plot it was they were defign-
ing; and I did give Encouragement; but not
{o far us to fet my Hand to any Paper. Butwhen
it did come out, the Contrivance they {poke of
did prove Mr. Dangerfield’s Plot, as appear’d af-
terwards. So, as I was faying, I did encourage
this to Mrs. Price, to fee what I could get out of
hers for I knew their Plots were dangerous and
barbarous when I was amongft them ; but I ne-
ver defign’d to profecute them at any Bar, but
only to know the Depth of therr Contrivance.
And thefe Gentlemen thought it very fit I {hould
have fome Evidence to teflify for my Innocency,
if they fhould profecute me: And Idid get two

Perfons, one Dr. Chamberian and his Clerk, who
were to be ina private place to over-hear what
was the Communication berween us; and when
I had placed them, I asked Virs, Price, whether
I firlt began the Tampering or fhe, the anlver-
ed fhe did, and I reckon’d up all the Head; of
our former Treaties, thougii not the Particu-
lars, .

L. C.¥. When did Mr. Tasberough Grft appear
in this Vatter?

Dugdale. My Lord, he never appeared but twice,
and it was about the 12th of Ofeber, I think,
the firft time. Weappointed to meet at the Greex
Lettice, that was with Mrs, Price, for I never faw
the Face of Mr. Tasborongd before that time, and
from thence we adjourned to the Pheafant in Fil-
ler’s Rents,

L.C. ¥%. There was the firlt time you met with
Mr. Tasborough, you fay ?

Duygdale, Yes, my Lord.

L.C. #. What Difcourfe had you with him
when you firft met him?

Dugdalz. My Lord, when we came there, Mr.
Tasborough was at firll plealed to open the B 1inel
to me, that Mrs. Price had acquuiited hun tisar
I would come over to them, I daca good while
and faid nothing, and when [ did fpeal:, I did
rather give Encouragement than fpeak aguinft
It.

L. C. ¥. What did he tell you?
Drugdale. He faid, he was brought there to con-
firm what Mrs. £7ice had promiied me.

L. C 7 Dud he fay iv?

Dugdale, Yes, becaufe I would not take it upon
her Word alone, but defired to have fome other
fufficient Pericn; and fhe told me, he was an ho-
neft fufficient Gentlentan, and I might confide in
him, and he faid, what fhe had promifed, ihould
certainly be made goed, and that he came likewife
from the Duke of 22+, as he fd, o conhirm
thofe Promifes had been made me of his Encoura-
gement and Protection.

L. C. % Did he exprefs particularly of what
thouid be made good ?

Dugdale. My Lord, in general.

L.C. ¥ Did he mention the Money that was
to be paid into the Merchand’s Hands ?

Dugaale. In general Words only, all would be
made good.

L. C. ¥ Then he did not fay, the Money, bur
what had been faid to you by lier thould be made
good ?

Dugdele. We had fome Particulars mentioned,
but I cannot pofitively remember which,

My, Attorney General, 1 defire, my Lord, the
Jury may take notice of this, that what the had
promifed, was, 1t he would retract his Bvi-
dence.

My, Fuft. Dolben. Did he intimate that ¢

Dugdele The fecond time when he came, ~——

L. C. ¥ But before you come to the fecond
time, let us make an end of the firft: Repear
what he told you, when he came to you. You
fay, he faid 1 am informed by this Gentlewo-
man, that you intend to come over to us; what
then?

Digdefe. He told me a great many things
for my Encouragement; if I did come, that it
was a very charitable Aé, and 1t was nothing
but what was acted like a Chriftian; and if 1 had
done amifs, I might have Pardon for it; and he

did fay, he was encowraged by more than the
Duke
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Duke of 2ork, that had taken my matter into Con-

fideration.
L. C F. What, was it ir general Words?

Dugdale. It was, if I would come over and re-
tract what Evidene I had given. And he faid what-
ever things had been promifed me fhould be fure
to be made good. Then my Lord, the fecond
time, we did adjourn till Tuz/dey tfollowing ; and
then we met (as I think) at the &ix Cars in Hc-
bourn, and it was pretty late thar time we met; fo
Mr. 7. asborough and Mrs. Price did tell me 1t was
the laft time they were to come.

L.C. F. What, the fecond time of Tm&araz{gb'
coming

Dr;gda[e Yes, my Lord, and they offered me
this Note. I had the Note before left with me to
confider of 1.

L.C.¥. Who had gaven you the Note ?

Dugdale. Wrs. Price gave me the Note,

L. C 7. Did Mr. Tashes ough leave you before
the Note was given you? For look you, wien he

told you about recracting your Evide..ce, and that
this 15 nothing but what you may lawial Jy do, ’tis
a Chartable Act—

Dirgdale. That was the firflt time, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Did he produce the Noie then 2

Degdale. He and fhe together did.

L.C 7. Who was 1t had it 2

D:fngfZ[E Mis, Price had it from me, and pro-
duced it before Mr, Tasborougl’s Face.

I, C. 7. Did fhe giveit to him to read ?

Dugdale. Mr. 7. m!zaraf{gh did read 1t, and reading
it hid, this Is nothing but what you may wau]ly
do; there is no Hun: In It.

L. C. ¥. And then he went away and left you
and Mrs, Price together; what became of the
Note ?

Dusdale. Then Mrs, Piice, after fome Impor-
tunity, left the Note with me, and I delivered it
to Ur. Chamberlain to copy out.  And Mr. Taf-
borough and Mrs. Price at the fecond Meeting told
me, that was the lalt Time of meeting, and if I
did not then fign ir, it would be much to my
Prejudice; and that they thould not be able to
do any thing for my Advantage, 1f I did not
(ign :t before the Duke went into Seatiand. He
was then going, and it fhould be much for my
Benefic if I ﬁrrncd it firlt; but Mr. Tasborough
faid, he could do me no more Service except I
did that.

L. C. F. He fad, that that was the lalt time,
and if you would do it, it would be for your Ad-

vantage.
nggdafe Yes, my Lord.
L.C. . What fad you then, did they produce
the Note again?
Dug dale, M y Lord, the Note was celivered to
Mrs. P? 7ce, and fhe brmﬂ*ht it thither for me to

fign it, and lJaid 1t upon the Table, and preffed me

to fign 1t. |
L.C. 7. 1 thought you had faid fhe had given

you the Note ?
Dugdale. Yes, but I gave 1t her again before

we met the fecand time.

L. C. 7. And who produced 1t then?

Dugdale. She again the fecond time. Butmy
Lord, we have mifled one thing about Mrs. Price.
When fhe was pbrfmdmcr me, {he made ufe of
the Dake of ¥or¥’s Name, and fud, fhe would
co down to /Pundfor to perfuade th(, Duke that
I fhould have my Pardon: Accordingly fhe did
o0, as I believe; for fhe took Coach at Chariig-

Crofs, and, as fthe faid, did go to Z7iudfar, and
brougnt me Word back again, that the Dake did
not feem to countenance it much, for fear he
thould be drawn mto 2 Premunize himlelfs and
then fhe told me the Dake did wifh her to ac-
quaint the Spemfs Ambaffador with ity and fhe
did go and acquaint him with it, as the told me,
I asked her when I fhouid go to fpcak with the
Ambaffador about ity fhe told me that the Spa-
4ify Ambaffador could not {peak Euglifh, and it
was not {afe to trult an Interpreter that they did
not know and fo 1t was to be delerred a little
longer; but fhe fud, that he would proteét me,
'md chac all that the fid chat che Duke had pro-
mifed for my Reward, and for my fafe going be-
yond Sea, he would be ready todo ir; and (he
tokl me, that the Spamifh Ambaffador would
write Letters into Fandeis,  And fo they made
ufe of the Duke of Zuord’s Name; but I could
never find by any thing, nor can fw, though they
made ufe of the Dake of ks Nume, that he
did countenance any fuch thing, or ever krew
of 1t.

L.C. 7. How long was this before the Duke
went away !

Dugdale. It was about the twelfth or fourteenth
of Offober. The Duke went the beginning of
November from hence,

L. C. 5. Sir Themas Doleinen, do you know when
the King came to Town from WWiudfer ?

Stir Thomas Dslemen. No, 1 do not know,

Dugdale. Tt was belore the Duke weat over in-
to Flonders that the Kir ngwas at#uafor.  For the
King and the Duke of 2%k came trom Hindfor,
and “then the Duke went to Flanders again, and
then fhe went, as fhe {nid, to Windfor, and came
home either the Day the Duke came from Windfor,
or the Day after. '

L. C. ¥. Her Diucourfe when fhe went to
Windfer, was before the Duke went into Flau-
deis ¢

Mr. Juff. Peiberton. The fecond Time, you
mean.

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord, the fecond Time, For
may it pleale your Lordihip, I do remember now,
that the Day when the Duke of 2%r& came back
again from Fanders, I think it was the twelfth of
Ochzrr, that was the Time that I faw Mr, Tafs
boraugh firft, and that was the Time they produced
the Note, and I fhall produce fome Witnefies to
prove that he had Dilcourfe with me then.

L.C. 7. T would only know the Time when
fhe told you the went to //indfer, to {peak with the
Duke of o2 ¢

Dugdele. My Lord, to the beft of my Re-
membrance, and as I think, 1t was the Day be-
fore the King came from //indfor, that {he went
down.

My, Fuff. Pemberton. He cannot {wear toa Day,
’tis haid to put hum to that,

L. C.}. He 1s not asked to a Day, but we
would be at fome Certainty about the Time, s
near as we can,

Dugdsle. My Lord, this I dare politively fay,
fhe went down of a Tucfiay, and that was rhc
Day before the Dake of 2w came from //7ini-

far,

My Tuft. Peamberton. He does give us the Time
as near as pb! 11'.;);}:' he can.

Mr. Az Gen, Have you a Copy of the Note,
Mr. D:ffrdaie 4
D'fadra!e Yes, my Lord, I have,
Mr.
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My, Serj. Maynard, Now we will prove that

Nore.
My, Art. Gen. For the Note itfelf, your Lord-

{hip obferves, Mrs. Price had the Original back
again, but your Lordthip hears Dr. Chamberlain
rook a Copy of 1t, and he will prove it,

Thenr Dy. Chamberlain was [fworn.

L.C.F. Did fhe fhew you the Note at the
Time that fhe went to the Duke to #ndfer 2

Dugdale. The Note was produc’d when the
Duke came from Flanders, the Day 1 think he
came, and that was in OfSeder.

L.C. 7. When did Tasgorough and fhe meet
with you ¢

Dugdele. When the Duoke of 2ork came back
{rom Flanders. -

L.C.%¥. When was that?

Dugdale, My Lord, 1think it was the Twelfth
of Oéteber. Mrs. Price had appointed Mr, Tasdo-
rongh to come to confirm what fhe had faid before,
which was the Time that I faw ium firit,

L. C. 7. When was that?

Dugdele. The very Day the Duke came from

Elanders, as 1 think.
L.C. 7. Well then, fhe talked to you of the

Duke of Fork, and going to Windfer, before ever
you faw Tasborough.

Dugdale, Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Fufpt. Pemberton. And fo his Evidence

was.
L. C. 7. Sothen here is the Matter, that the

Jury may underftand the Evidence: She foli-
cited him the firlt Day before Farcour?’s Trial :
Then the next was three or four Days after the
Trial; and then fhe endeavoured to perfuade
you to reiract your luvidence, and go beyond
Sea.

M. Fuft. Pemberton. No, my Lord, that was
only to get the Man buailed that was 1n the Gate-
Houfe.

L. C. 7. Dud fhe not the {econd Time propofe
that ¢ |

Duzgdale. No, my Lord, not till I came forth
out of the Country again,

L.C. % Then you went into the Country be-
fore the grear Matier was {poken to?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. And then fhe left word at the Houfe,
that {ke might know when you came, and when
fhe met with you, [he began to tamper with you,
and faid you fhould have 1000/, paid into fome

terchant’s Hand, and be well look’d upon, and
after that the faid {he would go down to the Duke
to Windfor.

M. Fuff. Pemberton, But at that Time fhe
told him, he fhould have a Place in the Duke’s
Court.

L.C:F. Did fhe produce the Note the firft
Time you faw Tasborotgh?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord, the Note was pro-
duced the firft Time. |

L.C. 7. Aud Tasborongh read 1t 2

Dusdele. Yes, he read 1t

L. . # And faid you might lawfully do it ?

Dugdeie. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. % When was the fecond Time ?

Dugdale, It was witlun a few Days after, about
two or tice Days.

L.C.¥. You are not asked to a Day, was the
Note produced a fecond Tiume £

Dugdale, Yes.

L. C. ¥. And then he was upon the fame Mat-

ter ftill, when you fwear the Note was produc’d
the fecond Time?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord. }
L.C. 7 And then he faid, this is the laft

Time we muit offer it to you, if you do not do it
now, I can do you no good.

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord.
L. C. 7. But her Difcourfe was before all this,

that fhe would go down to Windfer and get your
Pardon?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Juff. Jones. Before your Acquaintance with
Tastorough?

Dugdale. s, before ever I faw him.,
Mr. Fuff. Pemberton, T asbsiongh was to cone

firm 1t

Dugaale. Yes, for I made fome Scruplés dbout
ity for they faid before the Duke would believe
me real, I muft fubfribe the Note, which I
would not do without further Affurance.  She
pronufed a Perion of good Sufficiency and Qua-
lity thould engage for the Performance, and one
Mr. Pertins, as the faid, was to be fent for, and
was fent for out of the Country, and 272 103,
expended 10 feading for him.  And T faid to
Mrs. Price when 1000/ was propofed, Lord i
Heaven! that is too much ioney, 100/, is
enough o ferve me; faid the, We muit have a
care how we manage this Matter; for fhe told
me the Duke of 94 frond upon a tizkle Pornr,
and 1f 1t fhould be known the Dule tampered
wita the King’s Wimeles, it would rum him
but fhe faid 1000/ was prepared for me, if I
would go beyond Sca into faiders, where I thould
be mamntained and protected.  But I objeéted my
Fear of the Inquifiion in Spair, which 1 knew
to be 0 cruel a thing, therefore I would notr go
beyond Sea.  Then fhe asked me if I would be
contented with the Protection of a Protefiant Fari’s
Honfe ?

L. C. 7. Did fhe tell you his Name?

Lugaale. She asked me if I could not be content
to be in a Proteitant Bari’s Houfe, and not uo be-
yond Sea? but fhe named no body.

L.C. 7. When you faid you were unwilling to
go beyond Sea, for fear of the Inquifition, fhe of-
fered you the Protection of a Proweftant Earls
Houle, and you defired to know who it was, but
fhe named no bedy?

Mr. fuf. Penberton. And you fay when
Mr. Zasberough came to you, he told you, if you
would retract your Ewvidence, all the Promifes
that had been made you by her fhould be made
good ?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord, and without I
would fign the Note, the Duke and the reft of
the Gentlemen could not be ferviceable to
me

M. Joft. Pesmberton. And he prefled you to do
it before the Duke went into Scotiand ?

Dugdale. Yes, my Lord,

Mr. Belweed, Pray, Mr. Dugdale, what Difcourfe
was between you aud Mr. Yaiborough concerning
the Tral of Sir Georye IWakeinan ?

Dugaale. The lait Tine, the fecond Time we
were together

L C. 7. Then you were but twice with 7zs-
borough ?

Diigdale. No, my Lord, but that fecond Time,,
You-may {ce, fayshe, what a Progrefs hath been

made
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made by the acquitting of Sir George Wakeinan,
even that the Proteftants themfelves are at 2
Stand about their Belief, whether there be a Plot
or no, and if you come over to us, it will over-
throw all.

L. C. ¥. Had he any Dilcourfe with you about
the Spanifh Armbaffador ?

Duygdale. My Lord, I can’t tell whether he had
or no, {he had.

L. C. ¥ Did fhe fay he would undertake the
making goed of the Promifes?

Dugdale. Said 1, Mrs. Price, fuppofe I thould
come over to you, what would it advantage you?
There is Mr. Oates, and Mr. Bedlzwo, and Mr.
Praunce, vwhen ITam gone, Said {he, Hang them
Rogues, {o a3 we do bur get you over, we do not
care, we can quickly do their Bulindfs.

Mr. Sl Geir, Ard he faid, this T obferve by the
way, That if he came over, all the King’s Livi-
dence fhould be hang’d, and the Plot turiy’d upon
the Proteliants. '

Mr, Fuft. Pemberzon. Yues, he did fay fo, that
he was told by the Gentlewoman, if he would
come over, the Plot fhould be wri’d upon the
Proteftants, and the King’s Evidence be hang’d.

My, Scroggs. Mr. Tasberongh did not fay lo.

My, At Gen, Is this a true Copy of the
Note ?

My, Fuft. Pewberten. Buat Mr. Tasborough per-
fuaded him to fign the Note, and Taslorongh did
fay it was a good A&, and confirmed and affured
him, that all thould be made good to him that fhe
had promifed, and defired him to do it before the
Duke went, that he might be the abler to ferve
him with the Duke.

Air, A, Gea, Wir, Dugdale, is this a true Copy
of the Note ?

Dugdale, 1 have read 1t {o often, that I do be-
lieve 1t isa true Copy : And here is the Doétor and
his Clerk, who will {wear 1t was a true Copy, exa-
mined with the Note,

My, Att, Gen. Swear Dr, Chamberlain and Cleave.
[Which was dowe.] With what did you examine
that Copy ?

Clecve. By the Paper given me by Dr, Chamler-
lain.

Chamberiain. My Lord, I received the Paper
from Mr., Dugdele, my Lord, and gave him Order
to tranicribe It

L. C. 7 And that is a true Copy of the Paper
you had from Dr. Chamberiain ?

Cleave. Yes, my Lord, it s,

L.C. 7. Nr. Dugdale, did you deliver that
very Note that Mrs. Price delivered to you, to
Dr. Chamberlain ?

Dugdale, Yes, 1did, and received 1t back again
from him.

L. C. 7. And you copied it out from that Note
Dr. Chamberilain had ?

Cleave. Yes, I did.

L.C. 7. What is your Name, Sir?

Cleave. Cleave.

L. C. 7. Read the Note. [Which was vead as in
the Indiciment. ]

Myr. Fupt. Pemberton, Was this a Copy of the
Note delivered to you, that you were to fign ?

Dugdale. Yus, my Lord, it 1s a true Copy :
Ard if I may not be too troublefome, there is
one thing more which comes mto my Mind that
paffed berwixt Mrs. Price and me: She was in-
ftruéline me how I fhould be convey’d beyond
Sea, and fhe mention’d the way of the Pacquet-

Boat that comes from Dozer, and goes every Tuef-
dey or Wednefday. 1 made a Shew as if [ was wil-
ling to doit, but the next Time fhe came, faid
fhe, We have thought it not to be fo fafe us to go
in a Merchant-{btp, which was the way we fent qll
our Priefts over.

L. C. 7. When was this?

Dagdale. My Lord, it was before the Duke
camme home the fecond Time, 1t was while he
was in Flenders.  And being defirous to know, [
prefied her to tell me what became of Mr, £z0-
¢i5, my ghoftly Father in the Country : It wus a
long "Time erc fhe would tell me; but at laft fhe
told me that he was convey’d over in thofe Yachts
that carry’d the D. of 2% the firlt time over in-
to Flanders.

Mr. Att. Gen, Then fwear Wright, [T} hich cves
doe.] Mr. Duodale, s this the Man that youl
mention’d concerning the Difcourfe abour Har-
cottit 2

Dugdale. e hearken’d, as he told me after-
wards, but I did not then know it

L.C. 7. Well, what fay you, were you prefent
at any Difcourfe between Mr. Daugdale and Mys,
Price, before Harcouys®s Trial?

Wiight. My Lord, I was walking to and fro
m the Reom: Mrs. Price, that Gentlewoman,
was talking with Mr. Dugdale at the Window,
and I was very mquifitive, I did think it was up-
on the Account of Marriage, or fome fuch Ba-
finefs, and fo hearkening, 1 did hear her fay,
That Father Hapcourt had beea very kind to her,
and that fhe had vificed him before he went to
Exccution, and he bid her nor be troubled, he
dy’d ina good Caufe; and upsn this Account I
asked Mr, Dagdale afterwards what her Defon
was, and he fud 1t was to withdraw [iis Eﬁi-
dence,

L. C. 7. How often were you in the Company
of Mrs, Price and Mr. Dugdale? never but that
one Time?

Wright, Yes, a dozen times, I believe, I have
been with them,

L. €. 7. When was the firlt Time that you
heard them talk concerning Herconrt ? they were
always very private, weie they not ?

IVripht. Yes,

L.C. 7. Well, what did you hear the firlt
Time?

Wiight, It was at the Horfefboe Tavern in Chas-
cery-Lase ; and then the grear Marter that the did
defire of nim was, to be kind to Harcourt, for he
had been her Confeffor: But afterwards I remem-
ber, when he was condemned, fhe fiid fhe had
been with him, and he had bid her be of good
Cheer, for he dy’d in a good Caufe,

L. C. . Was this the Time that you were at
the Horfefbve Tavern ?

Wright, The firlt Time I heard no Difcourfe
ot Hurcourt then.

L. C. ¥, When was this? And what fid fhe
when fhe fpoke of Father Harcourt the firft
Time?

Wright. Tt was to delire him to be kind to Father
Harcourt, becaufe he was her Confeflor, They fpoke
fo foftly I could hardly hear them,

L. C. 7 Well, how do you know then ?

Wright, T asked him when he came out, what it
was, and he faid 1t was to take of his Evidence
againft Hercowrt 3 and afterwards the faid fhe had
been to vific him,

LC ¥
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L. C. 7. What more did fhe fay at that Time ?

Wright. 1 could not hear any more, my
Lord.

L. C. 'F. Then ali that you did hear was, She
fatd to him, pray be kind to Mr. Harcourz, for he
is my Confcfior ; and to that Effelt was all their
Whifpering that you heard ?

Wiight. 'That 1s all 1 did hear her fay at that
Time.

M. Fuft. Pemberton. Bur what did you hear
Mr. Dugdale fay at that Time?

Wright. He faid it was upon the Account of
taking oft his Evidence.

L. C. F. Well, what did you hear her fay af
terwards ?

Wright. After fhe was faying fhe had been with
him. -

L. C. . How long after?

Wright, I do not know, I cannot fay to the
Time, for I never minded it, they fent for me
fometimes at their Pleafure; but fhe faid fhe had
been to vilit Father Harconrt, who took her in
his Arms and faid, Do not cry for me, for I die
in a good Caufe; and this I told Mr. Dugdale of
again: And fhe did further fay, If the King
fhould command mc to be burnt at a Stake, 1
would do i, and {o would any of the Party.
Then faid Mr, Dagdale, while you give thefe
kind Expreffions, ycr you would cut off his
Head if you could : Said the, you are a Rogue,
and I am faushed,

L.C.%F. What, was it before the time that
the faid, pray be kind to Harcourt ?

Mr, Seij. Maynard, We call this Witnefs only
in Confirmation of Dugdale’s Teftimony,

L. C. ¥. But Brother, here 1s the matter: He
fays at the time that fhe told Dugdale he was a
Rogue, and fhe was fatished; afterwards the
came to tamper with him to do Herconrt a Kind-
nefs.

Wiight, She {aid many tmes, there were not
four greater Rogues between this and Hell Gate,
than the King's Ewvidence.

L.C. 7. Whar, was 1t before the talk’d of
Harcourt ¢

Wright. Yes, a great while,

L.C. ¥ That is the thing, that fhe thould fay
he was a great Rogue, and yet afterwards tamper
with him.

M. Seij. Maynard. There was fome Love be-
twixt them, and they did keep Company toge-
ther.

M. Sol. Gen. This is before fhe began to tam-
per with Mr. Dugdal: 3 but that we call this Wit-
nefs to prove is, that the did afierwards tamper
with him, as Mr. Dugdale tells you. |

L.C. ¥ And the thing I fay 15, Won!d fhe
go to tamper with one fhe had that Opinion
of ? *Tis not impoflible to be fo, but it is not
likely.

M. §ol. Gen, Tt is not impoilible nor improba-

ble at all, with fubmiflion; who fhould fhe tam-
per with but a Rogue, or one that fhe thought

would be fo ¢

Mr. Fufp. Pemberton. She thought as all the o-
ther Catholicks did, and did defire to withdraw
him from his Evidence againft them.

M. Suft. Dolben. And notwithilanding that fhe
called him Rogue; yet ftill the Witnels fays, ke
thought there  was matter of Love between
them.

Mr. A, Gen. Then we will call you Grofs, the
. Man of the Tavern,

Vor. I,

. you ask them they

Mr. Fuff, Pemberton, It was about a matter that
concerned the whole Catholick Party, and if
will call them all Rogues:
But afterwards they will begin to tamper one -
with one, and another with another,

Mr. Serf. Maynard, And they take the fame
method with every one of them.

Mer. Fuft, Fones. But this is that that 1s faid in
confirmation of Dupdale’s Evidence, that Dugdale
did 1mmediately after tell him, thac her Bufinefs
was to get hun to retraét his Evidence,

Mr. Juff, Pemberton., And he overheard fo
much, that fhe defired of him to be kind to Har-
conrt, who was her ghoftly Father, |

Ay, Sol. Gen. Now, my Lord, as we have
produced one Witnefs to confirm one part of
Mr. Dugdale’s Evidence ; now we fhall produce
another Witnefs to prove the fubfequent Dif-
cotirfes, and her Perfuafion of him to retraét and
to fign the Note, And for that we call Dr, Cham-
berlain.

My, 2it. Gen. We will call Crofs firlt to prove
the meetings at the Tavern, he is the Man of the
Tavern. [WWho was fworn.]

L. C. ¥. Come ask your Queftion now ?

My, Bekwood. Pray what can you fay concern-
ing Mrs, Price’s Difcourles with Mr, Dugdale ?

L. C. ¥. Do you know Mrs, Price here?

Crofs. Yes, I do know her very well.

L.C.F. Whart fay you then to her?

Crofs. 1 never heard any Difcourfe from them
but what was common.

Mir. Juft. Dolber. But they have been often
there only them two, have they not?

Mz, Fuft. Pemberton, Did fhe ever come to

your Houte ?

Crofs. She hath been there feveral times,

My, Ait. Gen, T would ask you this Queftion;
Sir, Whether fhe ufed not to come there and
fend for Mr. Dugdale, when he hath not been
there ¢

Crofs. Yes, fhe hath been there often to en-
quire for him.

My, Ait. Gen. What, frequently ?

Crofs., Yes, a great many umes,

My, Att. Gen. About what time of the Year?

Crofs. Laft Summer, in June, Fuly, and feveral
Months.

L. C. ¥. What fay you 'to September and Offo-
ber ?

Crofs. T can’t fay the particular Months,® but
{he hath been there, and defired me to {end for
Mr. Dugdale, for fhe had carneft Bulinefs with
hm, °

M. A, Gen. Was it prefently after he came
to Town?

Crofs. My Lord, fhe fent for him before he
went out of Town, and after he came to Town ;
before he went to the Affizes, and fince he came
from the Affizes,

Mr, Ait, Gen, Pray &id you ever hear them

{fpeak about a Prieft, one Parfons?
Crofs, I have heard fomewhat about Mr. Par-

fous, that Mrs. Price did fpeak o Mr. Dugdale,

that he fhould not proceed further againft him
than he had done.

L. C ¥ Did you hear her talk about Har.
court ¢

Crofs. Yes, 1 have heard her {peak fomething,
but I do not know the Particulars of ir.

L.C. 7. But you have heard her name Har-
cort’s Name?

6P Crofs,
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Cros. Yes, 1 have,

L. C. 7. You do not pretend this Man was by
at the Agreement ?

A, At Gen. No, we do not: But only to
prove they had frequent Difcourfes together, and
that fhe fent for him often about Bufinefs.

L. C. 7. And’ts to the fame Purpofe that the
other was cilled for, only in Confirmation,

Nir. Sanders. My Lord, we pray he may be
asked, \Wiether Mr. Dugdale did not fomettmes
fend for Mrs. Piice ?

Crefs. Not upon hus own Account, as I know
of; for 1 have told vou fhe hath bezen there,
and left word fhe muit needs fpeak with him,
and when he hath come fhe hath been {ent for.

far, Saiders. Do you know fhe hath been fent
for at any other tume?

Ciofs. Notthat I know of: But when he was
in the Country, fhe came to ocur Houle, and
defired that whenever he came to Town fhe
might fpeak with him abour earnelt Bulfinels,
and {hie was fent for.

M. Serogps. But he does not {ay any thing of
Ny, Tusoorcurb.

L.C. J. No; hecame only to the Plesfat,
and that ower Piace,

Alr. it Gen INow, my Lord, 1f your Lord-
thip plale, Mr. Dirgdnle did mention a matter
that fome ferfons were by Direciien to ftand by
and hear their Dicourfe; we have thele Perfons
here, wao will tell you how 1t was, Dr. Clamber-
Joie and his Clerk.

Dy, Chajiibuilozis, My Lord, fome time In Szplcin-
bory Niv. Dizedele coquainted me, that there wes
a Defign to araw him off from his Ev.dence,
and he told me thar the Dake of 2774 was named
ot Iiad, 1f i were fo, 1t were a thing of
oreal mement, and 1t it could be confmed it
were well, Herold me, 11 1 would come to nis
Caamber fome NMornmg, Mrs, Price fhould be
there, and [ fhouid hear the Difcourie; and ac-
cordingiy I uid come the 22d or 23d of Sepresm-
bery ciad w23 there &bt an heury and went into
the Cluet whv my Cork, and bid Mr, Dugdafe
foeal with an indifierent Voice, to fee if 1 could
hewr wuac they faid.  He did fo, and we did
hear him, Atlength Mirs, Price came ; the Gen-
tlevvoman I had never feen, but he called her by
that Namwe, and {he anfwered to i, They had
feveral Ditcourfes, I could not overhear alil,
but the Sum was, that the Sperifh Ambaftador
was unwilling to treat with him, becaufe it was
dangerous, and he muft make ufe of an Inter-
preter, and that the Duke of 270 vrould procelt
him, pardon him, and give him a thoufand
Pound to maintain him: You know, fays he,
Mis. Price, that T began not this Intrigue with
you, but you propoicd it to me, She owned i,
that fhe had propofed it to him.

L. C.7. Now how can you tell this s the
Gentlewoman ?

Dr, Chamideileiz. Nay, 1 don’t know that, my
Lord. -

Air. At Ger, We don’t pretend that, but will
prove 1t by another Witnels by and by.

Dr. Chamberiain, To was abour the 22d or 22
of Septeinber, a Monday Morning, as I remem-
ber,

fir. Tuf. Feies, \Vas Tasborousd there 2

Dr. Chambirlain. No,my Lord, nonc but them
£\wWo..

L.C. 7. Well, go on, Sir.

e
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Dr. Chambeilain. She did prefs Mr. Dugdnle very
much to go with her to the Gatebonfe, he would
willingly have excuicd it, but fhe prefled him
{o carneltly, telling him the would not go with-
out him, that they went together, and he came
up afterwards to me, where I had ftaid all the
tme.

L. C. 7. Did you hear her fay any thing what

would Dhave him do for that theufand
Pound ¢ -

Dr. Cleiiberlain. T cannot tell truly any thing,
but only to be gone. |

gy Jufl. Pesberon, You could hear that?

D, Chanberlain. Yes, my Lord, I did.

L. G F. Whnther ¢

Dr, Chamberiein, Nay, Idon’c remember thac.

A7, §irf. Maynerd. This was betore the Note,
my Lord.

Dr. Coambeilein. Yes, my Lord, for chat was
brought me afterwards.

My, Recorder. Call the other Witnefs, Cleave.

L. C. ¥. FHow long was this before Harconys's
Tral?

Dr. Chamberlain. I don’t know that, my Lord,
1t was in Seniciiber.

far. Jufi. Pemberton. Bat the Trial was long
before that, foon alter Trinity-Term.

., Sel. Geir. Pray, what did Mr. Dugdale fay
to her when fhe prefled him o be gone, did he
not make any Gbjection?

Dr. Ceambericin, Poflibly he might, T did not
hear all that was faid.

Ciccte. Twas there the 22d cf Sepfeinoer,

L.C. J. In the Clofet with Dr, Chawlirlain ?

Cleve. Yoz, my Lord,

L. C. 7. Had you cver ieen Mrs. Price?

Clecvz. No, never inmy Life that I know of.

L. C. f. Wnat did you hear then ?

Creave. Betore that Mrs, Price came, we fhue
up ouriddves m te Clofet, and defired Mr.
Lugdele to make a feigned Difcourfe to fee
whether we could hear lum, and he did o, and
we heard indifrerently well,  We bid him to
freak a Dittle Joud that we might be fare to hear
him. We {ftnid thiere almoft Lulf an Hour before
fhe came. Afrerwards fhe came up, and Mr. Dyg-
dale faluied her by the Name of Mrs. Price, to
which ihe anfwer'd,  He ask’d hey, When ihall
I go to the Spanyh Ambaffador’s? [This I heard
aittinctly 5 for I could fee her Body but not her
trace, fhe ftood with her Bick to the Door.]
*T'1s not convenient at prefenr, fuid the, to go;
jor his Interpreter 15 out of Town. Thein Mrs.
Price was faymg, It fo be you will come over
to the Church ot Rosme,. and take off your Evi-
dence, you fhall have 1000/ fecured to you:
But how, faid he? Said fhe, [ will bring to you
10 4 Week’s Time a Perfon of Quality that fhall
fecure and confirm it to you.

Dr, Chamiderlain, That I heard roo.

Cleave. That will be well, fuid Mr. Drgdale 4
I had rather do that way than any other, Said
fhe, you fhall have the Duke of 2w4’s Protec-
tion, and a Pardon not only for your Body,
but for your Soul.

M. Sery. Meynard, A large Profier |

Cleeve. And afterwards faid he, If I thould
come over agaln to the Church, what fignifies
my gomng out of the way, when there is Dr.
Oates andd others to go on with. the Evidence?
Said fhe, We do not care fo much for thein, for
the Duke’s Eye s only upon you.

M. -
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M. Fut. Peingerton. Did you hear that, Dr.
Coambeitain ?

Dr. Chaniberlain. No, my Lord 3 the Duke was
named Indeed, but i do not remember that Par-
cieular,  And fhe feveral umes defired him to
fpeak foftly 5 and then Mr, Dapdale vinsilo honeft,
that he repeated it over again, that if ve had
not heard him before, we might underftand
hin,

L. C. §. Now prove this Gentlewoman to be
the Perion.

Clzeve. She afterwards preficd  him to go
with her to the Gesvbonfe, which he wemed un-
willing to do, but wenr; and we have o Man
here that {tood below the Stairs, that fiw her
come in and go out,

Mz, Serj. Maynaid. Call ILehines, [I7ho was
fiworn.] What can you fay wbou this Murs, Price £

L.C. 7 Do you know Nrs. Price?

Holnes., Yes, That is the Woman.

M. Belwead. Did you fee her at Dr. Chain-
berlain’s ¢

Folyes, 1 faw her at Mr. Dugdales that Morn-
ing that my Mafter was there.

L.C. ¥ What Time do you fpeak of ¢

Liles. ‘The 22d of Sepromber 1 went along
with my Malter.

L.C. 7. Who is your Mafter ?

Foliwes, Dr. Cluiserlain 2

L. C. 7. Wiat lbey of the Week wasit?

Holwes. Oa s Adzizzy NMoraing between 8 and
g o’clock. ‘ | _ |

A Fuf Delben. That Is the fame time you
fpeak ofy is 1t 0% ?

Chainberlein, 3 Yes, my Lord, he went along

and Clegve, §  witi us,

Eolmes. Thisis thie Woman that came down
with Mr. Dagaulz 5 1 toolk Gred notice of her,
and Lnow her very well agam: There were
fome Words {poke 1n the Shop, but I don’t know
what they were.

L.C. 7. Dr. Chainicrlein, fhe went out of the
Chamber with him, did fhe not?

Chambeilain. Yes, my Lord, {he did.

L. C. . How often have you feen her 2

Flohnes. 1 faw licr go into the Houle, come
out with Mr. Degdeie to go to the Gateboufe, and
when they came bk agaia from /Zcfuminfier,
from the Gatehoufe.

L. C. . How often have youfecn her befides ?
You took notice of liur when fhe came down
fairs, and when fhe came back again?

Flaliies. Yes.

L. C 7. And this 15 the Woman, upon your
Ouh ¢

Halizs. Yes, upon my Oath, |

M. Foft. Poficiton. She came down with
Dugdale, and would have him go along with her
to the Gatehonfe.

M. Ait. Ger. My Lord, we fay that Mr. Dug-
dale did acquaunt Mr. Hembideny, and Mr. Charltoi,
and my Lord of Shafisbury with the Balinefs 5 we

ofre Mr. Hauibder and Mr. Charfton may be
called, who promifed to be here.

[But they appearcd not.]
Mr. Ait. Gen. Then, my Lord, here are the

Clerks of the Council, they will all give your
L ] " r
Lordfhip an account, it tiis Woman and the

Gentleman did acknowledue this matter before
the Council, and there did deny what they had
fworn at firfh.

L. C. ¥ Who do you {u car firft:

Vor. il

Mr. At Gen, Sir Robert So:utheoell,
U Fhich wwas rfﬁir’a‘.}

L.C. 7. Come, 8w Rober:, what do you
Know ?

St Robert Southwozll, My Lord, fthe, this Gen-
tlewornn, Mirs. Price, was about the 2 3 of Ofs-
ber examined  betore the Counai, and being ex-
amined, we were commanded to take Notes,
the feveral Clerks of the Council, and we did
take Notes, which were long, and, my Lord, [
mult eeter to thole Notes.

Vir. Juft. Pewbertor. Flave vou thole Notes?

Sir R, Sou:hwell, Yes, “Tis hard for me to give
my Evideace, unlels fome paticalar Quettion
be asked me, becaule they are very fong.

Ay, Ait. Gen. Tuen Iask you, Sir, tlus pard-
cular Queftion, Whether that Gentlewomin dud
acknowledge the Paper the 1s charg’d with ?

Sir R, Sextbwdl, My Lord, 1 do remember

- Mirs, Price, when fhe was acleed who 1t was thae

framed the Paper for her (occanle it fecmed to
the Lords as i it had been a thing o very well
framed that it was beyond o Woman's C;fp.lf.‘irx,r
to do it} Mis, Price fad, that the fadied it her-
felf, and indicted it herfelf, and one Mrs, ax,
as Ithink, writ it outr for hers buet fhe ook ic
upon herfelf that fhe had ftudied it (thar para-
cular Word) and conirived it

M, A:t. Gen. What did Mr. Tasborensh fay ?

Sir R. Soutbzeell, My Lord, T do alfo remem-
bor that M. Zasberessd was cited before the
Council-Board 3 and being asked about chis Pa-
[er .

L. C.¥. Was it fthewn him ?

Sirr R. Sontwweell, T verily Dbelieve 1t was; it
was read to lum, Mr, Tasdoreneh did Ipeak very
cauticily, and as prudently a. he could in the
natter : e did not pofitively fuy he had preffed
Mr., Dugdele 1o hgn 1ty but did teii Mr. Ducidale,
That unlets he did fign 1t, he could not proceed
o get him any  Bavour, for that was o be the
Foundation 1o teitity thae he was a Man of that
Sorrow that he had exprefled himfelf to Mis,
Pizee.

L C.§. Dd he own that to Mr. Dugdale ?

Str. K. Serthevell. Yesy and he added, my 1.ord,
further (to do him juftice in all ke fatd) 1 cale
Mr. Dagdele had fign’d the Pager, he would pre-
fently have carried it before a Magilirate,

Mr. Att. Gen. 1 think we need not trouble
your Lordfhip any further ac prefene; we leave
it here uill we hear what they fay.

Mz, Sauders. May it pleale your Lordlbip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am of Counfel
tfor Mrs. Price, that 15 one of the Defendants in
this IndiCtment; which, as bath been opened,
does fet forth, That the did cortre to iuborn
the King’s Evidence before the Trials of thote
Perfons, and to fupprels ity and afrerwards to
recract the Evidence given, and go off from
what before he had {worn, to diiparage the Jul-
tice of the Realm, and to make it be believed,
that thofe Perfons who were condemned and ex-
ecuted for this Confprracy were mnocent, and
had wrong done them by him. Now ior that
matter, that which we have o offer for her is
this: Mr. Drgaele and Mis. Piice vere Fellow-
fervants in my Lord Afor’s Family, and there
they did contract a more than ordinary Familia-
rity 5 for in truth they did contract a Marrage,
and Mr. Dugdale did promtfe her Marriage; bue
alterwards Mr. Dugdate having fome other De-

0P 2 fign,
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fian, did defert her, and fhe came to Lowdsn and
Lved here s but atterwards when he came up ©
Londsiz, he thoueht fir to renew his Suity and did
not only fend for her when he firft came to Lei-
don s butwe have it in Proof, that from time to
time he had contnually fent for Ler, and would
not be quiet without her; and when fhe denied
to come upon bis fending in his own Name, he
fent 1n another Womaa’s Name, whom he knew
to be an Acguuintance of her’s: And thus there
continued all alonz @ great Intimacy betw cen
them, infomuch that feveral Perﬁ}n, and among
them one of the King's Witnefies did obferve
they were fpeaking about mia, ang, and did

'
think they did intend to be marricd in a fhort

time; my Lord, whi Dicourfe mught pafs be-
rween them 1 dﬁn : krow s for mtmt | percetve
the is provid to be a Papidt, and ’us very like
fhe would {olicit one with whom fhe had that
Familiarity, for thole of her own Party as much
as The could s s but as bur as 1 perceive by this I-
vidence that bath been given, he under colour
of Kindnels, and pretence that he would muarry
her, and fending for her from time to time, at
laft to rid his Hhands of her, hath pat this upon
her, That fhe fhould iouclt to fuborn him a-
gainft his Conicience to withdraw his Evidence.
She is a kind of week Solicitrix for matter of
Judgment and Reafon; I know not what other
Prevalency fhe mignt have with him by any o-
ther tuirg, but for Judgment I chink ——

L. C.°f It [he pern’d thar herielf, as the dud
acknowludge anda avow fhe did, fhe vasa Wo-
man of gocd Judement certainly.

My, Seinkis. 1 perceve he was of good Judg-
ment, to gct il of one he was weary “of, by this
TNEINS.

i, Jufr. Peiderizin, Alas! Alas! This s fuch

a Defign indeed of counterproving the King’s E-
vidence,

M. Sanders. Mr. Dugdale hath fworn, That
this was her Intric oy .,md fhe firlt began with
him : If Mrs. Prie be admitred to i..L.n who
15 the Ddfendant, as well as My, Dusial, whD 13
the Profecutor, fhe would tell you that Mr. Do
dale did contrive this matter himielf.

M. Fuff. Penbcrion. She wiould deftroy his E-
vidence that way, that’s very well,

N7 Fuft. Dolben, Dr. Chamberlein and his Clerk
both fwear, That he told her, 2on ligww it ves
sot T beguin this Intrigne, but yon.

M. Sanders., And if fhe had had bue {'o much
Wit to have piarted Witnefles to have taken Ad-
vantage of lus Words, fhe had counter-worked
him.

M. Fufs. Peiberton. They will learn fuch ways
foon enough of themlelves, you need not teach
them.

Ar. Sanders. 1F you pleafe we will go on with
our Evlderce, and call Witnefies to prove, that
Mr. Duedale had contraéted himfelf to her in
‘.{[arrmbc ; and this 15 a very unkind 1] thing in
him to ferve us thus.

Nir. Faft. Pemberton. Nr. Sanders, you ought
1o r:.nmmer, Publica privatis, e, A Man fhould
prefer the publick Good and Sftfety of the Narton
before fuch a Miftrefs as this 1s,

M. ‘Fufp. Dolben. But hitherto the Proof runs,
that fhe fougne him, and not he her.

Mr. Sanders. But they were contradted firft,

Mr. Fuft. Dolben. And you hear what the Ma-
fter of te Hoifefboe fnys about her leaving Melli-
aes for him.
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Ay Fult. Pesiberton. He hath very good reafon
why he fhould not marry her, for what T can

pcrccive.

L. C.} *Tis much they fhould be contracted,
when fhe told him he was a grear Rogue,

Al S{’ sacrs. It may be the might, { know not
wiat caufe he hath now to be dlfm.lILd with
hery but it may be fhe miche be dnp eafed with
him then.  Bar I befeech your Lordhip and the
Jury to oblerve, that tho’ the did tell him he
was a Rogue, yet it was afterwards that fhe did
folicit and fubora him,

M. Jaft. Pedirton, And therefore the thought
phunly he was fitter for her purpofe, becaule he
took him for 2 Rogue.

M. Saiders. Bue if the had a Purpofe to {ub-
orn him, fhe would not call him Rogue t) his
Face; that was not the way to infinuate mto him,

I delire Sir Fobn Nicheles mey be fworn.

[TV iich was dane.]

L.C.7J. Whar Quettions do  you ask Sir
Tobir ¢

Mi, Sasders, T defire, my Lord, Sir Fsbi veoulld
tell us, whether Mr, Dugdele it his hearing did
not own he was contracted v Mrs. Pivee ?

Sir Febir Nicholas. Mo, truiy oir, that I know
of,

My, Conders, Troy S:., will vou pleafe to re-
cotledt 1t 1twas vwaen Mr. Dry, nle was Letore the
Council,

Sir Febn Nicholas, N
fome Propolils of Mz
Contract,

L.C. 7. ’T1s your Women-witne{ls are lika
to do that.

M. Sarders. Thart 1s 2ll, Sir, vou remember ?

Sir j’,,"‘ Nichelas, Y.

My Jaff. Peiberton. Have you put the beft foot
forw Ellt.]::, Mr. Sanders ?

Mi, Sauders. Which s Vaiy Brecd! 2 Swear
Mary Barwell [IPbich was dene]  We will
now prove he fent for us feveral wimes; we did
not o after him fo much,  What do you know
concerning Mr. Dugasl’s fending for Vs, Price?

Beiwell. He fent for her to my Houfe [everal

tln'if.’::

L. C. 7. Dud he lie at your Houfe ?

CH UJ!‘F ND my LOId h":' d]d noft.,

LCF W hLI‘C is your Houle?

Benwed, In Brewnlowo-flveet

L.C. 7. What, is1ra p*lbhc Houfe ?

Bewzeell Ttis an Al choufe, the Greei-Lettice,

Ay, Tt Dalven. He told you fo himfelf, that
he did mect her at the Green-Lettice,

L.C. 7. What was their Dilcourfe when they
et ¢

Bewwell, T know nothing of that, I did not
hear him fay any thmm, but only he would

come in and fay, Let your Boy no for Mis.
Price,

L.C. 7. When was this ?
Bemwell. The lalt time was Swnday Seven-
nrfrht before fhe was taken.

Dirdefe did then
riiage,  but notlung

OWil
of 2

* Mr. Recorder. She always came - Gir Gesrge
when fhe was fent for ? Fiferies.

Benzwell, Yes, 1f fhe was within,

Air. Senders. FHow often did he fend for her?

Bewwell. Above 20 times.

L. C. 7. What great Inference can you muake
from .that ? mr:thmks ‘s as much againit you as
1t1s for you ; for it proves there was a great Fa-
milarity and frequent Meerings between them 4

and
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and if itbe fo, it thews as if fhe had that grear
Contfidence in lum, as to atrempt upon, and ar-
tack him 10 chis athur,

My, fuft, Pemderron. Indeed, Mr. Sondors, if
vou would have proved an I dur.eme ¢ to Mt
Dagdales Evidence, you could not have prov’d it
hetter, that fhe lLd oreat Conlidence in him
fhe had an Opinton, and reckon’l he wag fure
to her, and fo had a greater Influence over him
than another.

M. Joft. fowes. He {ent tor her to the Gieen-
Lattice, the Lene tor him to the 1o jhse y the Madter
of the Houfe fivearctn that fhe tent for him 20
times, fo they might fend for one another 20

t-rncs ..1-p=u:c
Mr. Fuf. D_.-L?u, And he never came to feek

for her but when fhe had been tiere, and kefe

word for Liim bziore,
My, Sanders. Now, my Lord, 1f you pleale,
we will go o 1o prove, That wien fhe l*'hl fed

to comy, he fent for her in unother Bod,y’s
Name.

£.C. 7. What will that do ! Or what does
that prove! P

Mr. Seaders. 1t 1s not probavle then that fhe
fhould folicit him: And Ju[’c at the haft here are
fome Witnefles planted, and feme Words are
taken from her mouth, that ic was her Intrigue
all along.

My, Fuft. Pewberzon, Mr. Sapders, You do not
{hew the Time when thole Mquhm fendings and

comings were,
L C. %, It thews that which they have prov’d,

that {he bulieved he was {ond of her, and {he was
confident of him,

Mo F ok Joues. T fuppofe Mr. Sziders means,
and does drive at this, to fhow thar o vas
drive on the Tatrigue on his pait that thete Ir.-
quent Mofage, were feat.
was colled and [foern.

Tblfz (17 9?] a .rJ' UH:; i {r .l ﬁ

i Mv Lord, at the time tnat the Pro.
cl.lmm on was for the baniflung of all Papifts
out of TU""W, ihr:. caine to me and faid, It M,

_Dug(g',;__, come: to asi ol e don’t olier to tell

him wherz § an
L. C.F. When was this ?
P}’z!nm Long bzfore Laffer-Term, before the
Papifts were b. ! 1&1 cut of Town.
M. 7. Paiderion. 3 Tals was another part
and A4 7.. :}’m.,. { of the Intrnigue.
Vitiefi. So Ny, D) 'zdele came 1o me, “and ask’d
me wheie Vs, Piice v "2 T told him I could not
tell; but if you have anv Letters [ will con-
vey them by a Melienger or fome Footboy to
hcr.
Mi. Foft. _“}’a:zs;. Did he fend for her at any

time in Sepleiber €
isiefs. The laft dime he fent for her was the

Suirday was fe’nnight belore fhe was t aken.

L.C. 7. Dxd “he irequently {end for her a
month or {ix weeks before that ?

TVitusfs. Yes, feveral times,

M. Sanders. Then fwear Bridget Lee.

[fﬂ;zch coas doie. |

Ay, Sanders. Pray, Miitrels, you that fpoke laft,
did Mrs. Price ever mnyh:rh.lf to him, but chat
once when the lcte that word with you?

Mitmefs. Never to me, my Lord, but that

time.

Vi, Sanders. Bridget Lee, Pray tell my Lord,
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Whether *irs. Price did deny herfelf, and the
way he vied to goer her to him,

Lee, Mr. D "f"“r:i*‘“u:‘ came into this Gentlewoman’s
Floafe, and coming into the Houle I was in the
Palligz 5 he asked me, Sweetheart, ler me {peak
with vous he defired me to tell him where Mrs.
Price wassy I wold him [ could notell : I wifh,
fazd he, you would 1etf‘h her to me; ro, fad I
I "'."0.'1[1. not do it for 55 e cly pp’ d s Hunu
in his Pocket, and fﬂid he, [ will give you 3.
No, faid T, [ will not do 1t if you wo ki give
me 5 /. Lﬂ! vy Tab fland wpoi its own Bt

L C. 7. Whut dii you mean oy thofe Words,
LL"! EUL:) c_’-}Uﬁﬂu‘f iH0: 15s GIUH .Z.h.} il /

Lee. T would not medile nor meke with any
thing but my own Conceris.

LC ¥. How long was this before the Tral
of Harconit?

Lee. A Quarter of a Year before that,

L. C. ¥ It was before e weat cut of Town,
the Circuit.

Lﬂe Yes, my Lord, {o 1t vas,

f}frﬁ‘ Pesideriein, There hald seen no tams
pcung then, this was b fore The Cunparing,

L. C. 7. It 1s no matter when thy @ampering
was, but when bor. Drgdale lent for ler, and fhe
refufed,

N.r, Senders. T wonder what they did together
all the time before, I they were not r,.mgf*n..a.

L. C. 7. They made Love together.

M. Sciders, Wh.,.t was the occation that fhe

refuled 2

Witnefs. 1 underftand that Mr, Dugdele did
fnd | was fearivl of myfelf; you muy venture,
faid he, for i would not do her the lalt wrorg,
ror the laalt Har of her Head thould not
Puriih.

C . This was long before he went mto
tlu: Co untry ?

Iff'z HEG‘ Yes, my Lord.

f B.fore the tempering ¢

E ;'t.:f.«.;f}. Yes, my Lorad.

Mi. Sainders. Whaere 15 that other Witnef,
Mis. Holluwd 2 [I7hs e s [ ':;rsrj Whar do
you know of Iur. Dupaeles fending tor Mis,
Piice 2 T woeuld know the lalt Time, "and where

it was,

Holland. My Lord, T do rotknow what [lace
it was he fent for her to, nor the luit Time, but
it was {ince Coriffinas.

L. C. }. Since Chitffieas ¢

Hollond, No, before Chriinas, but T do not
remember the Day.

L. C.¥. How do you know that he fent for
her ? '

Holland, 1 was told by the People fo, Thata
Meffenger was come from him for her.

L.C ¥ You did not fez him.

FHolland. No, 1 dia not.

L.C. 7 She fays riothing to the purpole.

Holland, 1know Mv. Dagdele was in her Com-
pany onc Sidey faft Lei:, and was there two

Hours,
My, Fuft, Fores. *Tis agreed of all fides they
were Acqu.,unmncc, and had arcat Familiarty.,
Myr. Fuft, Pemberten. AY, or fhe would never

have h’ld the Confidence to have attempted upon
him m this manner.
L. C.}. Well, have you any more ¢
M. Saiders. Hr:re is one tnore, that is Mrs,
Sheldon.
L.C. . What do you call het for? y
Mr.

v
subornatio

2 ha Al
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Mr. Sapders. To prove that there was a Note
Jeft to warn her to avoid Mr. Dugdalys Com-
pany.

M. Fuft, Pewberton. Why did vou not?

Adr. Saiees, Ie had beea beier for us if we
had.

L. C. 7. When was that Noic g

My, Sanders. .L“..u,l

L.C. ¥ That will do o oo,

N, Fuft. Pewicrien. Come, , cul hier however;
they will ﬂly their Witnelis were ot heard
elfe. [And fhe was calied, but did 19t appear ]

L. C. 7. Coing, {he is not here.

My, Saidvrs, Then, my Lord, we ofier this as
Evidence, That we had no Dmgn to Saborn him
to retract whar Lz had faid 5 the occafion of our
being with him we have given you an Account
of,

A, Fulf, Poindivlon,
Note then 7

L.C. 7 My Sandis, what you have faid
amounts o nenirg to avold the Evidepce that
hath been given for the King 5 for ail your Te-
timony fays littie more, than what he {faid at
firft 3 That we were Fellow-fervangs, and well
acquainicd 3 we nade ii‘ﬂqtltiit Vilits, and when
1 came to Town I went to fee hery ard fhe came
to me: They had no Difcoarle of tiis fame mar-
ter of tampering il the Dy before Haicoiie’s
Tvial: bue Sir Nobort Seuthoell duﬁ‘: fay, She
owned that fhe gid flady the Note, whic ‘b Is the
,ji.d..lt Bufinels 1n the Cale: For 1 ihe prepared
the Noce for him to fign, what can be fud
mnore ?

M. Saundirs. We can {iy no more bur that
Mr. i,;fagﬁ'f.;i might D.ctare it

L.C. 7 INo, e ow ned fhe Dictated iz, and
20t Mo, .."lfﬂ.r. £ ";“tc It 101‘ her.

M, Scugers. 1 co not know, my Lord

L.C 7 Bat yoa may l{ioﬁf, i you will;
for Siv Rebhert So. “‘,-’.f::':,.f hath fworn, That {he
being examinedd at he Council- Ba.ud the Lords
of the Council ha. .o geod an Or)‘mon of the

il of ity thar ehey .15!;;..:..1 her, who ﬁ'.:umd It
for her f And fheanivwerad, She did it her feif]

yiv _7{/[ P:;:J: g7, l._:. Sﬂmi”w!, lf 150..1 b"‘
not fatiiied, here is anotier of the Clerks of the
LU'lﬂu}

Sti ]’f*l,...r'i.”-‘“?ﬂ‘. All that &7 Reoleit Soieth-
o hath fid is truc.

S Thomas Dolwic, AN that S Rsd
faid, I can fivear to every particular,

L.C.%. Well, What fay you,
fen?

My Pollexferr, My Lord, 1f you pleafe to fpare
me 2 Word for the other Delens danc My, Tasde-
sugh : There s mn the Indictiment two Things
cn:ﬁ: 'd on the Defendants; Oae, That they
ﬂlou'd perfuade M, Dugdale not o give Evi-
dence againft Huicoris : Tur that thore 15 1o
manner of Evidence aeaintt Mr. Tesberengh, but
he oazhe to be found Not G. ey for (e pAIL.

L. C.j That Is true, of that he muil be ac-

quitte..

M ”ofu"ﬁu ‘Then for the other part of the
Charge, That they fhouid endeavoar to periuide
Mr. Duzigl to Retract the Evidence he had for-
merly given, for a Sum ol I\ﬂlo'n}, and othier Re-
wards . We do reckon, That as this Lvrdence
flands beiore your Lordfnips, wihatlovver 15 proved
aramt VArs, Pnu, will have no influence upon
M. Jasterongh 5 for altho’ Dugdalz and  Piuee

Viy did you wrnite your
4

w1 hath

Mr. Poliox-

.-p.;

T asborcugh

i
£l g2 Car 11,

have had Pratices and Defigns amongft them-
feives, uniefs he be a Parey to them, it he have
not a part in them they will not affedt him

Then the next thing is, we mult diftinguiih the
Evidence as 1t ﬂands, or clie 1t nmy' not be by
the Jury fo well underftood how they are difie-
rencea one from anotier 3 for 1 would not mince
the Tvidence, bur Iet 1o thand asitis : And how
far Mr. Taigercup) 1s concern®d in ity and how
far may be 10:*11 by him as an honeflt Man in this
matter, or how far 1615 an iliegal Aé, will be
to be determi’d by you. Now there is only
two Mectings that My, Dugdale hath had with
Mr. Tesbsio sér/.’; s and in the nexe place, there is
no other Witsels to prove 1t but Degaele himielf,
c*cccl;unfr only whar >1r Robeis Sﬂ’r!'?': o/l fays of
the Coafeflion at the Councily which, I think,
will ot be very muco neithery as I {hall thew
wien 1 ¢o me o that paracular, Mr, Duzdale
fays, that at the firft E\Lurn.f:, the 12th of UZs-
ber, at the Greeu-Lettice in Fi s R, w15, Mr. Taf-
borgigh did fay unto him, That M, Price had
told him, Vi, Dapdsre ﬂ.ould Rur.ﬂ.-i hi; Lvi-
dence, au d e was come to confirm whet [he had
faud,

L.C. ¥ Nzy, but woat fhe had promifed,

A, Peliafen. Yes, what fhe had  promifed ;
and that he came from the Dake, and toor 10w
charitably done of him to Ketra e gors 1o
further : r\nd chat 1f he had du ne G e fhould
be forry forie. T 15 the Invidence, as near as
I can renienioer to repeat it

L. C. . Part ot it

A Pollexfen. As to the Grfl Meetimg —

Mp, Tt Peaaberion. Look you, do not mif
take, M. Pelizfen, but chierve this: For Mr.
Dz lale does fwear hetold him, I you will Re-
tract the vidence yoa have giveny taen ail the
hath promifed fhall be made goud,

Ay, Podexfeir Tlnt he cune to confirm what
fhe had promifed. § would repear 1t as riphe as
I could, becauie, my. Lord I hope, as this Cafe
{lands, that norwirhitan ]m*’r all tat hath been
p*‘OVLJ, yer M, Tasooronso nath done notimng
amifs, Then I come to thic fecond Meeting,

&, e, Peiitcion, At tie Arit Mecting the
VOLE WS pmJucui

L.C. 7 No, I think not,

M. jw Dstbenn. Yes, my Lord, it wa

1. C. 7. Wasat, Mr, Duzaale ¢

fogude. Yes, my Lord.

A7, Pollexfen, Yes, he does fivear fo, and that
he read 1t, and prefd Mr, Dupidele to fign iry
and that this was the laft time, and 1t m i b
done belore the Dake went o ‘?‘mw g, or
fomething to that purpofe, This, LOid, 1)
4t Lwom, may all {tand and bx_ w—rv true, and
yer Vir, Tasboroneh not criminal, wich fubmifiion.
For if to be M.s. Price were 1o far in her Inter-
courfe witn Mr, Dugdale, that as appears by his
own Leidence he did feem to comy ply and treat,
a5 it he were yielding, and to do what thr:)
would have himy do, concerning his going be-
yond Seas, or being kcpt m a Prowefiant Lord’s
Houie, and fhe had {uch Confidence as to el
huin how the Priefts were fent away, and how
he might be convc}’d away : All this thus far
comes to agree witll what Mr. Zasvsreugh fays for
his own Defence: For Mr. Fasbor oilgh fdy:, ivlrs,
Price i1l wil me, that Mr. Digdale was forry for
wihat lie had fworn, and wuuid Rerralt all the
Evidence he had formerly given, Thus he

fays :

'\
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fays: T'ilapply it to our Cafe anon 5 and this ap-
pears by Mr. Dusdale’s own Evidence: For when
he does repeat what Mr. Tasboreugh wold him, he
fays, That he {aid Mrs. Price told him of it, and
he hath not told you, that he did contradiét it
for falfe.

My, Fuft. Peiberten. Pray confider; He tells
you, that Zashoreugh faid, that Mrs. Price had
cquainted him with what Propofitions fhe had
made of 1000/ and that he was the Man that
wis come to confirm “the Promifes fhe had
made,

L. C. 7. That prefles you, that is the truth of
it: §f that had not beea in the Caie, perhaps
you don’t wlk muchout of the way. *Tis true,
your Obiervation 1s nght,

Mr. Fuf, Pemocrion.
but *twii! sot hokd out.

L.C.F. When Tesborough comes into the
Company to be acquatnted witn Mr. Dusdal, at
that time Mr, Dzpdele bad been adwifed to com-
ply, or feem to ¢o o to find out the Plot and
Defign, ard what he could get out by 1r; and
without gueilion, to purfue that end, he did fhew
yickd..gneis, and as you obferve, for cught 7as-
borough knew, he might be fincere : But was it
a cood way for him to el um ; there 1s the
mateer in effect he does tell him Jo; It you will
Retraét your lividence, according to this Note
that was produced by her, and read by bin, you
fhall have 1co00/ for your pains: Can you anfwer
that?

M. Fuff. Pendericn. Or can you anfwer the
other, 'L'hat he fhould {3y, Stie hath acquainted
me with what you propoic ; that 15, That you
vould Retradt all, and go out of the way, and
be no mere an Evidence 5 and 1t you would do

*I'is 1ngenious indeed,

¢hat, that fhe hath acquainted me with her Pro- .

pofition, which I comc to coniirm, that fhe
woukl give yeu tocoZ What can be made of
that ?

A, Fuft. Deiben. And wathal, formerly there
wos a Difcourie of fome Perfon of Quuliey that
fhould come to him; he defired that fome fuch
one fhould be a Security for the Money, and
afterwards {he brought M, Ta:lorongh, and faid,
That was the Gentleman lhe rold him of,

M. Faft. Pemberten. Come, Mr, Pollexfen, tale
this too : What had Mr, Tasbsrough to do to ufe
the Duke of 2vi#’s Name? and to fay, That
he had Authority from him to propole thelc
things; which certainly 1s a very great wrong to
fo oyeat a Prince.

L.C 7. Thatneeded not to a penitent Perfon,
that was jorry for what he had done.

Adr. Pollexfen, Fle does inieed fay, That Mr.
Tasborouzh thould be the Man that thould fecure
the voney.,

Mr. Sol. Gein. And there is one thing farther,
to take in all that Mr. Testorczgh did likewile fay
to Mir. Digdale; That there is 2o harm in doing
this, that it-is a very charitable A, and that he
would do wellin it

L. C.¥. But they anfwer that, by faying, Sup-
pofing it tn be true, tha Drgdatz had Remorie,
then it would be a very good Adtion s but to
talk of 1000/ to be given lor it, there 1s the
Crime. -

Adr, Pollexfen, Whetier my Anfwer will take
vith your Lordfhip or ne, 1 can't tell s but the
Arfwer ! would mive is this; There are feveral
things in that Paper, as amonglt the reft, Thac

he hould fall under great Diflike and Danger,

and therefore was forced to hide and- fecure him-
felf, for fear of thofe whom he fhould make his
Lnemies by it, and that was Terror enough to
any Man that fhould run.into fuch a Retraction.
Therefore now he muft live when he hath done
this, and fo we fhould apply the other part of
the Difcourfe, whatever Money fhe had promifed
to take off his Fears of Want, and fo his coming
there was to make good that part of the Pa-
per, which fays, he muft be protetted and main-
taned, and preferved, that he may fee he hath
a Subfiftence and Provifion for him, if he did de-
ferveit, And, my Lord, it will be greatly di-
funguithing in our Cafey and turn much upon
this Point, with Submiffion, if I give or oficr
Money to any Man to lwear a Falthood or Ke-
tract the Truth, ’os a vy grew Crime, and 1f
we are guilty of that, undoubtedly our Crime i3
very bad; but in order to the bringing of
Truth to difcovery, and to have a Reiraction,
not of a Truth, but of a Falthood, and to pre-
ferve that Witnefs {rom perithing, I may pro-
mtic him Protection and Subhitence,

My, Serj. Maynard, Then you have found out
a better way than the Devil hunfelt could have
fuggetted to uphold Subornation.

L. C. ¥. Upon my Word, If that were a way
that were allowable, then wot be to us, we
fhould eafily have all the Witaefies tamper’d with
by the Temptation of 1000 /. Reward. Do you
think thatis a good thing for a Man to fay, This
thing was rafhly faid, 1f you will unfay’t, you
fhall have fuch a Reward ! People would be apt
to bite at fuch a Bait, and we do not Jive in fo
virtuous an Age, that 1000/ will not Tempt 2
Man to unfay what he hath faid at fieft, the?
what he hath faid then was true.

My, Pollexfen. It were an unjult and unfiiting
thing, if it were as you fay.

My, Fofb. Pemberion. Nay, Mr, Pollexfen, con-
fider thefe things muft not be done by any one;
their way, if they had been convinced of the
"Truch, had been to have carried the Compl.int
to a Magiftrate, and there to detect him Ly v it
he had faid; not to corrupt him, and puiit in
it, by telling him, 1f he would do fo and {0, he
{hould have 1000/, By this you let in all manuer
of Temptations to Witnefles, that v.c fhall never
know where we are.

L.C. :7 Come, Mr. chgdﬂft', (bEC:lLlﬁt I will
fhew you all very fair play, I think very well of
M., D!{g d(?fﬂ’.)

M. Fuft. Pcinberton, Hle hath carry’d himfelf
always well,

L. C. }. Yes truly, 1 know nothing to the
contrary : And pray tell upon your Qath, and
tell the Truth: Did Mr. Tasicrousf, when he
read the Note, ask of you, Is this truee Did he
inquire of you, Wiicther or no you were reaily
a Convert, and, Whether your Sorrow and He-
pentance were truc ¢

Dugdale. No, he never die',

L. C. % Did he ask you, 11 you could do 1t
with a fafe Confcience ¢

Dugdale. No, nothing of Confcience was cver
nam’d 1n it o

L. C 7. Did he ask you, Whether 1t was
true ?

Dugdale. He never nam’d Truth or Falfhood :
It was only to get me over to Retraét what 1 nad

{aidl.
M.
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Myr. Fufp. Pemberton. What 15 a Temptation,
if this be not *

L.C. 7 Truly I ask this Queftion, That the
World may fee, we would find out the Truth
by all the ways we can; for if he had been foli-
citous with him, and asked him, Whether he
could do this fafely, and with a good Confcience,
and whether the matter of it were true, it would
have gone a great way ; but now I have asked
Mr. Dugdale this upon his Oath, and he fays it
was only to get him over to them,

Mr, Fuft. Pemberton. And then confider ail that
is faid againft Mrs, Price 1s turn’d upon you, €x-
cept that of the Contrivance to keep him from
giving his Evidence againft Harcourt, A very
jubtle Invention it was; but whether Mr, Tasbo-
rongh was in the Bufinefs of the Note, in contri-
ving it, I cannot tell, and it fignifies nothing
But fhe having contrtv’d as 1ll a Note as can be
penn’d, he is as much guilty ; for he folicits as
well as fhe, and countenances 1t fo far, as to
undertake farther, that the Money and the
Bribes fhe had offered, fhould be paid and made
good.

L. C. ¥. Mr. Durdale, Mr. Tafborongh talked
with you of going away ?

Dugdale, Yes, my Lord.

L.C.F. Advifed you to be gone ?

Drugdale. Yes, he did ¢ He told me I were beft
to ablent my felf for a while beyond S:za, and
fhould have convenient Paflage,

" L.C. ¥. Did he mention the Duke of 2%rk?
What faid he?

Dugdale. Yes, he faid he had acquainted the
Duke, and the Dake had given him Orders to
prefs that Note home ; for, faid he, the Duke
will not Delieve you will be true, if you do not
ign this Note.

Mr. feft. Pemberton, "'Tis never to be endured,
that you thould abufe {o noble a Prince.

L. C. 7. Did you tell Mr, Tasborough then, If
I come over, there is QOates, and Bedlow, and
Praunce {til lefe ¢

Dugdalz, 1 did fuy fo to Mrs, Price, but never
to him,

My, Fuff. Penlberton. You fee then what he
would have this Note fign’d for, to firengthen
the Catholick Caufe.

My, Thoipfen. My Lord, Will you pleafe to
fpare me one Word for Mr. Tasboroygh : I confefs
the Evidence does feem by Mr. Dugdale to prefs
us very hard, and particularly upon that matter
of the Money; but as Mrs, Price had managed
the Bufinefs, Mr. Tasborough might have been
very innocent: But, my Lord, we muft make
that Defence for our felves that we can 1n a Cafe
of this nature; and therefore 1t will be, I hope,
no Reflexton to fay, We muft counterprove Mr.
Dugdale, and dilprove him as far as we can, to
acquit our felves. My Lord, 1t is a very great
Crime that we are here charg’d with, and the
Crime being fo heinous, ought to be well proved,
and with unqueftiomable Evidence: Mr, Zas-
borough, 1f he be gulty of what he is here ac-
cufed of, is a very 1l Man; but Men are not
drawn up to great degrees of llnefs fo foon as
at the firft At to attempt fuch heinous Offences :
And ’tis not probable, that at his firll {lip he
thould be guilty of a Fault of fo high a Nature,
and {o very ill as this 1. My Lord, we fhall call
fome Perfons that fhall make it appear to your
Lordthip, that after Mrs. Price had given us In-

v

formation of this Repentance of M, Dugdule’s
we did make application to a Perfon of ver ’
great Honour, no lefs than my Lord Privy Seajy
that Mr. Dugdale might receive the Difcouracre:
ment which it was fitting he fhould in ficly 4
martter, My Lord, we mult call our Witnefles
to prove Mr. Zasborough to be a Man of 2 vepy
good Reputation, that he never did any fucﬁ
thing betore; and I hope we fhall give your
Lorafhip fuch an Account of him, that the Juy

will have realon to believe, that "M, Tau’)amz{g};
1s not {o gulty as he is reprefented, but was drawp
into this matter, whatever it is, Pray call 3 Wic-
nefs to fhew that Mr. Tasberengh acquainted any
Lord of the Privy-Council. /

acn iy Lovd Chief Fufiice went off the Bench, 1o
St oi Frits of Evror in the Exchequer-Chaprber

v, fuft. Pemberton, X Mr.Tasborough be drawn
n, *us by Mrs. Price, but not by Mr, Dugdal.
Mr. Thompfor.  Is my Lord Privy Seal in
Court ?
vir. Juft. Fones. You know he is not here.
M. Fut, Pemtberton, You tofs great Names a-
bour, and make great Noife with them, when
you know they are not here,
afr. Thempfen. It he had not fallen 1ll, fire he
would have been here.  What fay you, Mr Tajf-
boreugh ? |
Tasborough. My Lord, I was to attend my
Lord Privy Seal Yefterday, and defired him
to do me the Honour to be here to-day, becaufe
I was to come to my Trial : He told me he had
Bufinels that would hinder him from comine .
o !

but ﬁii(_i he, 1if the Attorney-General w.ill in.
form himielf of me, Iam ready to teflify, thar

. you gave me Information firft of Mr. Dugdalz’s

Rlecantntion, before 1t came before the Coun.
cil,

.M}'._ Fuft. Pemberten. We will do your Client
this Right, Mr. Thospfor, as to ask whether my
Lord Privy Seal was at the Council, and fid (o
much then.

Ar. Scroggs. He was not that Day, but we ac-
quainted my Lord Privy Seal before thar; bur
Sir Reber? Southwel] does him thisRight, as to fay
that he did declare, if Mr, Dugdale had ﬁgn’ci

that Note, he would have gone with it immedi-
ately to a Magilirate.

Mr. fuft. Pemberton. How docs
faid fo ?

Sir R. Senthweell, My Lord, he did farther fay
after he had faid, that he would have carried i;
to a Magiftrate in that cafe, he did fay, he had
been once or twice with my Lord Privy Seal.

M. Juft. Penberton. Ay, he did fay fo; but

there was no Evidence but his Allegation,

Mr. juft. joves. Was my Lord Privy Seal at
Council at that time?

St R. Sonthwell. No, 1 think not, my Lord.

M. Sereggs. *Tis a very firange thing we
fhould be fo forward to promife for Mrs, Prive
1If we had not thought Mr., Dugdale real. J

My, Fuft. Pemberton, *Tisa fign you had 2 great
Inclination to the Thing : Well, call your Wit-
nefles. ,

M. Thompfon. Call Six Richard Aflfield and Al
derman Barker.

M. juf. Dolben. *Tisa fine thing this to make
a long Brief with, to no purpofe.

that appear he

Mr.
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M. Scroggs. We have a {winging Brief here
indeed.

M. Fuft. Dolben. Ay, you come with a great
Biief, but no Witnelles, :

Mr. Thompfon. If we do not call the Witneffes
nam’d in our Brief, our Client will take 1t 1]l 5 1f
they do not appear, we can’t help it.

Mz, Fuft. Pemberton. You have forgot what you
moved the Court about Tenmpef.

Az Juff. Dolben. But we have not forgotten,
that about ten Days ago you mov’d to put off
this Trial, becaufe Mr. Tempeff was your mate-
rial Witnefs; and being ask’d what he could
prove, you faid it was how you were brought
acquainted with Mr. Dugdale: But becaufe the
Court did not think fic to put off the Trial,

Mr. Attorney did fay, he would fee if he had

been examined, and what he had depolfed, and
report it to us; and afterwards did fo, and
did confent here that at the Trial you fhould
make ufe of his Examination 1f you pleas'd ; but
we do not fee that you make any ufe at all of
1L,

Mr. Thompfon. We that are of Counfe] muft
make ufe of our Client’s Witncfics as we have
them 1n our Brie,

Mr. Serj. Maynard, We defire they fhould call
their Witneffts, and not name Names.

Mr. Sciaggs, We defire that Exanunation may
be read,

M. Att. Gen. Produce it then.

Mr, Thoinpfon. We have It not.

M. Recorder. And we for the King do not ufe
it as [vidence.

Mr, Ast, Gen. Come, if 1t be here you fhall have
it read, though 1 believe Mr. Teipeft twears little
to your purpole; for as I take it he fays he dees not
know Mr. Dugdale at all,

M. Fuft. Delben. But I told you that Mr. Tas-
borsugh puts you upon Tritles.

M. ‘Jup. Pemberton, But whatloever they put
you upon, you {hould not trifie with us.

My, Thompfen. Do you defire they fhould be

read, Mr. Attorney ? '
My, Fuft, Pemberton. We can’t read them with-

out the Confent of both Parties, Do you confent to
them firft for whom they are produced ?
Tashorough. 1 only delire to know by them liow
I came acquainted with Mrs, Prce.
M. Fuft. Dolben. Well, you hear what Mr. At-
torney iays 1s 1n them; will you hmfc them r_&ad P
My, Scroggs. *Tis to no purpole then, 1f that

be all.
Nir. Scrj. Maynard, 1 defire to fpeak but a few

Words, and I am bound to fpeak them, ———
My, Fuft. Fones. Brother, they have more Wit-

nefles.
Adr. Pollexfern, Thefe we fhall now call are to

this purpofe, to prove Mr. Tasborough’s Reputa-
tion, that he Is a very honeft Man.
M. Fuft. Dolber. 1 don’t fee but that he may be

a fair-condition’d Man in all other things.

Adr. Fupt. Peinbertos. Look you, thofe that are
in their Dealings {ometimces honeft fair Men, yet
when they come to be of that Religion, there they
are debauched, and there they are brought to do
15 wicked things as can be, in favour, and to fup-
port that Religion.

Then diderinan Barker was fworn.

My, Thowpfen. Do you know Mr. Tasborough
Voru. II,

a Word., .

Barker. Yes, I have known him feveral Years,
Mr. Thompfon. How long ?
Barker. Fourteen or Fifteen Years, -
y ﬂfr Thompfon, How have you look’d upon
im
Barker. 1 have looked upon him as an honeft

peaceable Man.

Mr. Jufp. Pemberton, You have known him to
be a Catholick ?

" Barker. Yes, that I have,

Price. May I beg the Favour of this Honoura-
ble Court, that I may fpeak for myfelf here ?

Mr. fuft. Dolben. Well, come Mrs. whar will
you fay? Bur we muft tell the Jury before-hand
it [ignifies nothing for Evidence.

Price. 1.defire to fpeak the Truth.

My, JFuff. Dolben. But they muft not believe a
Word you fay,

Piice. Be pleafed to give me leave to fpeak how-
CVET,

M. Juft, Founes. Well, o on.

Price, Sir, Mr. Dugdale does here accufe me of
fuborning him to retra& his Evidence, I do pro-
teft *tis fo far from i, that he importuned me,
and folicited me to go to the Duke of Zor#, and he
told me if T would go, he would pay my Coach-
hire. Is it not fo, Mr. Dugdale ?

. Mr. faff. Pemberton. You muit not interrogate
1m.

Mz, Juft. Dolben, The very firft thing you have
faid hath difcredited all you would fay; for if
Mr. Dugdale (as you fay) had importuned you
that you would do this thing for him, how comes
it to pafs that afterwards you fhould promife him
a Reward of 1coo/ and bring 2 Gentleman to
make it good ?

Price, I affure you, my Lord, I never did.

M. Jupt. Dolpen. *Tis moft apparent, Tasts-
rough does not deny that,

Price, But thar which 1s the real Truth, that
you fay mult not be believed.

M. Juft. Peberton, Did he folicit you to draw
your INote? _

Price, Yes, he did, upon the Word of a Chri-
ftian.

M. Fuft. Founes. You did confefs that you did
ftudy 1, and draw 1t yourfelf.

Price. 1 did fo, but he importun’d me to
do it.

My, Fuft. Pemberton. How do you prove that ?

Price. I defire to know by what Words I tock
off his Evidence at Harcoars’s Trial ?

M. Fuft. Dolben. You defired him to be kind,
becaufe he was your Confeffor.

Price, 1 delire to ask him the Queftion, by
what Words 1t was.

Mr. Fuft. Fones, Well, you may ask him, but
tis little to the purpofe. Can you remember the
Words, or the Effect of the Words that fhe {poke
to you in the Behalf of Harcourt? The Night .
before his Trial, I think 1t was.

Dugdale. Yes, it was the Night before, to defire
me I would not be an Evidence again{t him, n re-
gard he was her Ghottly Father.

Price. You know you came to me, Mr. Duy-
aaley and told me you rid Poft to Town.

Mr. Fuft. Pemberton. We muft have no more

. of thefe interlccutory Difcourles.

Dugdale, Mrs. Price, 1 would not do you the
leaft Imury 1n the World.

M. Serj, Maynard, Mr. Jultice Fones, 1 defire
My,
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M. Fuft. Fones. If you will produce any Wit-
neffes, do.

Price. I defire I may {peak for myfelf.

Mr. Fult. Dolben, *Tis but Reafon fhe fhould
{peak for herfelf.

Mr. Juft. Peinberton. But I hope if fhe ask un-
reafonable Queftions fhe is not to be heard.

Price. 1 only fpeak the Truth.

My, Fuft. Dolben. But we muft not take your
Evidence of 1t, produce your Witnefles,

M. Fuft. Fones. M you have any to prove what
you fay, call them.

Price. ' Whether you will take my Lvidence or
not, pray let me fpeak for myfelf.

My, Juft. Dolben. We cannot believe you, nor

muft the Jury believe you, I’ll tell you that before- |

hand.

Mz, Juft. Pemberton. We tell you, you muft not
be heard. If you have any Queftions to ask, let
your Counlel propole them.

M. fuft. Dolben. It you apply to the Jury, you
are not to tell the Martter of Lact, but to prove
it to them by Witnefies,

Price. 1 defire, however, I may be heard my
felf.

AMr. Fuft. Fones. It any thing hath been omitted
by your Couniel, which is material for your De-
fence, and you have Witnefles to prove i, they
fhall be called.

M. Juff. Peinberton. Mrs. Price, you muft know
the Courfe of the Court, and the way of Evidence
15, we are not to hear the Perfons indicted make
long Speeches to the Court, or to the Jury, or
come with great Confidence to deny the thing that
15 prov’d againfl them 5 1F you have any thing ma-
terial to fay, we will hear you by your Counfel;
you muit not tronble us,

Price. My Lord, I have Matter enough to fay,
but 1t can’t be heard.

Mr. Sanavis. We delre Wright may be call’d
again.

Mr. fuft. Fores. To what purpofe ?

Price. To prove that you, Mr. Dugdile, would
fuborn him.

Dugdale. Call him, if you will, if you can
prove any Praclices upon me.

Price. You have good Prattices we know ;
you are a Man of excellent Practices ; you had
need commend your Practices.  You know very
well, Mr. Dugdele, that you told me you were
perjured,

M. Recorderr. *Tis not Language fit for you to
give,

M. Serj. Mayward, Is that Liberty of Speech fit
to be given?  She tells Mr. Dugdale that he faid
himfelf he was perjured,

Mr. fuft. Peinberion, You are an impudent Wo-
man to talk fo.

My Fuft. Dolbeir. Your Mouth muft be ftopped,
it you can ufe your Tongue no better.

Mr. Fuft. Fones, What would youask him when
he does come ?

Piice. 1 have told my Counfel.

M. Sanaers. She fays fhe would ask him whe-
ther Mr. Dugdale did not offer him Money to
fuborn him 1n this Cafe.  You are fivorn already,
Sir, arc you not?

Wiright. Yes, ,

M. Sanders. Then pray anfwer the Court this
Queftion, Did Mr. Dugdafe at any time offer you
any Money to take an Oath, or give Evidence?
Vright, Ofter me Money ?

Cafe of Reading very well. I fhall fay no more,

M. Sanders. Yes, you. Anfiver upon your
Qath,

Wright. No, my Lord,

My, Senders. Or any thing elfe did he offer ?

Wiight. No, my Lord. e hath often fent to
me to come, and when I did come, hath faid, I
am glad you are come, I’ll do you as great a Kind-
nefs; but he did not know of my coming, becaufe
his Meflengers had not met with me.

M. Serders. Did any one on his Behalf offer
you any thing?

IWright. No, I think noty if it was, I think it
was in vain,

My, Sanders. But did he, or did he not?

fright. No.,

Mr. Recracr. 1t Mis Price hath any more fiich
Witneffes, fle may call them.

M. Sery. Mayuard, Str, under your Favour,
here hath been a {furange way of Defence,  Con-
fider what 2 Crime we are upon, and in what -
Times we are.  That there is a Plot of a very
high and wranfcendent Nawure under Quettion,
that divers Witnefles have been fuborned, and
Perfons tried in this Plice and convidted for it,
’tis undentable.  Now after Trials for fo hich

] . - O
a Crime i the moft publick Way, here come
Price and Tasberongh; What to do?  She indeed
before, but both Tastorough and the afrerwards,
by Rewards, and fuch Temptations, cndeavours
to difgrace his Lvidence; but there s not onlv
that, but the great thing looked afeer by their
Party, was, the Ifluc of ity upon this all the
King’s Evidence were to be hano’d,  What hath
been fuid 1s only to make a Jelt, and make the
Company merry, that there was a Contradt of
Marnage between them; but what will be the
Confequence of that? He that fpoke i, has
unquettionably proved the Probability of our
Charge, we have made 1t probable, ard he hath
proved 1ts and the Inference drawn by them is,
She certanly did not tempt him, becaufe fhe
had an Intereft in him, which concludes very na-
turally,  But then for the other, Mr. Tasborongh,
Alderman  Barxcr comes 1n, and fwears the
Gentleman 1s a very honeft Man; I hope he
did hear the Ewvidence, and then I wonder how
he could fwear 15 but do we come to prove
whether he be an honeft Man in his Life? *Tis
not at all our Queftion; if we fhould have of-
fered to have diparaged him in another way,
we had not, I think, done our Duty, and the
Court would jultly have reproved us for it ; but
there is one thing, which if it had not been

fpoken, I would have held my Peace: How is
Tasborexgh concerned in the Cafe? Divers have

been queftioned and executed for High-Trea-
fon, upon Mr. Dugdal’s Evidence; and after
fuch an Execuation, what is Mr. Tasborougl’s Du-
ty? It hath been reprefented as if he had been
perfuaded by her, and drawn in that way, and
he thinking that 1t was a Falfity that had been
fworn before, and that Mr. Dugdale repented of
the Injury he had done them, he fhould help to
make this Duilcovery. But what was he con-
cerned? Did he go to a Jultice of Peace, or
any jult way? Did he not contrive with the
Devil rather than the Juftice? 1000/ muft be

paid to draw off a Man, and corrupt him, to

make him own himfelf perjur’d, in a Truth that
had been fpoken. Aud this is not the firft time

that they have done 1t; for we remember the

but
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but this, under favour; it is not well to fay, That
a Man may perfuade another to deny s Tefti-
mony, that is nothing coencerned in the Cale,
in a Cafe of this publ'Lk Nature efpeciaily, and
for Money too, that was never meant by the
Law,
eenanced here,
Caution to all that hear ir, as will dxﬁ.our.,ure
any Attempts of this Nature for the faure,  And
that it fhall not be enough to excofe it, for him
to fay he was perfuaded, znd thought his Sorrow
was real, and thereby to put the King's Witnef-
fes to prove that thing to be true that they had
proved already. What had Mr. Zzsbss vitgh to do,
as if he were a Judge of the Proceedings of the
Court and Winefles ¢ Nothing at all, ll[]d{_]' fi-
your, but isa very 1l Man, and as fuch I hope fhail
berpunifhed.

Mr. fuff. Foies. Gentlemen, you of the Jury;
thefe two Perfons have been Indifted for a very
great Offence.  The Indictment fets forth (that
which we all know to be truc) that #hitebiead,
and'divers others, have been Tried and Condr:mn-—
ed for a very Lxecrable, Heliith, Popith-Plot:
That upon thefeIndictments, Mr, D';g(’ﬂ!rr did give
material Evidence; but that, when fome other of
the Confpirators were to be Tried, and brouglt
to Punithment, thefe two Perfons did endeavour
to make Mr. D:gg*drz!e abfent mielf, and rerract
his Evidence. And not only {o, when Harcourt
wasto be brought to his Trial, (for whom it feems
Mrs, Price had a particular Kindnefs) but likewife
it was endeavoured, he fhould be gone, and not
give any further Evidence at all, and he fhould
have 1003/, for a Reward. Tms 1s the Indiét-
ment,

The Inducemnent to the Indictment (that is, the
Trials of the Confpirators) 1s all well known: And
there have been Copics of the Records produc’d,
which have been nfpetted and perufed by the
Counfel on the Dbfenddnts parts ; and rhty cannot
fay, but that the Records agree with the matter
in that refpect : So tnat there is nothing at all but
the bare mmcr of Ifact that you are to enquire

into.

I fhall diftinguith the Perfons:  Mrs, Price,.ac-
cording to the Evidence, hath gone thro® the
whole Churtrc of the lnd;&m{.'}t and indeed, hath
committed fome further Crimes than have been
mention’d in the Indiétment.

Firft, Ie hath been proved to you by Mr. Dugdale,
That the did not only defire Kindnefs to Harcourt,
who was her Gheffly Fatber; but fhe did defign, as
much as in her hy, that he thould not come 1n at
all to give Evidence againft him: This Is prov’d
by Mr. Dugdale, and another Perfon that was by,
that did hear Mrs. Price fay, She would have him
be kind to Mr. Harcourt, becaufe he was her Glofi-
by Father: Withal tells you, That mmmediucly
afm Dugdale did tell him, that fhe did perfuade
lnm he 1hould abfent himfclf, and not crwc Lvi-
dence againft Harcourt.

She is likewife Chas o’d (as they are both) that
fhe did treat with Mr, Dagdale for to Retract all
that he had faid, to be gone, and to leave a Pa-
per behind hlm, which thould f ignify, That
there was trouble of Mind upon him, and that
he had done wrong in his Telimony given a-
gainft the Catholic cks: Therefore he would be
cone, and leave a Teftimony of it in Writing,

when he was cone. And fhe provides for s

You. Il

and I hc:—pt. IS not meant ever to be coun-
| hope the Court will give that

Security abroad, and he fouk! have 10007, Re-
ward.

Dugdale 15 the Perfon with whom the firlk
Treaty was: But becaufe he knew, arnd it was
obftrved, that it was unfafe to deal with Perfons
that were tampering with him in fuch a nature
as this was, and upon a matier of this kind, he
dogs acquaint Perlons of very great Qalny, 15
he {wears, my Lord of Sf.WffJZr”? v, and two other
Perfons: They do advife him that he fhould ger
fome Perfons t¢ be by when they fhould come
to {fome further Treaties concerning this bufines ;
and to that purpofe he fhould hold up a Corre-
fpondence, and condefcend w0 a kind uf Agree-
ment and Comphance, that he might be able to
have further Tethimony to confirm his Ex 1clcrzcc.
\Vhereupm Dr. Coameerlai: and his Servant o
plac’d 1n a Cloict in Mr, Dugdale’s Chamber, in
fuch a Piace, that they Hllﬂ‘ht hear what was d:f—
courfed 1 the Cn*mbt:r, in comes Nirs. ez,
they being in the Clofet.  Mr. Dugdalz and ﬂm
difcours’d absur the Bufinel fo loxd, that Dr.
Chamberlain and his Servant (a3 hoth ﬂt them tell
you) heard therr Dilcouric u pf}n i The Queft-
on was ask’d and put to M. Prire: s, Price,
I bope you kngio vou aie the Ferfon that fih sy
thi: lntrigue zf&'ﬂm froivet, aid ust ;m;. 7
And this was confet: by her,  So that YO have in
confirmation of Mr. D'”awf L "lc'hmun-,: boih
of Dr. Chamberlain, and of h..:, Servant, to tioat
part of tiie Charge againtt her,  And wir.,l..zl, tis
added, not only thar he was to go beyond Sea,
to retract what Lividence he had given; but
Iikew1ie 1t was thought expedient he thould come
over again, and fwear again{t all the reft of che
Evidence that had been given or fhould be gi-
ven for the King,  And when it was faid by M.
Dugdale, What mll it avad you, 1t I do 1etr.1ﬂ:
my Evidence ? There isMr. Os-es and Mr. Praxice
to teftity the fame thing: She foid, No matter
for that; 1f we get you on our fide for the Ca-
tholick Caule, to be our Friend, we fhall bz
furc to baftle all they can fay or do; and we
fhall not only fave the Catholicks, but turn the
Plot upon the Heads of the Proteftants, and all
the King’s Witnefles fhall be hang’J.  Thar you
may remember was teltiied by fome of the Wit-
nelles. |

Mrs, Price deals frequently with Mr, D'fﬂv’ﬂ[.:’ to
this purpofe.

Dugdalz, that he might know (and ’tis very Like
with that hc:nc.ihntt:nmn, and no other, he did 19
and that he might difcover the thtom of this

Bulinefs, tells hr.-:r, This 1s a thing of dangerous
Conﬂ.qur:ncc, and 1t s fit thae I have bu:tel Se-
curity than your Promife to this 1000/ I will have
fome fubftantial Perfon that thall ceme and con-

firm what you promiic, and thereupon fthe telis

him, He fhould have i laauunml Perfon broughr,
and he fhould have Thaniss from Very great Per-
fons, naming the Duhc of 2%ik; for he it was,

as they faid, that would take care to protect him,

and procure a Pardon for him.,

Now Gentlemen, this is the Evidence againft
Mrs. Price. In Defence of this what dozh (he ot
fer, but that fhe hath been acquainted with Mr,
Dugdafe, and there hath been great Familiarity
between them. It there had not ceen fuch a Fu-
miliarity, would there have been fuch an In-
trigue ?  Is this a matter to ke communicated to
a Stranger? It there were a Doubr before, vohe-
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ther there were this Contrivance, not this
olve us a better Aflurance that 1t was fo, becauie
there was fuch an Acquaintance between then ?

‘Then, as toMr, Tasbersurh:  He indeed 1s not
in the beginning of the Delien aralls There 13
no bwvidence againlt him for that part of the
Charge, That b fhonid adfn: il and mot giv
foideinee qraiiff larcourt, He comes not in at
that wime; nor can | perceive by Mr, Davdele,
that he had any Acguuntance with him ar all il
the r2th of OFozeiry and he fays he was bue twice
1 his Company,

Now, Gentiemer, What does Mr. Tasborouzd
do? Kirfl, Duedeleis ol by Nivs. Piice, "Thar
Man of Qualuy lhoeuld come to hnn, and con-
fim 2l e Promites The had made bim. Tos-
barcorh dovs come 1o him, and telis Iimy, Ile haih
hed jome Ditcourte with des, Pideo, wiar fhe
hed “propod’d s acd he 15 now come to rale
goou and conurm, That al il be effeéed that
the had proposd o him. Ay! bur it 15 fap-
pos’d, thar My, Teiloicagh s o very Leneil B,
and a confcrentions Man, and dovs come tor ro-
hmg in the World, but o perivade Mr, Deg.afe
to do the Odice of a Chitifany 1t was a charl-
table thing of him, to wilie off the Scandal that
was upon the Lancceni. Bur you do not ke
him charge 1t upon Bir. Dyedei’s Conicience,
thoe he hul given a falie Lividence ag:mit any
of thole Periiney nor wrge him muach to Répen,
But he muti be gone, he molt give no more Evi-
dence againft tne Catnelicks: And, What 1i Lie
do comply voh tis Delire 2 Then he tells Kim
he fhall have o Revard: What Beward? A
‘Thoufand Pound; which was made linown before,

a
"T“
.

and Protection, and FPardon, and Securizy : And
H 5 an i‘-* .' ! A Drlr"-l L‘ '}‘uf.}p —KT* "
he comes to il 11 £ Uall O Le7w5  INanme,

to inforce 1t mie mere {trengly upon him, and
make him do 1ty Whereas, indeed, the Dalke
of Zert (as he humielt and Mre, Pidee have fince
confufs’d) never knew any thing atall of the Dafi-
LS.

Now, Genthemen, to move by honet Chriltian
means, any one .. hath done an Injury of any
forr, to Repentance, and Coeatrition, and Recan-
on, it 3 very good thing ; but to do it
with promuic of a Reward of 1005/ can’t be
juftify’d : What way is there to Infinuace into any
- Perfon an Intention of doing a Mischief, but fuch
a way as this? Will any one come to ancther,
and fay, forfwear your feif; whereas you know
fuch a thing to be troe, fivear it to be fulie, or
Retraét the Evidence you have given about 1t, and
I will gve youa 1cco/. No, but ferve the Ca-

your Teltimony; Retracr, be gone, be fecure,
you f{hall havea Certainty, that you fhail be fecure
in another Kingdom 5 or elie you thail have itin
a Protiflant Family; tho’ netcher that Protoffant,
nor any Prolcffant was nam’il,

Is not this a Bare to cempra Man to al] the Vil
lany 1n the Worki? If 1000/ beoffer’]] who can
refift? Such People as thefe are will nor eafily re-
fift fuch a Tempration,

But Mr. Zashoronsh is a very honelt Man in his
Life and Converfation 5 he produceth thole thar
tell you his Reputation 15 good, and the like:
There 1s no doubt of 1, and 1t he had produc’d
20 Witnefles, do you think he would produce
any one that fhould fpeai againft himfeti?  He
choofes out thofe certainly as would fpeak as much

Tasborough Hil. 52 Car. 11

i his Favour as they can: Bur if a Man hath
been an honeft Man in his Converfation, may he
not be mtc’d or feduc’d ? Efpecially when it will
betold him, If youdo this, you fhall merit Hea-
ven, you thall be Sainted and Canontz’d, you do

‘The arecteit Service in the World o the Cathalich

Caule,

Fhele Tempiations may work upona Man, per-
haps, that is morally honett, when he is infatuated
with this Principle, That any thing may be done
for the Catbolick Caules as it is a Catholict Doc-
trine too often infhill’d into them, that any thing
1§ become finctified when it tends to that End;
‘us caly then to prevail upon them in Things of
this Nuture,

I houid havetold you (which T omitted before)
one Circumilance concerning Matter of Proof a-
gunlt Mis. Price more than Tusboronsh :  Two
Vienefles faid they were in the Clofer, and heard
a Woman ducourfe; but neither of them did' fee
her Facey but afterwards it is proved by a-
{‘J{j'r:hf:l", that he was defired o obferve who came
mnto or went out of the Houle ; and he fivears he
law Mr. Dagdale and her come out'of the Houfe ;
Tt thty_ went to the Gatebanfe, and he faw her
come agun from the Galebongz with Mr Dugdole,
arcl e is fure chis is che Perfon. And you remen-
ber that part of their Difcourfe was of going to
the Gatebsnf-,

Air. fife. Poiberten. They do not deny it nei-
Lher. ‘

M. Juft, Feires. T don’t fee they do,

i fufe. Peinberten *Tis a very ftrong and plin
Lvidence as can be given,

Mro Juff. Jores. There is nothing can be faid
for Mrs, Piice, little for Mr. 97:35&5;'9;%51.

Mr. Fiaf. Peinbertan. 1 fee nothing that can do
him any good.

M. Jrft. Dolben. Come Gentlemen, lay your
Heads together and confider of the hMarters

Ihich the Fuiry did af the Bar: Aud beiitg asked by
to2 Clerke of the Crowwn, IVhetber they swere agreed,
ey anfc’d, 1.

CL of Cr. Who fhali fay for you ?

Oinnes, Foreman, :

(. ¢f Cr. Do you find the Defendants Guilty of
the Trefpafs and Offence whereof tney ftand In-
dicted, or Not Guilty ?

Iereman. Gutlty,
A, Pellexfer. As to part only for Mr, Tas-
bt *a;{gih

Foreman. Guity of the Indi&tment,

Adi, b, Fewes, We all know he is not found
Guilty of one part, and that muft be confider’d
at the fetting of the Fine,

M. A2t Gei. M. Tasberonzh hath been upon
Batl, but I uppofe he muft not go upon Bail now ;
we pray riat he may be commicted.

M, fuft. Pemberion. They mult both be com.
mitted 5 take them both.

Mr Sanders. Mrs, Price 15 (il in the Garebouf.

Ny, Juft. Penberion. We have her here now,
fhe 15 in our Cuftody.

Adr. Sanders. It you pleafe, Sir, we defire the
mzay be remanded back.

M. Fuft, Pemberton. No, they (hall go both
intothe Adarfbel’s Cuftody.

Piice. 1 begof your Lordfhips T may go back
to the Gatehoufe,

Mr.
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Mr. Fuft, Pemberion \What! Thefe are not

things to be trifled with,

ﬂ;{r Fuft. Delben. No, we muft not fhew you
any Favour at all.

Mr. Juft. Peberton. No, we muft have no Fa-
vour for you that would deliroy us all.

02. The Tvial of Benjamin Harrs. 1037

Then the Prifoners were token dnto Cuftody by thy
Murthal, 10 be &ept 1il their Fudament.

Afterwards Fobn Tasborongh was fin’d r1oo/. and
Anne Price 200/,

—
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City, tor the

Liberty, Prope Iy, anid the Proteitant R lroion. {

ary 5, 1679. 2 Lar. L1

-
-

*Mr.ReEcorDE R,
i HOPE, this being a Matter to be
of Leirden, Perfons

rﬂnﬁ:: HHH.::’{ -1I

...il-r"'ll"'I

R E tl';Ld in the City

H;}ﬂ ‘WY comung here in great Mu!tituc’c.,,
O SIS
SR come to bluth, ratier than to give

- T - g
L s Pl L
B ia s Tt
e o i - - 4T
oy gpumpurikdd S gaygen =

Encoursgement to it and if we can
ﬂlv{: your LC-id!hIU, and this J..II'\ Sanstaction
that this Perfon is f*umy of tue Orience, accor-
ding us it 13 lad 10 tiie fnlormation, 1 nopf.. tiat
both you and all others that fhall hear 15, (for 1
perceive there 15 @ gredt Expeuctation this Day
trom this Caule) | ho wope, I fay, you widl abomi-
nate any. Man that fhall offtr at any fuch like
thing,  [iC eed we live In an Age where all forts
of F ..ﬁzon and RLbf_-lon 15 countenanced, Ma-
ciftrates reviled, and Cendalized b) jome “erons

O
have Authority fo to do, It 13

vho think they ‘ ty o ¢ .
mft like fuch another kind of ‘"{Llirﬂm, whicli

ionﬁc have now of laze taken up, at rather than
they will be thougnt to turn I‘anaucks, thcy
will tarn plam Atn...ﬂu, and others, who fcorn
to be cither, downright Rebels.
s bafe a Piece as ever was. contrived in Hell,
either by P'lplfts, or the blackeit Rebel that ever
was: It ftems to carry with it a fine Character,
and has a Figure of all plwfible Qbedience to
the Crown, to wit, 4 .a!'rfcﬂl &c. forr ths Pre-
fervation of bis Mepefy's P foir, Liberty, Properiy,
cud the Proteflant Religion.  Bat it any cf you
have feen it, I hope you will be fo far from giv-
ing any Countenance o, If, as rhat you m”
with me, think, ’tis fo far from tending well to
the Government, that it is only d..ﬁr:n’d to ke
up all Sedition and Rebellion, and the very worlt
of all Rebelhion. "I mutt confefs, T would rather
~ have bet: -vf:d that it was only the fuke of Lucre
made him do what he did, for that would have
iamf_t"nat extennated his Crime, i he had not
vead it firls; but then to go and have 1t Printed,
and e\:ggfe{,[ to Sale, r""f,_ his 1S il oreal Agernis
vation,

If the fame fort of Inﬁnuat]on had been ufed
towards .,mj,r pmwth ‘t radeiman, as hath been

ofiered to the King and Magiitrawes, I believe

v 8 Georpe Jeficrics.

This Book 15

MIN £ EARRIS) !_)09/{,: lﬁfi/.j

5 Caufitir 10 ve Printed, and Soldy a
Libel, Amzitled, An P}Jpe .1 from the Courn

Prefervation of His Majeily's F rion,

try to the

7
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there is no Man but would fay, that ere this time
he might have hid his Head.

Bur Diffemblances of Pretences for the fake of
the Froteftant Religion now-a-tays in his Shop
will pafs well erough, and Pericns can tell you
there how far you may go from hcnc‘e to LRosire
with Safeiy ; and after tlu" have blackened their
Mouths with T'obrcco and omuLL, and do not rayl
againft the Church and the Government, they are
look’d upon ftraicht as no Protelants.

Bar {till ws to this Perfon, e farther to urge
ir, by way of Aggravation upon lmn, he could
vauntugly ne ie his Boafls, when it was put
home to him, Why he wouid venture to do {uch
things, &fc# That he had above a Thoulang
Perions who would ftand by him 1n wiatloever
he did.

* I, 0. F. There was hardly ever = S Willzm
any Book morc pernicious to fer us  O<rOES*
together by the Lars than this, nor any thing a
“‘HHL.I‘ Iicendiary 3 one can  hardiy write
woile

Says he, /Fe in the Conntiy bave doie otr Paits
in Chufing, for the gener iity, good Ndesbers to ferve
it Parliginent 5 bt if (a5 awr {wo lof Pariiameit's
weie) they it be Difjoloca, or Provegied, whensver
they conie fo redicfs the Gilivsiiees qf zh, ?frj..c.., e
way be p.,;..d bue ot blawmed.  If tise Plot tekes of-
ﬁb? (r’.j' 12 al! }5}65 i -f:].‘} T )f’r Frrlzinets
are w0t then to be Condmned fur shat thelr it beiug
fuffered 1o Sir eccafivized 1,

So that here 152 ﬁy way of cailing it upon the
King himfelf. And it g be ot L.m.f”.wht
Treafon, 1 am fore it is jult upon tire Heels of i,
*Tis a moft abomunzble J:’,ac:cc.

Then <were fﬂf’e the I gtitcfes, 10 prowe 2het 1he Bogks
weie fold @i 0is SH‘D r‘hrf aficr they were af
[wsiil, _}‘Lﬁq; all s, GIO’»‘L‘- & Priuter® S,
Jrood up, wwbo coufefed /z“'-* bad Lalf @ Dezen of
thein, but not of bim s for e coes either g0 o1t
o 710! 172 f:bt- way, ;/r’ffz?r’ !M’x ff.?uhﬁ Gf ;JIJ ﬂ‘.’iﬂ-’!

T%}m
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“After ber, M. Benjamin Tooke, at the Ship i

¢, Pauls Churchyard, Bookfelier, was Exz-
mincd, who foid be faw feveral Quires of them i
the Shop. And being asked by Mi. Harris, How
be kugw they wweie all thofe Books?  He anfwveied,
That be turned cver a great many of thenr, aid

Sfound thein-all the fame,

Mr. Recorder, My Lord, he was fo mighty
zealous of this Book, of f{o great Imporrance,
no doubt, to his Party, that for fear he fhould
be difappointed in time, he gave fomewhat to
haften it.

Mr. Recorder. Call the Printer’s Man, and
lwear hun. [WWho ffosd up, and was fivori,

M. Recorder. What did Mr. flaivis give you,
ha?

Printer’s Man. He Jaid me down Six-pence.

L. C.’}. And whar, that was for haftening the
Book, was it not?

Printer’s Man. 1 cannot tell, Sir, not I, but he
gave me SIX-pence.

M. Recorder. And what, did you do it in the
Day-time, was you not at it in the Night?

Printer’s Man. Yes, 1 was upon it in the
Night.

M. Recorder. Ay, 1t was a Deed of Darknels,
and {o fit for Night-work.

My, Sery. Strodz. My Lord, if it can be made
out to your Lordfhip and this Jury, that he de-
figned malictoufly to {candalize the King and the
Government by it, we muft acquicfce; but
that, my Lord, he abfolutely denies; but fecing
it running up and down the Town, he gets fome
of them, and fufrers them to lie up and down
in his Shop, and this only as a common thing
to get Money, fo that we fuppofe 1t may not le
within the Informatien, becaufe it does not in-
tentionally {candalize the King and the Govern-
ment.

Mr. Williams. He in his Trade fold this Book,
and that we admit; bur, my Lord, it is 2 mate-
rial Part of the Intormation, that it was done
with a malicious Delgn, &, and we do not
take 1t fo; but for the other Matter we fubmit
to 1L,

L. C.J. Then you do admit, that he did fll
fome of thefe Books.

Mr. Williams. We do, my Lord, that he did
{ell one,

Mr. Ollsbear. My Liord, this Book was pub-
lickly fold in other Bookfellers Shops before we
had it, and fo we thought in a way of Trade, we

‘might do the like ; but as foon as ever we heard

there was any thing ill in the Book, we fupprefs’d
the Selling of it.

M. Sery. Strode. They fay, my Lord, the Prin-
ter had Six-pence given him by Mr. Harris., ———
Friend, does not he come, and give you fome Mo-
ney at other times? Have you never had any of
him before ?

Printer’s Man. No, Sir. I never Printed any
thing for him before.

Mr. Sery. Strode. Was not this Printed before
you faw it?

Printer. Not to my Knowledee.

Mr. Serj. Strode, Pray ask the firft WieSs.
Was not this in Print before you faw it in his
Shop ?

Grever. Yes, my Lord.

s
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My, Williems, My ord, he is a Man of other
Principles, than to do fuch things.

L. C. . There 1s fcarce any but Swith, that is
{o factious a Seller of Books, as Zlarsis : All your
Domefiick Intelligences are foy for which, you
know, you have lorfeited your Recognizance al-
micfl i every Book.

A Neiglsbour was cafled &y Ay, Willums, fe give
oi decouint of M Harns.

Neighbeur. My Lord, 1 have known himy a-
bout a Twelve-month s and I have always look-
ed upon him, to be a falr-conditioned, quiet,
peaceable Man: He s, and has been fo reputed
among his Neighbours.  And 1 bave never feen
any thing from him, but what was very quict and
peaceable,

M, Recerder. A Bookfeller that caufes a Fic-
tious Book to be Printed, or Reprinted, if it was
Printed before, 1s a factious Fellow,

L. C. 7. You fay night,

Mr. Goodhall (another Neighbour of Mr, Har-
ris’s) fd, vpon lus being asked, if he were ac-
quatnted with him? And, if he were wont to
oppoic, or to {candakze the King or Govern-
ment? ‘That he rever heard fuch a Lke thing
of him,

Myr. Recorder. 1 prefume that none of thefe do
ftand by him in any fuch thing: But he, being
advertifed of 1t, and being asiced, Why he would
offer to expole to Sale fuch a Book vs this?  He
anfwered and faid, That he had a2 Thoulind Per-
fons that would ftand by him.

Call Robert Stevens,

L.C.F¥. Whatcan you fay?

Robert Stevens. My Lord, 1 have feen this Book
feveral times 1n his Shop, and others too.  And I
have asked him, Why he would fo publickly vead
them? (Idid not indeed buy one of them myfelf,
but I caufed a Man to buy one for me) and he
fard, e had feveral Thoufands to ftand by him .
And he is accounted an Anabaptilt. He fad fo
before the Mafter and Wardens of the Company;
who queftion’d him, why he fold fuch fcandalous
things? And he fud he had {everal Thoufinds to

{tand by him,

Tocn [pake the Lovd Chief Fuftice to this purpfe,

Becaufe my Brother fhall be fausfied with the
Opinion of all the Judges of Lugland, whar this
Otfence is, which they would infinuate, as if the
mere Selling of fuch a Book was no Offence : *Tis
not long fince, that all the Judges met, by the
Iing’s Command; as they did fome time before
too: And they both times deciared unanimoully,
That all Perfons that do Write, or Print, or Sell
any Pamphlet, that 15 either fcandalous to Publick,
or Private Perfons; iuch Books may be feiz’d, and
the Perfon punifid by Law: That all Beoks,
which are fcandalous to the Government may be
feiz’dy and all Perfons fo expofing them, may be
punifl’d. And further, That all Writers of News,
though not fcandalous, feditious, nor refleétive up-
on the Government or the State; yet if they are
Wriiers (as there are few others) of falle News,
they are Indictable and Punifhable upon thar Ac-
Count,

So
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So that your Hopes of any thing of that kind
will be vain 3 for all the Judges have declared this
Offence, at the Common-Law, to be punifhable
in the Seller, though i the way of his Trade
The Books may be feized, and the Perfon pu-
nifhed.

As for this Book,-1n particular § you can hard-
ly rcad a more bafe, and pernicious Book, to
put us allinto a Flame: It gives you fuch In-
citements, and fuch bafe Encouragements, with
fuch Refeétions upon all forts of Perfons, (for
I have read it upon this Account) that I think,
there can fcarce be a worfe made. He would
fet up another Man, that has no Tile to the
Crown: For (fays he) the greateff Dangcr ac-
cruing to your Peifons, as well as to the whole King-
dom, upen the King's wntimely Death, will proceed
from a Confufion, and want of fome Eminent and
Tuterefed Pevfon, whom you way truft to lead you
up ageinft a Yrench and Popith drmy: - For
which Purpofe, no Perfon is fitter than bis Grace
the Duke of Monmouth 5 as well for Quality,
Courage, and Conduld, as for that bis Life and
Foriie depeinds upon the fame Dottoin with yours.
He cill fand by yous and theicfore, you ought to
fraird by bim.  And yementber the old Rule s, He
who hath the worft Title, ever makes the beft
King ; as being - conftrained &y a Giacions Goveri
menty lo fnpply what he wants ia Title : That in-
fiead of GOD and my Right s Lis Motto may be,
GOD and my People. He fays, Such a cne
soould make @ better Kings fory as you fee, the
[Vorfe the Title, the Beiter the Kug, A King
with a Bad Title, inakes a better King, than he
that bath a Goad Qi for be fbell be oblized 1o
coiply wwith, and will bumonr the People, fei wvant
of ¢ Title, A Thing, which 15 of the bafeft
Nature that can be: And yet this Man muft
give Money to haften the Printing of fuch a
Book 3 and he had feveral Quires of them in his
Shop. Except the Writer of 1t, there cannot be
a worfe Man mn the World; who, for trivial
Profit, will neglect the Peace and Quiet of his
Country, and fec us all together by the Ears for
a Groat. And, Mr. Harris, 1f you expect any
thing in this World, of this kind of Favour,
you muft find out the Author ; for he muft be a
rebellions, and a villunous Traitor : For, though
he feems to inveigh againft Popery, 1tis only to
be a Rebel. And certainly, he has rejeéted all
the Laws of God, and all Obedience that Man
requires; and prophaned all Holy Writ. He is
fome Body, whofe Fortune does not {uit with
his Condition 3 and who, becaufe he is not at
Eafle and Quier lumfelf, will let no body elfe be
lo neither,

[Speaking to the Fury, who prefeitly withirew. ]

You have nothing more to do, but to give your
Verdict:

If there be any thing in Law, let me kpow it
becaufe you go out.

Then one of the Jury asked my Lord, if they
might not have the Book with them, which was
there m the Court, and it was anfwered 1n the
Negative,

Before the Jury went out, Mr. Fariis would

’
L I -,

fain . have fpoke to them for him&lf, but it%s

not- permitted him., I

Then, after a little while larmine. IEPRIN
> fter a little while tavrying, . they rgggg;ez? ..

to the Bar.

And being, as is ufial, asked if they: were a-
greed on their Verdiét, and who fhould fpeak for
them 3 they anfwered, Yes; and appointed their
Foreman, who faid he was Guilty of Selling the
Book.

At which there was a very great and clamorous
Shout,

Lord Chief Joftice faid, that was not their Bu-
finefs, they were only to determine whether barely
Guilty, or Not Guilty,

The Recorder would have had them given their
Verdict by the Poll, but chey all unanimoufly cried
out, they were all agreed, and then the Foreman
gave the Verdict again, Guilty,

Mr. Recorder then prayed, he being for the
King, that Mr. Harris might ftand Committed ;
Whio was thereupon prefently delivered to o Tipflaff,
to be cairied to the King’s-Bench.

Mr. Harris carneftly Dbefeeched his Lordfhip,
that he might be fent to any other Prifon, and nam-
ed Newgate three or four times, but 1t was not
granted him: Thereupon he faid, I hope God will
give me patience to go through it.

Then my Lovd Chief Fuftice fpake 1o the Fury
lo this Iffedt,

I am forry you gave Countenance to this
Caufe fo much, as to ftir from the Bar, when
the bvidence was fo full, and when I wld you
plainly, not only my Opinion, but likewife that
of all the Judges of Eugland, that felling this
Book was an Offence at the Common Law,
for which they ought to be punifhed: And yet
with your Scruples, you give the Party (with
their Hollows, and Shoutings) to take Advan-
tage; though you did mean upon the Mater
the fame thing then, you do now, yet you fee,
upon every little Occafion, when a thing {hall
feem to thwart the Government, how ready
they are to fend up their loud Hollowings. It
was not fo prudently done as might have been
done.

We had need look about us, for if at fuch 2
Time, and for fuch a bafe Book, fuch clamorous
Noifes fhall be made, what fhall become of us?
Our Lives and Fortunes are at ftake, Would I
knew fome of thofe Shouters, I would make
them know, I would punifh them: I am in-
cenfed 1n the Behalf of the Government, and of

- all our Lives and Fortunes, that fuch {hall go un-

punifhed,

He afterwards received Sentence in the Court
of King's-Bench, o pay 500 L Fine; ftand on the
Pillory an Hour; and find Sureties for his Good
Behaviour for Three Years 3 and had it not been
for Mr. Juftice Pemberton, the Chief Juftice

would have added, That he fhould be publickly
Whipt, |

Th?
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XCIIL 7he Trial of FrRAaNcCIS SMITH, Bookfeller, at

the Guild-Hall of London, jor Publifbing a Libel,
February 7, 1679. Hil. 32 Car. L.

The Fury being Sworn, Mr. Holt opeied the

Inforination,

: ; pleale youtt: Lord-
- up, here 15 an Informati-

. Cfggﬁ nnppreﬁ:rr’d in behalf of
@g&ﬂ i{?@ the King againlt Fraucis
S RGBe Smith, Bookicller: And it
fets forth, That after Sir

George Wakesnan, William Ma fhal, Willian Ruin-
ley, and Fames Corker, were Indicted and Tried on
the 18th of Fuby, 1674, for divers High-Treafons,
at the Sefisus-Houfe in the OM-Baily, before Sir
Fames Edwwards, then Lord Mayor of Lonasn, and
the Lord Chiet Jultice Scioggs, and others; the
Defendant, Francis Smith, publithed a fcandalous
Libel relaung to the late Trials, which was in-
titled, Soime Oofervations upon the late Trial, &,
the Words are partcularly fet forth i the In-
formation; to which the Defendant pleads Not
Guilty : But 1f we prove it upon him, you of
the Jury are to find for the King; and 1f you
find he is Not Guilty, you are to fay fo, and no

more, {oe.

My, Hoks,

Their Mr. Recorder [pake to this Effeft.

M. Recorder*. My Lord, T am of Counfe] a-
oainft the Defendont for the King, who {tands
wform’d againft for a very great Olfence. The
Information particularly fets forth, That where-
as fome cerain Perfons were Indited at the
Seffons-Hozfe in the Old-Baily, before the then
Lord-Mayor, Sir Feines Edwards, and other Per-
fons then in Commiflion of Oyer and Terminer,
and Goal-Delivery for that Place, and particularly
my Lord Chief Juftice Seroggss and after the
Trial was over, and the Perfons thereupon ac-
quitted, there’was a Book, which is mentioned
in the Informauion, printed and publfh’d, and
ic'is a Book that is known by the Name of Tsii
Ticklefoot 5 o very abulive thing; but Perfons
now beein to grow wonderful wirty in the be-
einning of thelr Books, n hopes to enfnare Peo-
ple to read them, and to prevail upon them fo
tar as to make them believe there 15 fomewhat
extraordinary by the Title. You fee, Malice
finds out all the Ways i the World to enfnare
an¢ gain upon the People, to fo bad an Age are
we conie, -

But I confels, 1tis the fecond Time ever fince
I had the Fortune or Happinefs to know this

City of Loudon, that I have known fuch Ex--

pectations, as have been upon two Caufes in this
Place: The firft was but two Days ago, the

* §ir George Jeffzries,

fecond 1s at this Time; wherein is truly a fort of
Countenance, I am afraid, too much given by
Perfons that dare pretend to be no other fort of
Proteftants, but can impudently outface all fort
of Governors. - Now, as all Perfons ought to
abhor and detelt that damnable Do&rine, That
Men hope to be Saints in another World, be-
caufe they may commic Murders in this; {o this
ought too as much to be condemn’d by all Pro-
teftants as the other, That Men thall endeavour
to rebel, and be faftious in this World, that fo
they may be reckon’d good Subjects; the one
are as far from being eood Saints, as the others
from being oood Subjeéts. 1 take this Occafion
to {peak all this before vour Lordfhip and this
Court, becavfe I hope the City of Loydon will
never be corrupted by the bafe Infinuations of
fome idle Bufy-Bodies in it; Men, who cannot,
or will not be pleas’d, becaufe (forfooth) every
thing does not go according to their Mind and
Fancy ; and tho’ by no means they will allow
the Pope to be Infallidle, yet every factious Fel-
low will expect, that every one fhould pay him
the Tribute of Tufallible, as if he were the only
it Perfon to give Meafures to Goversment and
Governors.

When we come to have extraordinary Cafes
and Perfons, extraordinary Occafions ought to be
taken to inflict due and jult Punifhments upon

them.
And when they fhall dare to come to difparage

Great Men that alc by Supreme Authority, Men
that act by their Confeiences 5 and becaufe they can-
not be fteer’d by the Humours of thefe fort of
People, therefore they muft be look’d upon as
Papifts, or at leaft as Brid’d, becaufe they cannot
comply with that bale Humour which fome fort of
Perions have, ‘

[ take notice of this to your Lordfhip, be-
caufe one that s intrufted in as great a Place for
the Welfare of this Nation, as any whofoever,
1s extremely concern’d in the Affair of this Day;
I mean, the Lord Chief Fuftice of the King's-
Bench s who being aoffilted  wich feveral other
Judges, as far torth as it did appear to him, did
deliver the Senfe of the whole Court 3 who, for
acting according to his Confcience, and as he
ought to do, hath been Libelled and Reproached
with as bafc a Beok as cver was written again{t
any Magiftrate whatfoever : It fuch things as
this fhall be permitted, then there will be an
end of your Lordthip’s fitting here, or any where
clfe, or of any other that fhall aét as a Magi-
ftrate ought to aét, and that fhall not be afraid
to do hus Duty., But fuch is the Happinels of

this
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this City, in this Jury, that, I muft confefs, I
recetve {o much the greater Satisfadlion that it Lord, the Libel is futfictently infamous, we muft Sy
comes before them s for as I know the Men to needs own; and I do not come:to Juttify the
be Men of Loyalty and Affetion to the Govern-  Thing, neither Mr. Smith my Client,- nor any

ment, and wiil be {o juft to him, that if they do  body elfe that fhall be cuilty of 1t: The Queltion

Ll

not find him Guilty of the Matier of the Infor-
‘mation, they will acquit him: So, on the other
(ide, they wall not tmink themielves to be aw’d
by a Mudtitude, or inflav’d by private Infinuations,
to debauch their Conletences, cither i refpect to
God above, or to the King his Vicegerent here
on Earthj thercfore obferve your Dury
that you may render to Cefar the Things that be
Cefai’s, as well as to God the Things thar are
God’s. |

Now as the King is God®s Vicegerent, {0 isevery
Magittrate the King’s Vicegerent, 1 that Farti-
cular.

I would not take up fo much of your Lord-
fhip’s Time, but that I fee tius 15 2 Matter of
orcat  Expectation; and I knew thar every
Word Is taken in Short-hand, to be conunent-
ed upon as Perfons Humours fhail {teer them,
I do think, as bung the i_M:::;E: of the City of
Londen, it is my Duty to Ipeak thus much, that
1 hope, nay, I may dare confidently aifirm, that
the Generality of the City of Londeu, all good
Men, and Men of Abthtes, &, are {or the King,
and the Government a3 1t 1s now Litablil’d by
Law.

[ 42 wobich there was a gencial He thid the
Conirt.]

Having faid thus much againft this Perfon,
Mr. Frencis Smith, T muft fay, That if-the way
of common Report were Evidence enough to
convict a Man, he would be coavifted without
any more ado: But fuch 15 the Happinets of our
Laws that they expect Tellimony, befides com-
mon [ame. -

I would rather a great deal it might be a
Cauntion to Mr. Siizth, if there had not been
many before, and that he could not be convidt-
ed, and the Evidence not plain in Preof againlt
him.

Well, he printed this Beet 1 the Name of
another Perfon, one [virs, Srewfior: He fold feve-
ral of them in Quires to fevera] Peoples and
Biewfler queftioning whercfore he fhould  put
her Name to this Book: Truly, be fud, he
intended no Harm to her, for he was relolved to
fave her harmleis; and this we will prove to
vous and likewile thae feveral Books have been
talen in his Shop ;. and he jultfying himfelf in
whar he had done, and his further Refolution to
expole them ftill o Sile. And 1t we fhall prove
this to you, there will be an ond of all fort of
Tuftice, if in cafe that you, who arc the only
Means of bringing Men to Juftice, will not con-
rribute to have Jultice exccuted where 1t ought to
be: None can be legally punithed, unlefs they be
legally convifted; and I doubs not your Honelty
and Loyalty, but that you will do your Part by
Conviction, and by Juliice too.

Againft all Libellers, I am fure, there 15 Law
cnough, and every honeft Man will endeavour to
have it put in Exccution againft them, as far
forth as it lies in his way : 1 hope the Genera-
lity of thofe that are here, do come to fhew an
Abhorrency againft this ’erfon informed agatntt,
and not to give any Countenance to fuch bafe
Aéctions,

Vour, 1.

to both, -

15, Whether he be-Guilty of, €. as it is Taid in
the Information. -
Nir. Recorder, Sir, do you admit the Record 2
]gfr. Juf. Fones. If you do not admit it, you
mult call i your Witnefles, and prove what you
can,

IWhereupon Robert Stevens, Anne Brewfter, and
Margaret Clark were cal?d into Couit, and

Sod up bebind the Furv.

M. Williazs. Sir, if you will give me leave, -
you fhall hear what we will admi.

Mr. Recorder. Come, come, Sir,. if you do not
a_d it the Record, we will have none of your An-
ticipations,

Adr. Williams, What call you your Specch but
Anticipation !

My Lerd, the poor Man, my Client, is a Jan-
guithing, fick and dying Man, and one that is
almolt ruin’dy if any Submiflion will ferve the
Turn, he will give all the Submiflion that is ft
for a Man to give: All that we fay is this, that
he did iot erder this to be printed, as it is laid
in the Inturmanion, —— Bue T think we may ad-
mir

Wvir. Fetiirlece fad [170o ceas Counfel on the fame
Siae.] u¢ had no fuch Order given him by his
Clicut, as to admit the Recsid,

Toeir they were juft goizzz e to fcar the TF “ttnefles,
but Adr. Feff. Jones fard, It wwould be wory well
if they weld adiwity &c. and the Defendant

cciize ;0 Siainiffivin,

Mz, Recorder. Ay, that 1s your beft way's for
it would be a great means to teflity, that your
Submiffion 15 really intended as a Submiffion :
Bue if 1t be to prepare us to taink, dhat you are
innocent, then we will not have your Submiffi-
on.——And [ am for a Sinner’s Repentance with
all my Heart.

M, juf. Fones, 1f your Client be willing to
fubmit, ler the King have a Verdict in Law, and
then he will find my Loxd Chief Juftice Seozgs
fuil of Pity and Compaflion; and if I can fecany
Signs of Repentance, [ will promife you to inrer-
cede to my Lord for him.

Mr. Wilisns. One that came from my Client
toid me, that if he had offended, he would fub-
nit toany thing: And now here is his Wife
come.

M. Fuft. Fowes. T wonld fave him if I can, if
he will tarow himielf into Merey,

Well, what do you fuy, Miftrefs, for your Hus-
band ?

- Mrs, Swniith. My Lord, my Husband is very
fick and weak, and is not able to come himielf,
or elfe he would have done 1ty bur 1 ask'd
Mr. IWilliaiss 1t it were not belt to fubmit to the

Court,
Mr. Fuft. Fenes. Are you content to own i

{hall be fo?
Mis, Saith, 1 leave it to the Gentlemen, my

Counfel; 1 fhall acquiefce tn what they chink fir-
ting,

6 R N, W iliiams.
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s My Williaws. Then T prefunie to admit the
ﬁr’:f;’rﬂﬁ'ﬂﬂ}?{; _ '

’ My, Fuft. Fones. Then you are to find for the
King: [Speaking to ibe Fury.] *Tis the Caufe of
the King, altho” only my Lord Chief Juftice be
concern’d.  *Tis a high Scandal ; a great Scan-
dal againft a great Otficer and Magiftrate of the
King, I will fay nothing more to aggravate the
Offence at this Time, becaufe I would invite

. Repentance in all Perfons that have offended
this or the Iike Cafes.

Then the Fury being asked, IWhether they were a-
greed on their Verdic, faid, Xesy and choofing

their Foreman to [peak for them, be gave the Ver-

difi, Guilty.

94. The Trial of Jane Curtis. * 32 Car. II

My, Fuft. Fones. Well, Miftrefs, you have done
very well ; if, now you for your Husband came
here to make a publick Acknowledgment of hig
Guiltinefs, hereafter he fhall go, and ingenuoufly
make Submiffion to my Lord ; I know he is a

Perfon of that Pity and Compaffion, that he loves
no Man’s Ruin, but delights rather in the univet-
fal Welfare of all People: And I promife this, |
that I will be an Interceffor to my Lord 'in your

Husband’s B=half.
My, Recorder. And as far forth as I can contri-

" bute toit, I will do the fame.

He afterizards fubmitted to ¢ finall Fine,

XCIV. TheTrialof Jane Curris, af Guild-Hall, for
Fublifbing the fame Libel. 1679, 52 Car. I
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pleafe your Lord-
i .
Weredgiedy fhip, and Gentlemen of

T }Eg?i' . :
He M i;,,.ggﬂ the Jury, hereis an Infor

did publith and put to fale a feditious Libe] aguinit
my Lord Chief Juftice Sergggs: The Delendant
pleads Not Guilty ; if we prove 1t upon her,
you are to find for the King 5 and 1f nor, youare
to fay fo, and no more.

My, Willians fad  [[Vho <cas a Comnfel fer the
Defendaint.] he would admit the Record:  Where-
upon they procecded no furcher to Trial, but the
Woman being call’d, fhe faid:

Mys. Cartis. 1+ 25 1gnorant in the Matter, and
knew no fuch thing, my Lord; my Husband,
an’t pleafe your [ordfhip was in the Country .
hundred Miles of of me, in Lincolufiire.

Mr. Fufb. Foues, You did it ignorantly and
fimply, without any Malice, and, I fuppofe, you
are heartily forry for it. You fee your Neigh-
bour there, Mrs, Swith, hath thew’d good Difcre-
tion in the Behalf of her Hushand 3 fhe has in-
oenuonfly declar’d, that he fhall come and make
Submiflion 5 and if [ find you as fubmiffive, and
as {orry for what you have done, I may do the
like {or you.

Mrs. Cuitis, In any thing that I have doge, I
know not my felf Guilty; and if I am, I beo
your Lordfhip’s Pardon with all my Heart, m?
Lord, or any Body’s clfe.

M. Fut. Jones. I know you will find Mercy
from my Lord Chief Juftice, and therefore go
and make your Submuffion,

Then the Fury proceeded to give their Verdift,
aind their Foreman faid, Guilty.

1he indof the SECOND VOLUME..




